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Lleyds TSB Bank plc

Directors’ report

Results and dividends

The consolidated income statement on page 10 shows a profit attnbutable to equity shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2007 of £3,384 milion An intenm dividend of £632 mullion for the year ended 31 December 2007 was paid on
3 October 2007 A second intenm dividend of £1,621 million will be paid on 7 May 2008

Principal activities
The Bank and its subsidiaries provide a wide range of banking and financial services through branches and offices 1n the UK
and overseas

Business review
The Lloyds TSB Bank Group's strategy I1s to grow the business by building strong customer franchises and, by realising the
considerable potential within these franchises, the Group has continued to achieve strong results Dunng 2007, the Group has
continued fo extend the reach and depth of its customer relationships, achieving good sales growth, while improving
productivity and efficiency This has resulted 1n a strong performance against the backdrop of significant turbulence in global
financial markets Profit before tax was £193 million or 5 per cent lower at £4,089 million, compared with £4,282 mullion in
2006 However, profit attributable to equity shareholders was £3,384 milljon, an increase of £468 million, or 16 per cent,
compared with £2,916 millicn n 2008, and the post-tax return on equity Increased to 26 8 per cent from 25 O per cent Like
many other financiat institutions, the Group has been affected by the recent market dislocation However the relationship focus
of the Group's strategy has limited the impact In addition the Group has achieved substantial gains, totalling £657 mullion, on
the disposal of non-core businesses

Along with a number of other UK banks, durnng the year the Group has received a number of customer claims for the
repayment of overdraft fees On 27 July 2007, several banks, together with the Office of Fair Trading, asked the High Court of
England and Wales to clanfy the legal position regarding personal current account fees The 2007 results include a charge of
£76 million relating to the settlement of claims during the year, together with related costs

The Group’s iIncome statement includes substantial amounts of income and expenditure attributable to the policyholders
of the Group’s long-term assurance funds, which are consolidated to meet the requirements of accounting standards These
amounts are volatile and can cause significant vanations in net interest income, other income and Insurance claims However
they have no overall effect upon profit attnbutable to equity shareholders Fluctuations in the value of the Group’s investments
supporting 1ts insurance lahilities can also result in significant volatility in profit before tax In order to provide a clearer
representation of the underlying performance of the business, the impact of policyholder 1tems has been excluded and an
expected return on the Group’s investments supporting 1ts insurance liabilittes has been included the difference between this
and the actual return 1s disclosed as insurance volatibty In addition the gain on sale of non-core businesses, the costs of settling
overdraft claims and, in 2006, the pension schemes related credit have been excluded
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A reconciliation of Group and divisional performance, calculated on the basis set out above, to the statutory results 1s set out

helow

Summansed segmental analysis

2007
Group
Wholesale and Central excluding
UK Retail  insurance and Internatsonal group insurance Insurance
Banking Investments Banking items gross up gross up Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 3,783 68 2,518 (704} 5,665 461 6,126
Other income 1,797 1,900 1,773 378 5,848 6,804 12,652
Total income 5,580 1,968 4,291 (326) 11,513 7,265 18,778
Insurance claims - {302) - - (302) (7,220} (7,522)
Total income, net of insurance claims 5,580 1,666 4,291 (328) 11,211 45 11,256
Operating expenses (2,548) {636) (2,282) 33 (5,433) (19) (5,452)
Trading surplus 3,032 1,030 2,009 (293) 5,778 26 5,804
impatment {1,224) - (572) - (1,796) - (1,796)
Profit (loss) before tax* 1,808 1,030 1,437 (293} 3,982 26 4,008
Volatihty
Insurance - {267) - - {(267) - (267)
Policyholder interests - - - - - (233) (233)
Profit on sale of businesses - 272 385 - 657 - 657
Settlement of overdraft claims (76) - - - (76) - {76)
Profit {loss) before tax 1,732 1,035 1,822 (293) 4,296 (207) 4,089
2006
Group
Wholesale and Central excluding
UK Retall Insurance and Intermational group Insurance Insurance
Banking Investments Banking tems gross up Bross up Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 3.642 56 2,177 {591} 5,284 78 5,362
Other income 1,621 1,740 2,035 194 5,550 8,306 13,896
Total income 5,263 1,796 4,212 (397) 10,874 8,384 18,258
Insurance claims - {200) - - (200 (8,369} (8,569)
Total income, net of insurance claims 5,263 1,596 4,212 {397) 10,674 15 10,689
Operating expenses (2 476) (646) (2,264) (12) (5,398) 8 (5,390)
Trading surplus 2,787 950 1,948 (409) 5,276 23 5299
Impairment (1,238) - (308} 23] (1,555) - (1,555)
Profit {loss) before tax* 1,549 950 1,640 {418) 3,721 23 3744
Volatihty
Insurance - 84 - - 84 - a4
Palicyholder interests - - - - - 326 326
Pension schemes related credit - - - 128 128 - 128
Profit (loss) before tax 1,649 1,034 1,640 {280) 3933 349 4,282

*Excludmng volatility, profit on sale of businesses, the settlement of overdraft claims in 2007 and the pension schemes related credit 1n 2006

in 2007, the Group continued to achieve good levels of underlying earnings growth, underpinned by continued
momentum in all divisions On an adjusted basis, profit before tax increased by £261 mullion, or 7 per cent, to £3,982 mition
from £3,721 millhon, notwithstanding the impact of the £280 million market dislocation in Carporate Markets Revenute growth
of 5 per cent exceeded cost growth of 1 per cent, with each division delivering stronger year-on-year revenue growth than

cost growth
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Group net interest income increased by £381 mullion, or 7 per cent, compared with 2006 Strong levels of customer
lending growth in Commercial Banking and Cerparate Markets, and good growth in mortgages and retail deposis, more than
offset the marketwide impact of lower personal lending balances

Customer deposis increased by 11 per cent to £157 billion, supported by strong growth 1in savings balances n the retail
bank, where bank savings increased by 15 per cent and wealth management balances grew by 12 per cent Customer deposits 1n
Wholesale and International Banking increased by 18 per cent

Other income increased by £258 million, or 5 per cent, to £5,848 million This reflected higher fees and commissions
receivable as a result of strong growth in added value current accounts and higher insurance commissions in the retail bank In
addition, good levels of growth were achieved In non-lending related sales to corporate and commercial banking customers

The Group continues to make significant investment in improving processing efficiency, resulting in an excellent cost
performance Duning 2007, operating expenses mncreased by only 1 per cent to £5,433 million Over the past 12 months, staff
numbers have fallen by 4,552 (7 per cent) to 58,078, largely as a result of greater efficiency in back office processing centres
and the disposal of Lloyds TSB Registrars and Dutton-Forshaw These improvements in operational effectiveness have resulted in
a further reduction in the Group cost income ratio from 50 6 per cent to 48 5 per cent

Impairment losses increased by 15 per cent to £1,796 milion Our impairment charge on loans and advances expressed
as a percentage of average lending was 0 82 per cent, excluding the impact of market dislocation and the 2007 Finance Act,
compared with O 83 per cent In 2006 Impaired lending increased by 8 per cent to £5,311 million, less than the rate of lending
growth, and now represents 2 5 per cent of total lending, down from 2 6 per cent at 31 December 2006

Profit before tax from UK Retall Banking increased by £259 million, or 17 per cent, to £1,808 milhion, reflecting
strong iIncome momentum, up & per cent, excellent cost management, with a clear focus on investing to iImprove processing
efficiency and service quality, and a 1 per cent reduction in the impairment charge

Dunng 2007, UK Retail Banking continued to make substantial progress 1n each of ts key strategic pnonties growing
income from its existing customer base, expanding its customer franchise, and improving productivity and efficiency In each of
these areas, a key focus has been on improving sales of recurnng income products, such as savings and bancassurance products,
which, combined with higher lending related income, has supported the accelerating rate of revenue growth

The Retarl Bank has continued to make excellent progress, with further strong growth in product sales and continued good
revenue growth The Group has continued to Increase its market share of new current account customers It has also performed
weli 1n the growing savings and investment market, especially in bank savings, where it has recently benefited from a significantly
improved rate of deposit growth

Overall sales increased by 17 per cent, with tmprovements over a broad range of products, especially current accounts,
bank savings and bancassurance products Sales volumes were particularly strong in the branch network with an increase of
24 per cent This continued strong sales growth has benefited from higher levels of new product innovation over the last twelve
months with the successful launch of a number of enhanced savings products, an improved range of added value current
accounts and the intreduction of the innovative Lloyds TSB Duo Airmiles credit card Custormner deposits have increased strongly,
by 8 per cent over the past twelve months, with particularly strong progress in growing our bank savings and wealth management
deposit balances, with increases of 15 per cent and 12 per cent respectively

Gross new mortgage lending for the Group totalled £29 4 billion (2006 £27 6 oilion) Mortgage balances outstanding
increased by 7 per centto £102 O billion and net new lending totalled £6 7 billion, resulting in a market share of net new lending
of approximately 6 2 per cent

In addition te the strong growth 1n product sales from existing customers, the Group has continued to make progress In
expanding its customer franchise Current account recruitment increased by 17 per cent, compared with last year, supported by
the range of added value current accounts, in particular the Silver Account focusing on foreign nattonals Dunng 2007, the Group
acquired more than 1 million new current account customers

Impairment losses decreased by £14 mullion, or 1 per cent, to £1,224 milion Dunng 2007, there has been a reduction in
the level of customer insolvencies, iImprovements 1n the Group’s coilections procedures and better than assumed recoveries The
quality of new unsecured lending has continued to be strong and arrears and delinquency trends have improved during the year
In addition, the asset qualty of the mortgage poirtfolio has remained excellent While the uncertain UK macroeconomic
environment and customer insolvency trends remain key factors in the outlock for retaill impairment, current lead indicators are
good, underwnting and collecttons procedures continue te improve and the quality of new business remains strong

Profit before tax from Insurance and tnvestments increased by 8 per cent to £1,030 milion There was a 7 per cent
increase tn the present value of new business premiums reflecting, in particular, strong growth 1n the sales of protection products,
corporate pensicns and retirement income products

The value of Scottish Widows' bancassurance new business premiums increased by 20 per cent, bullding on the success of
the simphfied product range for distnbution through the Lloyds TSB branch network, Commercial Banking and Wealth
Management channels Sales through the Independent Financial Adwisors distribution channel increased by 2 per cent, following
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record sales levels in 2006, as Scottish Widows has continued to increase 11s focus on the more profitable business areas within
the IFA market

Insurance and Investments have made continued improvements 1n service and operational efficiencies, and the benefits
¢an be seen i a reduction of expenses by 2 per cent compared with prior year, notwithstanding increased sales volumes and the
introduction of a number of new products In addition, customer satisfaction 1s at its highest ever levels Scottish Widows has
maintained its strong focus on improving capital management During 2007, Scottish Widows continued to show a more capital
efficient product profile and achieve improved internal rates of return Dunng 2007, £1 9 billion of capital was repatnated to the
Group, giving a total capital repatriation of over £3 6 billion since the beginning of 2005

In General Insurance, profit before tax excluding volahhty decreased by £115 mihon to £128 million, largely as a result of
a £113 mullion increase i weather related claims, primarily reflecting severe flooding in the UK in June and July Net operating
income decreased by £16 milhion, or 3 per cent, as growth in home and loan protection income was more than offset by lower
motor INsJrance INCome, Increased reinsurance costs and the run-off from the legacy health porifolio The Group's strong focus on
improving operational efficiency and improving the effectiveness of marketing expendsture has resulted 1n a £3 million, or 2 per
cent, reduction n operating costs, while continuing to improve processing efficiency

Excluding the impact of market dislocation, Wholesale and Intemational Banking pre-tax profits increased by 5 per cent to
£1,717 milhon Income growth of 6 per cent exceeded cost growth of 1 per cent, leading to a significant reduction in the cost
tncome ratio to 50 9 per cent The trading surplus increased by 13 per cent There was further good progress in expanding our
Corporate Markets business, with an 18 per cent increase in Corporate Markets income, supporting a 10 per cent increase
in profit before tax, excluding the impact of market dislocation Cross selling income in Corporate Markets increased by
35 per cent Continued strong franchise growth in Commercial Banking was supported by 8 per cent growth in income and
13 per cent growth in profit before tax The Group has retained its leading position as the bank of choice for start-up businesses
Tightened credit criteria 1n Asset Finance, and a slowdown in demand in the consumer lending portfolio, led to a 47 per cent
reductton n profit before tax

The Wholesale and International Banking charge for impairment losses increased by £264 milhon to £572 mullion,
including a £92 million charge reflecting the impact of market dislocation and a one-cff charge of £28 million relating to the
impact of the 2007 Finance Act on the Group's leasing business The Increase in the impairment charge also reflects the recent
double-digit growth in Corporate lending and a lower level of releases and recovenes in Corporate Markets and Commercial
Banking Overall, asset quality remains satisfactory

Shareholders’ equity Increased by £1,031 million to £13,155 million, fargely as a result of retained earnings
Risk-weighted assets increased 10 per cent to £172 O illion, reflecting strong growth in mortgages and corporate lending At the
end of 2007, the nisk asset ratioc was 11 9 per cent for total capital

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Information regarding the financial nsk management objectives and policies of the Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, in
relation to the use of financial instruments, 15 given 1n note 48 on pages 71 to 90

Directors
The names of the directors of the Bank are shown on page 7

Mr P N Green joined the board on 10 May 2007 and Sir David Manning has been appointed a director from 1 May 2008
Dr DeAnne S Julius and Mr G J N Gemmell left the board on 9 May 2007 and 30 September 2007, respectively

Directors’ interests
The directors are also directors of Lloyds TSB Group plc and their interests in the share and loan capital of Lloyds TS8 Group plc
and 1ts subsidianies are shown In the report and accounts of that company

Directors’ indemnities

The dwectors, including two former directors who left dunng the year, entered into indmdual contracts of indemrity with
Lloyds TSB Group pic which constituted ‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ for the purposes of the Companies Act
1985 These contracts were 1n force dunng the whole of the financial year or from the date of appointment in respect of the
director who joined the board on 10 May 2007 Since the end of the year, and following the introduction of relevant sections of
the Companies Act 2006, rewvised contracts of indemnity were entered into with the directors which conshitute ‘quahfying third
party indemnity provisions’ and ‘qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions’ and these remain in force and are available for
inspection at the Bank's registered office
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have prepared the consolidated and parent company financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company and
the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that pertod The directors consider that, in prepanng the financial statements on
pages 10 to 100, the Bank and the Group have used appropnate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they consider applicable have
been followed

The directors have responsibility for ensunng that the Bank and the Group keep proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Bank and the Group which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS
Regulation They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Bank and the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

A copy of the financial statements 1s placed on the website of Lloyds TSB Group plc The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and mtegrity of statutory and audited information 1n relation to the Bank on that website Information published on
the internet 1s accessible In many countries with different legal requirements Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in ather junsdictions

Employees
The Bank 1s committed to providing employment practices and policies which recognise the diversity of our workforce and
ensure equalty for employees regardless of sex, race, disability, age, sexual orientation or religious belief

In the UK, the Bank belongs to the major employer groups campaigning for equality for the above groups of staff, including
Employers’ Forum on Disability, Employers’ Forum on Age and Stonewall The Bank is also represented on the Board of Race for
Opporturuty and the Equal Opportunittes Commussion  Our involvement with these organisations enables us to identify and
implement best practice for our staff

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through such measures as team meetings, briefings,
internal communications and opiion surveys There are welt established procedures, including regular meetings with recogmised
unions, to ensure that the views of employees are taken nto account in reaching decisions

Schemes offering share options or the acquistion of shares are available for most staff, to encourage their financial
involvement n the Lloyds TSB Group

Policy and practice on payment of creditors
The Bank follows ‘The Better Payment Practice Code' published by the Department for Business, Enterprise and Regulatory
Reform (BERR} regarding the making of payments to suppliers A copy of the code and information about it may be obtained from
The BERR Publications Orderline 0845 0150010, quoting ref URN 04/606

The Bank’s policy 1s ta agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days
after the date of the invoice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 1s the policy of the Bank to abide by the
agreed terms of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of the contract

The number of days required to be shown In this report, to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, 1s 29
This bears the same proportion to the number of days in the year as the aggregate of the amounts owed to trade creditors at
31 December 2007 bears to the aggregate of the amounts invoiced by suppliers dunng the year

Auditors and audit information

Each person who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Bank’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken all steps that he or she ought to
have taken as a director to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Bank's
auditors are aware of that information This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
section 2347A of the Companies Act 1985

On behalf of the board
A J Michie ‘Q‘lnd l '
Secretary

21 February 2008
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Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Lloyds TSB Bank plc

We have audited the consolidated and parent company financial statements (the ‘financial statements’ of Lloyds TSB Bank plc
for the year ended 31 December 2007 which compnse the consolidated income statement, the consoldated and parent
company balance sheets, the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity, the consolidated and parent
company cash flow statements and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsitilities for preparnng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’
responsibilities within the directors’ report

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the
Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do
not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by cur prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the consohidated financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation We als¢ report to you whether, 1 our opinion, the infermation given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the
financial statements

In addition, we report to you If, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’
remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the annual report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited financial
statements The other information compnses only the directors’ report We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur responsibilities do not
extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and Company's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information In the financial statements
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Opinion

In our opinion

s the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

« the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent company's affairs as
at 31 December 2007 and cash flows for the year then ended,

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the
consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, and

r)he informakon giveq In the directors’ report I1s consistent with the financial statements
W

PricewaterhouseCoopers §LP L.L\f
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Southampton

21 February 2008
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Note £ million £ mullion

Interest and similar income 16,874 14,111
Interest and similar expense (10,741) (8,780)
Net interest income 4 6,133 5,331
Fee and commission income 3,227 3,119
Fee and commission expense {600) (638)
Net fee and commission income 5 2,627 2,481
Net trading income 6 3,136 6,331
Insurance premium income 7 5,430 4719
Other operating income 8 952 806
Other income 12,145 14,337
Total income 18,278 19,668
Insurance claims 5 (7,522) (8,569)
Total income, net of insurance claims 10,756 11,09%
Operating expenses 10 (5,528) {5,262)
Trading surplus 5,228 5,837
Impairment 11 (1,796) (1,555)
Profit on sale of businesses 12 657 -
Profit before tax 4,089 4 282
Taxation 13 (673) {1,262)
Profit for the year 3,416 3020
Profit attnbutable to minonty interests 32 104
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 3,384 2916
Profit for the year 3,416 3,020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Balance sheets
at 31 December 2007

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Note £ million £ millon £ milhon £ muhon
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 4,330 1,898 4,211 1,678
Items 1n the course of collection from banks 1,242 1,431 1,156 1,358
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 14 58,096 67,928 9,184 8,819
Derivative financial instruments 15 8,688 5,565 8,624 5,665
Loans and advances to banks 16 34,845 40,638 28,447 86,588
Loans and advances to customers b7 209,814 190,135 212,738 106,576
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 19 20,196 19,178 4,260 3,972
Investment property 20 3,722 4,739 - -
Goodwili .21 2,358 2,377 - 8
Value of in-force business 22 2,218 2,723 - -
Other intangible assets 23 149 138 53 37
Tax recoverable - - 93 2
Deferred tax asset 37 - - 619 861
Tangible fixed assets 24 2,839 4,252 1,235 1,284
Investment 1n subsidiary undertakings 25 - - 16,137 18,527
Other assets 27 5,046 4,662 2,163 1,966
Total assets 353,543 345,664 288,960 237,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
The directors approved the financial statements on 21 February 2008

Sir Victor Blank J Enc Daniels Helen A Werr
Chairman

Chief Executive Finance Director
Ao A L=
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Balance sheets

at 31 December 2007

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note £ million £ rullion £ milhon £ mullion
Equity and habilities
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 28 39,091 36,394 48,940 44,070
Customer accounts 29 156,713 140,767 163,245 127,938
Iterns 1in course of transmission to banks 668 781 613 660
Trading and other liabihities at fair value through profit or loss 30 3,206 1,184 3,206 1,184
Derivative financial instruments 15 7,751 5,877 8,365 6,405
Debt secunties In 1ssue 31 49,828 54,118 36,647 32,719
Liabilhities ansing from insurance contracts and participating
investment contracts 32 38,192 41,602 - -
Liabilities arising from non-participating investment contracts 33 18,197 24,370 - -
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses 34 554 683 - -
Other liabilities 35 9,751 11,034 4,123 3,280
Retirement beneft obligations 36 2,144 2,462 1,623 1,845
Current tax habilities 414 735 - -
Deferred tax habilities 37 949 1,416 - -
Other provisions 38 209 259 165 196
Subordinated liabilities 39 12,437 11,506 11,903 10,281
Totat habihties 340,104 333,188 278,830 228,578
Equity
Share capital 40 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542
Share premiem account 41 2,960 2,960 2,960 2,960
Other reserves 42 (411) (15) {44) 4
Retained profits 43 9,064 7.637 5,672 4,257
Shareholders’ equity 13,155 12,124 10,130 8,763
Minonty interests 284 352 - -
Tota! equity 13,439 12,476 10,130 8,763
Total equity and habilities 353,543 345,664 288,960 237,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity

The Group

Balance at 1 January 2006

Mavement in avallable-for-sale financial

assets, net of tax

~ change in fair value

- transferred to income statement in respect of disposals
Movemnent in cash flow hedges, net of tax

Currency translation differences

Net income recogrnised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for 2006
Dividends
Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2006

Movernent 1n avallable-for-sale financial

assets, net of tax

— change in fair value

- transferred to income statement 1n respect of disposals
— transferred to income statement in respect of impairment
— disposal of businesses

Moverment 1n cash flow hedges, net of tax

Currency translation differences

Net income recognised-directly In equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for 2007
Dividends
Repayment of capital to mmority shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2007

Attributable to equity shareholders

Share
capital
and Other  Retained Minority
premium reseqves profits Total Interests Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
4,502 44 6,639 11,185 435 11,620
- (10) - {10) - (10)
- (21) - {21) - (21)
- 1 - 1 - 1
- (29) - {29) {4) (33)
- (59) - (59 {4) (63)
- - 2816 2916 104 3,020
- (59 2,916 2,857 100 2,957
- - {1,918 (1,918) (32} (1,950)
- - - - (151) (151)
4,502 {15y 7,637 12,124 362 12,476
- (436) - (436) - (436)
-~ (5} - (5) - (5)
- 49 - 49 - 49
- (6) - {(6) - (6)
- (15) - (15) - (15)
- 17 - 17 (1) 16
- {396) - (396) (1) (397)
- - 3,384 3,384 3z 3416
- (396) 3,384 2,988 31 3,019
- - {1,957) (1,857) (19) (1,976}
- - - - (80) (80)
4,502 (411) 9,064 13,155 284 13,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Statement of changes in equity

The Bank Attributable to equity shareholders
Share
capital and Other Retained
premium reserves profits Total
£m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2006 4,502 55 3,726 8,283
Movement in available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
~ change in fair value - {7} - (7)
- transferred to iIncome statement In respect of disposals - (22) - {22)
Movement 1n cash flow hedges, net of tax - 1 - 1
Currency translation differences - (23) - (23)
Net income recogrised directly in equity - {51} - (51)
Profit for the year - - 2,449 2,449
Total recognised income for 2006 - 51 2,449 2,398
Dividends - - (1,918) {1,918)
Balance at 31 December 2006 4 502 4 4,257 8,763
Movement 1n available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax
— change In fair value - (84) - {84)
— transferred to 1ncome statement in respect of disposals - (5) - (5)
~ transferred to income statement in respect of impairment - 49 - 49
— disposal of busingsses - (6) - (6)
Movement 1n cash flow hedges, net of tax - (15) - (15)
Currency translation differences - 13 - 13
Net income recognised directly in equity - {48) - (48)
Profit for the year - - 2,799 2,799
Total recognised income for 2007 - (48) 2,799 2,751
Dividends - - (1,957) {1,957)
Adjustment ansing on transfer of C&G business (note 26) - - 573 573
Balance at 31 December 2007 4,502 44) 5,672 10,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006

Note £ million £ million £ mithon £ mullion
Profit before tax 4,089 4,282 3,256 2,730
Adjustments for
Change in operating assets 51a (15,113} (32,194) (13,548) (21,601)
Change 1n operating habilities 51b 18,607 34,164 19,443 21,939
Non-cash and other items 51c 2,689 1,632 757 (155}
Tax pad {827) (844) (273) (231)
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,445 7,040 9,635 2,682
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (21,667) {23,448) (8,197) {9,917)
Proceeds from sale and matunty of available-for-sale
financial assets 19,468 18,106 8,022 10,353
Purchase of fixed assets (1,334) (1,724) (300) (312)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 982 1257 44 28
Additional capital injections to subsidianes - - (313) {2,444)
Capital repayments by subsidiarnes - - 977 3
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 51f {8) (20) (18} (8)
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed 51g 1,476 936 518 936
Net cash (used in) generated by investing activities {1,083) (4,893} 733 {1,361)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (1,957) (1,918) (1,957) (1,918)
Dividends paid to minonty interests 5le (19) (32) - -
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (733) (704) (695) (619)
Proceeds from i1ssue of subordinated habilities 5le 1,098 - 1,098 -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities 5le (300) (509) {300) (509)
Repayment of capital to minorty shareholders 51e (80) {151) - -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,991} (3,314) (1,854) (3,046)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 82 (148) 78 {147)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 6,453 {1,315} 8,592 (1,872}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25,438 26,753 15,435 17,307
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 51d 31,891 25,438 24,027 15,435

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lioyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internatignal Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) IFRS
comprises accounting standards prefixed IFRS 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and those prefixed 1AS 1ssued by the IASB's
predecessor body as well as interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body The EU endorsed
version of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement relaxes some of the hedge accounting requirements, the Group has not taken advantage of
this relaxation, and therefore there 1s no difference in application to the Group between |IFRS as adopted by the EU and IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB

The financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financral
assets, trading secunties and certain other financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss and all denvative contracts

The following relevant IFRS pronouncements have been adopted in these financial statementis

(n IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ This standard, which was effective from 1 January 2007, requires more detalled qualitative and quantitative
disclosures about exposure to nsks ansing from financial nstruments As a disclosure standard, the application of this new standard has not had any impact on
amounts recognised in the financial statements The IFRS 7 disclosures are set out in these financial statements IFRS 7 supersedes |AS 30 ‘Disclosures in the
Financial Statements of Banks and Simiar Financial Institutions’ and the disclosure requirements previously contained in IAS 32 ‘Financial nstruments
Presentationy

{n) Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures’ This standard, which was effective from 1 January 2007, requires additional
disclosures of the abjectives, policies and processes for managing capital, quantitative data about what the Group regards as capital, and comphance with capital
requirements These disclosures are set out In note 49

Detalls of those IFRS pronouncements which will be relevant to the Group and the Bank but which were not effective at 31 Decermnber 2007 and which have not been
applied 1n prepanng these financial statements are given 1n nate 52

The accounting policies are set out below

a Consolidation

The assets, liabilities and resuits of Group undertakings (including special purpose entities) are included in the financial statements on the basis of accounts made up
to the reporting date Group undertakings include all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies which genezally
accompanies a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts The existence and effect of potential voling nights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity Group undertakings are fully consclidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to
the Group, they are de-consclidated from the date that control ceases Open Ended Investment Companies {OEICs} where the Group, through the Group’s Iife funds,
has a controlling interest are consolidated, the unitholders’ interest 1s reported in other habiliies Intra-Group transactions balances and unreahsed gains and losses
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

b Goodwili

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilites of the
acquired entity at the date of acquisition Goodwill is recogrised as an asset at cost and (s tested at least annually for impairment If an impairment 1s 1dentified the
carrying value of the goedwill 1s wnitten down immediately through the inceme staternent and 1s not subsequently reversed At the date of disposal of a Group
undertaking, the carrying value of atinbutable goodwill i1s included In the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal except where it has been written off directly to
reserves In the past

¢ Cther intangible assets

Other intangible assets compnse capitalised sottware enhancements and customer lists Capitalised software enhancements are amortised over periods not exceeding
five years, being their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method Customer lists are amortised over penods not exceeding 15 years, being their estimated
useful Iwes, mn hne with the income expected to anse from those custorners and are subject to annual reassessment All other intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or any changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable In the event that an asset’s carrying amount
15 deterrmined to be greater than its recoverable amount, 1t 1s written down immedately

d Revenue recognition

Interest income and expense are recognised In the Income statement for all interest-beanng financial instruments, except for those classified at fair value through profit
or loss, using the effective interest method The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability and of allocating
the interest income ar Interest expense The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
Iife of the instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter penod, to the net carrying amouni of the financial asset or financral liability The effective interest rate 1s
calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or rability, estimating the future cash flows after considenng all the contractual terms of the instrument but not
future credit losses The calculation includes all amounis paid or receved by the Group including expecied early redemptions and related penalties and premiums and
discounts that are an integral part of the overall return as well as direct incremental transaction costs related to the acquisition 1ssue or disposal of a financial
instrument Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been wnitten down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income 1s recognised USINg
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measunng the impairment loss (see )

Fees and commissions which are not an integral par of the effective interest rate are generally recogrised when the service has been provided Loan commitment fees
for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred {together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loan package for itself of retains a part
at the same effective interest rate for all inierest-bearing financral instruments, including loans and advances as for the other participants

Dividend income 1s recogmsed when the nght to receive payment is established

Revenue recognition policies specific to hife assurance and general snsurance business are detalled below (see s)
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies (continued)

e Trading secunties, other financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunties and equity shares acquired principally for the purpose of selling sn the shert term or which are part of a pertfolie which 1s managed for short-term gains
are classified as tracding secuniies and recognised in the balance sheet at therr fair value Gains and losses anising from changes in their faw value together with inerest
coupons and dividend income are recognised 1n the income statement within net trading income i the penod in which they occur

Other financial assets and lrabilities at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such by management upon initial recognition Such assets and habihties are
carried tn the balance sheet at therr fair value and gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value together with interest coupons and dividend incorme are
recogrised in the income statement within net trading income 1n the period 1in which they occur

Financiat assets and liabifities are designated as at fair value through profid or foss on acquisition
« When doing so results in more relevant information because erther

— 1t ehminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise anse from measuring the assefs and liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on them an a different basis, or

— the assets and liabilities are part of a group which 1s managed, and its perforrmance evaluated, on a fair value basis In accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy with management information also prepared on this basis, or

« Where the assets and habilities contain one or more embedded derwvatives that significantly modify the cash flows ansing under the contract and would otherwise
need to be separately accounted for

The fair values of assets and liabilities traded 1n active markets are based on current bid and offer prices respectively If the market is not active the Group establishes a
fair value by using valuation techniques These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and othar valuation techniques commonly used by market participants

Debt securities and equsty shares, other than those classified as trading secunties or at far value through profit or loss, are classified as available for-sale and
recognised in the balance sheet at therr far value, availabte for-sale investmenis are those intended to be held for an indeterminate period of time and may be sold 1n
response 1o needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of investments
classified as available-for-sale are recogmsed directly in equity, until the financial asset 1s erther sold, becomes impaired or matures at which time the cumulative
gatn or loss previously recognised in equity 1s recognised 1n the income statement  Interest calculated using the effective interest method 1s recognised in the income
statement

Purchases and sales of secunities and other financial assets and liabilites are recognised on trade date, being the date that the Group 1s commiited to purchase or sell
an asset Trading secursties and other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are inhally recogrused at fair value Available-for-sale financial
assets are initially recogmised at far vatue inclusive of transaction costs These financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recerve cash flows from the
financtal assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership

f Loans and advances to banks and customers

Loans and advances to banks and customers are accounted for at amertised cost using the effective interest method, except those which the Group intends to sell in
the near term and which are accounted for at fair value, with the gains and losses ansing from changes in therr fair value reflected 1n the income statement Loans and
advances are Initially recognised when cash 1s advanced to the borrowers at fair value inclusive of transaction costs Loans and advances are derecognised when the
nights to receive cash flows fram them have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership

The Group has entered into secuniisation and similar fransactions to finance certain loans and advances to customers Such financial assets coniinue to be recognised
by the Group, together with a corresponding hability for the funding except in those cases where substantially all of the nsks and rewards associated with the assets
have been transferred or a significant proportion but not all of the nsks and rewards have been transferred and the transferee has the abiity to sell the assets when the
assets are derecognised in full 1 a fully proportional share of all, or of specifically identified, cash flows have been transferred, then that proportion of the assets 15
derecognised

4

g Sale and repurchase agreements

Secunties sold subject to repurchase agreements { repos’) are recognised on the balance sheet where all of the nsks and rewards are retained, the counterparty
liability 15 included in deposits from banks or customer accounts, as appropriate Securities purchased under agreements to resell {‘reverse repos’} are recorded as
loans and advances to banks or cusiomers, as appropnate The difference between sale and repurchase price 1s treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method

Secunties lent fo counterparties are retained in the financial statements Secunities borrowed ate not recognised n the financial staterments, unless these are sold {o
third parties, in which case the obligation to return them 15 recorded at fair value as a trading liabilty

h Denvative financial mstruments and hedge accounting

All denvatives are recognised at therr fair value Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and using
valuation techriques, including discounted cash flow and options pricing models, as approprate Derivatives are carried in the balance sheet as assets when their fair
value 15 positive and as habiliies when their fair value 1s negative

The method of recognising the movements in the fair value of the derivatives depends on whether they are designated as hedging instruments and, if so the nature of
the item being hedged Derivatives may only be designated as hedges provided certain stnict critena are met At the inception of a hedge its terms must be clearly
documented and there must be an expectation that the denvative will be highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flow of the hedged nsk The
effectiveness of the hedging relationshup must be tested throughout 1ts Iife and if at any point it 1s concluded that it 1s no longer highly effective 1n achieving its objective
the hedge relationship 1s terminated

The Group designates certain derivatives as either (1) hedges of the fair value of the interesi rate nsk inherent n recogmsed assets or abilities (fair value hedges),
(2) hedges of highly probabte future cash flows attnbutable to recognised assets or labifities (cash flow hedges), or (3) hedges of net investments in foreign operations
(net investment hedges) These are accounted for as follows
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies (continued)

(1) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded 1n the income statement, together with the changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value
atributable te the hedged nisk are no longer recognised in the incame statement, the adjustment that has been made to the carrying amount of a hedged item is
amortised 1o the income stalement over the period to maturity

{2) Cash flow hedges

The effective portian of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualdfy as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity The gain or loss relating o
the ineffective portion 1s recognised rmmed:ately in the income staterent Amounts accumulated 1n equity are recycled to the income statement in the penods in
which the hedged item affects profit or loss When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ultmately recognised in the income
statemnent When a forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to cccur, the cumulative gain or (oss that was reported in equity s immediately transferred to the income
staternent

{3) Net mvestment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating 1o the effective
portion of the hedge 1s recognised in equity, the gain or loss relating to the imeffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the inceme statement Gains and losses
accumulated 1n equity are included in the income statement when the foreign operation 1s disposed of

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that 1s not part of a hedging relationship are recogmised immediately in the iIncome staterment

Dervatives embedded in financial instruments and insurance contracts (unless the embedded derivative 1s itself an insurance contract) are treated as separate
denvatives when their economic charactenstics and risks are not closely refated to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not carried at fair value through
profit or loss These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the iIncome statement {n accordance with IFRS 4 a
policyholder’s option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixed amount 1s not treated as an embedded denvative

1 Offset

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right of set-off and there is an intention
to seftle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settte the liabity simultaneously

| Impairment of financtal assets

{1} Assets accounted for at amortised cost

At each balance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of one or more events occurring after initial recognition, there 15 objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets has become mpaired

The cnteria that the Group uses to determine that there 1s objective evidence of an impairment loss may include
= Belinquency in ¢contractual payments of principal and/or interest,

- Indications that the borrower or group of borrowers 1s experencing significant financial difficulty,

« Restructuning of debt to reduce the burden on the borrower,

» Breach of lcan covenants or conditions, and

» Inihiation of bankruptcy proceedings

The estimated penod between a loss cccurning and its identification 1s determined by local management for each identified portfolio In general, the periods used vary
between three months and nine months

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred an allowance is established which 1s calcutated as the difference between the baiance sheet
carrying value of the asset and the present vatue of estimated future cash flows discounted at that asset’s onginal effective interest rate For the Group’s portfolios of
smaller balance homogenous loans, such as the residential morigage, personal lending and credit card portfolios, allowances are calculated for groups of assets
taking into account histonical cash flow experience For the Group's other lending portfolias, allowances are established on a case-by-case basis !f an asset has a
vanable nterest rate, the discount rate used for measuning the impairment loss 1s the current effective interest rate The catculation of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of a callateralised asset or group of assets reflects the cash flows that may resuit from foreclosure less the costs of obtaining and selling the
coltateral, whether or not foreclosure 1S probable

tf there 1s no objective evidence of individual impairment the asset 1s included 1n a group of financial assets with similar credit sk characteristics and collectively
assessed for impairment Segmentation takes into account such factors as the type of asset, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other
relevant factors These charactenistics are relevant to the estimation of future cash ffows for groups of such assets as they are indicative of the borrower's ability to pay
all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated Future cash flows are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the
assets in the Group and historical loss experience for assets with similar credit nsk characteristics Historical loss expenence 1s adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience 1s based and to remaove the effects of
conditions in the histonical period that do not exist currently The methodalogy and assurmptiens used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group te reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss expenence

If, n a subsequent pericd, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurning after the 1mpairment was
recogrised, such as an improvement in the borrower's credit rating, the allowance is adjusted and the amount of the reversal 1s recogrised 1n the income statement

A loan or advance s normally written off, enther partially or in full against the related allowance when the proceeds from realising any available secuniy have been
received or there is no realistic prospect of recovery (as a result of the customer's insolvency, ceasing to trade or other reason) and the amount of the loss has been
deterrmined Subsequent recovenes of amounts previousty written off decrease the amount of impairment losses recorded in the income statement
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Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies (continued}

(2) Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that an available-for sale financial asset s impaired In addition to the cntena for
financial assets accounted for at amortised cost set out above, this assessment involves considenng whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the asset below its cast, reviewing the current financial ¢ircumstances (including crediworthiness) and future prospects of the 1ssuer and assessing the
future cash flows expected to be realised If an impairment loss has been incurred, the curnulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cast (net of
any prnincipal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised, is removed from equity and
recognised (n the income statement i, in a subsequent period, the fawr value of a debt instrument classified as avarlable-for-sale increases and the increase can be
chjectively related to an event occurning after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment less 1s reversed through the income statement Impairment lesses
recognised In the income statement on equuty Instruments are not reversed through the income statement

(3) Renegotiated loans
Loans that are either subject to ¢oltective impairment assessmen? or individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered o be
past due but are treated as new loans In subsequent years, the asset Is considered to be past due and disclosed only if further renegotiated

k Investment property

Property held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation within the long-term assurance funds 15 classified as investment property Investment property
compnses freehold and long leasehold fand and buildings and 1s carmed in the balance sheet at farr value being the open market value as deterrmined in accordance
with the guidance published by the Royal Instrtution of Chartered Surveyors [f this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
discounted cash flow projections or recent pnces on less active markets These valuations are reviewed at least annually by an independent valuation expert
Investment property being redevetoped for continunng use as investment property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair
value Changes in fair values are recorded in the income statement

| Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less depreciation The value of land {included in premises) 15 not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the difference between the cost and the residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Premises {excluding land)

- Freehold/long and short leasehold premises shorter of 50 years or the remaiming penod of the lease
— Leasehold improvements shorter of 10 years or the remaining perwod of the lease

Equipment
— Fixtures and furmishings 10-20 years
— Other equipment and motor vehicles 2-8 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amourt may not be recoverable In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount 15 determined te be greater than its recoverable amount it s wntten down immediately The recoverable amount is the higher cf the asset s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use

m Leases

(1) As /essee

The leases entered into by the Group are primanlty operating leases Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease

When an operating [ease 1s terminated before the end of the lease perod, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty i1s recognised as an expense in the period
of termination

{2) As lessor

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases if the lease agreements transfer substanttally all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, all other
leases are classified as operating leases When assets are subject to finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s recognised as a receivable withun loans
and advances to banks and customers Finance Jease income 1s recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax) reflecting a
constant pernodic rate of return

Operating lease assets are included within tangible fixed assets at cost and depreciated over the Iife of the lease after laking into account anticipated residual values
Operating lease rental income 1S recogmised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease

The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and similar contracts to deterrnine if they contain a lease which 1S then accounted for separately

n Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Investments 1n subsidiaries are carried at historical cost, less any provisions for tmpairment

o Borrowings
Borrowings (which include deposits from banks, customer accounts, debt secunties in 1ssue and subordinated habilities) are recognised wnitially at fair value, being
their 1ssue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Preference shares and other instruments which carry a mandatory coupon or are redeemable on a specific date are classified as financial habilities The coupon on
these instruments 1s recogrised n the income statement as snterest expense

p Penstons and other post reirement benefits
The Group operates a number of post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans A defined
benefit scheme 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement dependent on one or more factors such as
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

age, years of service and salary A defined contribution plan 1s a pension plan into which the Group pays fixed contnibutions, there 1s no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further contnbutions

Full actuana! valuations of the Group's principal defined benefit schemes are carned out every three years with intenm reviews n the intervening years, these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by gualified independent actuanes, or in the case of the Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a
qualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows Far the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme habilities are
measured on an actuaral basis using the projected unit credit method adjusted for unrecognised actuanal gains and losses The defined benefit scheme habilities are
discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds that are densminated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension habihity

The Group's income statement includes the current service cost of providing pension benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected
administration costs, and the interest cost on the schemes’ habihties Actuariai gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes 1n actuanal
assumptions are not recognised unfess the cumulative unrecognised gain or loss at the end of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10 per cent of the
scheme assets or habilities ('the corndor approach’) In these circumsiances the excess I1s charged or credited to the income statement over the employees’ expected
average remaining working lives Past service costs are charged immediately to the income statement, unless the charges are conditional on the employees rema:ning
in service for a specified period of time {the vesting penod) In thus case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

The Group's balance sheet includes the net surplus or deficit, being the fair value of scheme assets tess the discounted value of scheme habilities adjusted for the
cornidor  Surpluses are only recognised {o the extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Group recognises the effect of material changes to the terms of its defined benefit pension plans which reduce future benefits as curtallments, gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the curtalments occur

The costs of the Group's defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the peried in which they fall due

q Share-based compensation

The Lloyds TSB Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans The value of the employee services received In exchange for equity
nstruments granted under these ptans 15 recognised as an expense over the vesting peried of the instruments, with a correspanding increase In equity except where
the charge i1s levied by the parent company This expense 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest
The fair value of equity instruments granted s based on market prices, i available, ai the date of grant [n the absence of market prices the fair value of the
nsiruments at the date of grant 1s estimated using an appropnate valuation technigue such as a Black-Scholes option pricing model The determination of fair values
excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions, which are included in the assumptions used to estimate the number of options that are expected 1o vest At
each balance sheet date this estimate 1s reassessed and if necessary revised Any revision of the original estimate is recogrised it the income statement over the
remaining vesting period

t Taxation
Current income tax which 1s payable on taxable profits I1s recognised as an expense n the period 1in which the profits arise

For the Group's long-term assurance businesses, the tax charge 1s analysed between tax that 1s payable in respect of policyholders’ returns and tax that 1s payable on
equity holders' returns This allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be apphied to the returns under current UK tax rules

Deferred tax 15 provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and llabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements However, deferred income tax 1s not accounted for if it anses from initial recogrition of an asset or liability 1n a transaction other
than a business combination that a1 the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax 15 determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 15 realised or the deferred tax lability
15 settled

Deferred 1ax assets are recognised where it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utihsed Deferred tax
1s provided on temporary differences ansing from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Income tax payable on profits 1s recognised as an expense in the
peried in which those profits anse The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when (t1s probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable against which these losses can be utiised Deferred tax related to fair value re measurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to equity, 15 also credited or charged directly to equity and 1s subsequently recognised in the income statement 1ogether with the
deferred gain or loss

Deferred and current tax assets and habilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there 1s both a legal night of offset and the intention
to settle on a net basis or o realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

s Insurance
The Group underiakes both life assurance and general insurance business

For accounting purposes the life assurance business issues three types of contract

Insurance contracts — these contracts contain significant insurance nisk, which the Group defines as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were net to cccur

Investment contracts contatning a discrebonary participation feature — these contracts do not contain significant insurance nisk, but contain features which entitie the
holder to receive, in addition to the guaranteed benefits, further amounts that are hkely to be a sigruficant proportion of the total benefits and the amount and timing of
which 1s at the discretion of the Group and based upon the performance of specified assets Contracts with a discretionary participation feature are referred o as
participating investment contracts

Non-participating investment contracts — these contracts do not contain significant insurance risk of a discretionary pariicipation feature
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For accounting purposes the general insurance business only 1ssues insurance contracts

(1) Life assurance busiess

(1) Accounting for insurance and participaling investment contracts

Premiums and claims

Premiums received In respect of insurance and participating investment contracts are recognised as revenue when due, except as detalled below in respect of
unit-linked contracts

Claims are recorded as an expense when they are incurred

Lizbiites

—insurance or participating investment contracts mn the Group’s With Profit Fund ,

Liabiliies of the Group's With Profit Fund, including guarantees and options embedded within products wtten by that fund, are stated at thair realistic values in
accordance with the Financial Services Authonty's realistic capdtal regme  Further details on the realistic capital regime are given in note 49

- insurance or participaling investment contracts which are not unit-inked or in the Group's With Profit Fund

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future 15 recorded when the premiums are recognised The liability 1s calculated by estimating
the future cash flows over the duration of in-force policies and discounting them back 1o the vatuation date aliowing for probabilities of occurrence The liability will
vary with movements in Interest rates and with the cost of life assurance and annuity benefits where future mortality 1s uncertain Assumptions are made n respect of
all material factors affecting future cash flows, including future interest rates, mortahty and costs

— insurance or participating mvestment contracts which are unit-linked

Allocated premiums in respect of unit-linked contracts that are either insurance or participating investment contracts are recognised as liabilities These liabilities are
increased or reduced by the change in the unit prices and are reduced by policy administrabon fees mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals The
mertality charges deducted in each period from the policyholders as a group are considered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims 1n excess of the
contract account balances in each period and hence no additional habiiity 1s estabhshed for these claims Revenue consists of fees deducted for mortality, policy
administration and surrender charges Interest or changes In the unit prices credited to the account batances and excess benefit claims In excess of the account
balances incurred in the period are charged as expenses !n the income statement

Unalfocated surplus
Any amounts in the With Profit Fund not yet determined as being due to policyholders are recognised as an unallocated surplus which is shown separately from other
habilities

Value of n force business

The Group recognises as an asset the value of in-force business in respect of Iife insurance and participating investment contracts The asset represents the present
value of the shareholders' interest in the profits expected to emerge from those contracts written at the balance sheet date This 1s determined using appropnate
allowance for economic conditions and appropriate assumptions for future mortality rates and future persistency rates, making allowance for the realistic value of
financial options and guarantees Each cash fiow 15 valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to suich a cash flow in the capital markets, including an
exphcit allowance for non-market nsk The asset in the consolidated balance sheet s presented gross of attributable tax and movements in the asset are reflected
within other operating iIncome In the income statement

(n) Accounting for non-participating investment contracts
All of the Group’s non-participating investment contracts are unit hnked These centracts are accounted for as financial labilities whose value 1s contractually linked to
the fair values of financial assets within the Group's unitised investment funds The value of the unit-linked financial labilities 1s determined using current unit prices
multiplied by the number of units attnbuted to the contract helders at the balance sheet date Their value (s never less than the amount payable on surrender,
discounted for the required notice pencd where applicable

Deposits and withdrawals are accounted for directly in the balance sheet as adjustments to the Lability

The Group receives investment management fees in respect of services rendered In conjunction with the 1ssue and management of invesiment contracts where the
Group actively manages the consideration recerved from its customers o fund a return that 1s based on the investment profile that the customer selected on onigination
of the instrument  These services comprise an indeterminate number of acts over the lives of the indwvidual contracts and, therefore, the Group defers these fees and
recognises thern on a straight-ine basis over the estimated lives of the contracts

Directly incremental commussions that vary with and are related to either secuning new or renewing existing non-participating investment contracts are deferred, all
other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred This asset 1s subsequently amoruised over the penod of the provision of investment management services and
15 reviewed for impawrment in circumstances where Its carrying amount may not be recoverable [f the asset I1s greater than its recoverable amount it I1s writen down
immediately

(2) General insurance busmness

The Group both underwrites and acts as intermedary in the sale of general Insurance products Underwniting premiums are included, net of refunds, 1n the peried In
which insurance cover 1s provided to the customer, premiums received relating to future periods are deferred and only credited 1o the income statement when earned
Broking commission 1s recognised when the underwriter accepts the nisk of praviding insurance cover ta the customer Where approprate, provision 1s made for the
effect of future policy terminations based upon past expenience

The underwriting business makes provision for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date The
provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled (s based upen a best estimate of the cost of settling the outstanding claims after taking into account all known
facts In those cases where there 1s insufficient information to determine the required provision, statistical techriques are used which take into account the cost of
claims that have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases Similar statistical techniques are used to
deterrmune the prowvision for claimns incurred but not reported at the batance sheet date Claims habilities are not discounted
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(3) Liabiity adequacy test

At each balance sheet date hability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance and participating investment contract labilities net of related
deferred tax assets and acquired value of in-force business In performing these tests current best estimates of discounted future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and adminisiration expenses as well as wnwestment income from the assets backing such habilities, are used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to profit
or loss by establishing a provision for tosses ansing from hability adequacy tests

(4) Remnsurance

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which the
contract holder 1s another insurer {inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts

The benefits to which the Group 1s entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits anising under the related reinsured insurance contracts
Amounts recoverable from or due to remnsurers are measured consistently with the amounis associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with
the terms of each reinsurance contract and are regularly reviewed for impairment Remsurance habilities are primanly premiums payable for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense when due

t Foreign currency translation

{1) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates {‘the functional currency’) These financial statements are presented in sterling, which 1s the Bank's functional and presentation currency

(2) Transactiorrs and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow or net investment hedges Non-monetary assets that
are measured at farr value are translated using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was getermined Translanon diffarences on equities and similar
non-monetary items measured at fair vatue are recogrised in profit or lass, except for differences an available-for-sale non-monetary financial assets such as equity
shares, which are included In the fair value reserve In equity unless the asset 1s a hedged item 1n a fair value hedge

(3) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hypennflationary economy} that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

(1} income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average s not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevaling on the transaction dates, 1 which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

{in) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of eguity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to shareholders’ equity When a foreign operation
1s sold, such exchange differences are recognised 1n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwilt and fair vatue adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habiities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate

u Provisions
Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations ansing from past events where 1t 1s probable that outflows of resources will be reguired 1o settle the
obhgations and they can be reliably estimated

The Group recognises provisions In respect of vacant leasehold property where the unavaidable costs of the present obligations exceed anticipated rental income

Contingent labilities are possible obligations whose existence depends on the cutcome of ungertain future events or those present obligations where the outflows of
resources are uncertain or cannot be measured rehably Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote

v Dividends
Dvidends on ardinary shares are recognised in equity in the pened in which they are paid

w Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and non-mandatory balances with central banks and amounts due from banks
with a matunty of less than three months

2 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The prepatation of financial staterents requires management fo make judgements, estimates and assurphons that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported 1n {uture penods may be based upon amounts which differ from
those estimates Estimates, Judgements and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the penod in which the estimate 1s
revised and 1n any fuiure penods affected The accounting policies deermed critical to the Group's results and financial position, based upon matenality and sigmificant
Judgements and estumates, are discussed below
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Impairment of financial assets

Loan impairment affowances

The Group regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess for impairment Impairment allowances are established to recognise incurred impairment losses in 1ts loan
portfolios carned at amortised cost In determiming whether an impairment has occurred at the balance sheet date the Group considers whether there 15 any
observable data indicating thai there has been a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows or their timings, such chservable data includes whether there
has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or changes in economic conditions that correlate with defaults on loan repayment obhigations Where
this 1s the case, the impairment loss 1s the difference between the carrying value of the loan and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
loan’s onginal effective interest rate

At 31 December 2007 gross loans and advances to customers and banks totalled £247,067 million (2006 £232,967 million) against which tmpairment
altowances of £2 408 million (2006 £2,194 milhon) had been made

There are two components of the Group's loan iImparrment allowances indivwidual and collective  All impaired loans which exceed a certain threshold, principatly
within the Group's corparate banking business, are individually assessed for impairmens having regard to expected future cash flows including those that could arise
from the realisation of secunty The determination of these allowances often requires the exercise of considerable judgement by management involving matters such
as local economic conditions and the resulting trading perfermance of the customer and the value of the secunty held, for which there may not be a readily accessible
market The actual amouni of the future cash flows and their iming may differ significantty from the assumptions made for the purposes of determining the
impairment alowances and consequently these allowances can be subject 1o vaniation as time progresses and the circumstances of the customer become clearer

Impairment allowances for portfolios of smaller balance homogenous loans, such as residential mortgages. personal loans and credit card balances that are betow the
indiwvidual assessment thresholds, and for loan losses that have been incurred but not separately identified at the balance sheet date, are determined on a collective
basis Collective impairment allowances are calculated on a portfolio basis using formulae which take into account factors such as the length of time that the
customer’s account has been out of order, historical loss rates, the credit quality of the portfolios and the value of any security held The variables used in the formulae
are kept under regular review to ensure that as far as possible they reflect current economic circumstances, however changes i interest rates, unemployment levels
and bankruptcy trends, particularly tn the UK, could result in actual losses differing from reported impairment allowances

Impairment of avallable-for-sale financial assets

In determmming whether an impairment 10ss has been incurred 1n respect of an available-for-sale financial asset, the Group performs an objective review of the current
financial circumstances and future prospects of the 1ssuer and considers whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that asset below
its cost  This consideration requires management judgement Among factors considered by the Group s whether the dechine in fair value 1s a result of a change in the
quality of the asset or from a downward movement in the market as a whaole An assessment is performed of the expected future cash flows expected to be realised
from the asset, taleng into account, where appropnate, the quality of underlying secunties and credit protection availlable The movement in available-for sale
financial assets 15 shown in note 19 The reduction in the fair value of avaiable-for-sale financiat assets duning the year was £483 million (2006 £1C rmllion)
Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale financial assets transferred from reserves to the Income statement {otalled £70 muillion (2006 £nil)

Pensions

The net hability recognised in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007 in respect of the Group's retirement beneft obligations was £2,144 million
(2006 £2 462 mullon} of which £2,033 million (2006 £2,362 million} related to defined benefit pension schemes This liability excludes actuarial gains of
£1,350 million (2006 £263 million) which the Group 1s permitied to leave unrecognised The defined benefit pension schemes’ gross deficit totalled £683 million
(2006 £2,099 million} representing the difference between the schemes’ lrabilities and the fair value of the related assets at the balance sheet date

The schemes’ liabilities are calculated using the projected unit credit method, which takes intc account projected earnings increases, using aciuarial assumptions that
give the best estimate of the future cash flows that will anse under the scheme liabilities The resulting estimated cash flows are discounsed at a rate equivalent to the
market yield at the balance sheet date on high quahty bonds with a similar duration and currency to the schemes’ llabilities In order 1o esttmate the future cash flows,
a number of financial and non-financial assumptions are made by management changes io which could have a matenal impact upen the overall deficit or the net
cost recognised n the income statement

Two important assumptions are the rate of inflation and the expected lifetime of the schemes' members The assumed rate of inflation affects the rate at which salaries
are projected to grow and therefore the size of the pension that employees receive upon retirement and also the rate at which pensions (in payment increase Over
the longer term rates of inflation can vary significantly, at 31 December 2007 1t was assumed that the rate of inflaton would be 3 3 per cent per annum
(2006 29 per cent), although  this was increased by O 2 per cent the overall deficit would increase by approxsmately £550 million and the annual cost
by approximately £20 milhon A reduction of 02 per cent would reduce the overall deficit by apprexmately £500 million and the annual cost by
approximately £40 mullion

The cost of the benefits payable by the schernes will also depend upon the longevity of the members Assumptions are made regarding the expected lifetime of
scheme members based upon recent experience, however given the rates of advance in medical science and increasing levels of obesity, 1t is uncertain whether they
will ultimately reflect actual expenence An increase of one year n the expected lifetime of scheme members would increase the overall deficit by approxmatety
£400 rillion and the annual cost by approximately £30 milion, a reduction of one year would reduce the overalt deficit by approximately £400 mithon and ithe
annual cost by approximately £40 mullion

The size of the overall deficit s also sensitive to changes In the discount rate, which is affected by market conditions and therefore potentially subject to significant
vanations At 31 December 2007 the discount rate used was 5 8 per cent (2006 5 1 per cent), a reduction of O 2 per cent would increase the overall deficit by
approximately £550 mullion and the annual cost by approximately £15 million, while an increase of 0 2 per cent would reduce the net deficit by approximately
£550 milhion and the annual cost by approximately £40 million

Goodwill
At 31 December 2007 the Group carned goodwill on its balance sheet totalling £2,358 million (2006 £2,377 million), substantially all of which relates to
acquisstions made a number of years ago
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The Group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes (n economic circumstances indicate that impairment may have taken
place The impawrment review 1S performed by projecting future cash flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and making appropnate
assumptions about rates of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into account prevaling market interest rates and the nisks mherent in the business
the present vatue of the projected cash flows 1s less than the carrying value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill an impairment charge 1s required in the
income statement This calcutation requires the exercise of significant judgement by management, if the estimates made prove to be incarrect or performance does
not meet expectations which affects the amount and tming of future cash flows, goodwill may become wmpaired in future periods

Insurance

Life assurance business

The Group carrnes 1n its balance sheet an asset representing the value of in-force busingss in respect of life insurance and participating investment contracts of
£2,218 million at 31 December 2007 (2006 £2,723 million) This asset, which 1s presented gross of attnbutable tax, represents the present value of future profits
expected to anise from the portfolio of in-force e insurance and participating investment contracts This s determuned using appropnate allowance for economic
conditions and appropnate assumptions for future mortahty rates and future persistency rates, making allowance for the reabstic value of financial options and
guarantees Each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied te such a cash flow in the capital markets, including an explicit allowance for
non market nsk These factors are inherently uncertain If actual expenence differs from that assumed this could significantly affect the value attnbuted The process
for determiming key assumptions that have been made at 31 December 2007 1s detailed in nate 22

At 31 Decemnber 2007 the Group also carned substanbal liabilities to holders of Ife insurance policies in its balance sheet The methedology used o value the
llamhties 1s descnbed in nete 1 (s) (1) Liabilities ansing from insurance contracis and participating investment contracts were £22,655 million and £14,874 million
respectivety (2006 £25,920 millon and £15,095 million) and ihose arising from non-pasticipating investment contracts totalled £18,197 million
(2006 £24,370 milhion) Elements of the habibties require assumptions about future nvestment returns, future mortality rates and future policyholder
behaviour The process for determining the key assumptions that have been made at 31 December 2007 and the impact on profit before tax of changes in key
assumptions 15 detalled in note 32

General surance business

At 31 December 2007 the Group held a provision of £207 million {2006 £149 million) in respect of the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims
incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date The provision for the cost of claims notihed but not settled 1s based upon a best estimate of the cost of settling the
outstanding claims after 1laking tnto account all known facis In those cases where there 1s insufficient information to determine the required provision, statistical
techmques are used which take into account the cost of claims that have recently been seftled and make assumpticns about the future development of the
outstanding cases Simitar statistical techniques are used to determine the provision for claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date

While management believes that the lability carried at year end 1s adequate, the application of statistical techniques requires significant judgment An increase of
10 percentinthe cost of claims would resultinthe recognition of an additional loss of approximately £20 million Similarly, an increase of 10 percent inthe ultimate number
of such claims would lead to an additional loss of approximately £20 million, some relief would arise from reinsurance contracts held

Taxation

Significant judgement 1s required In determuning the Group's income tax liabilities In arnving at the current tax lability of £414 million and defersed tax habuity of
£949 miilion at 31 December 2007 (2006 current tax liabity of £735 million and deferred fax hability of £1 416 rmillion), the Group has taken account of {ax
1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussions with HM Revenue & Customs and other tax authorties Calculations of these habilities have been based on
management's assessment of legal and professional advice, case law and other relevant guidance In these situations, the various risks are categonsed and
approximate weightings applied 1n arnving at the assessment of the expected liability Where the expected tax outcome of these matiers is different from the amounts
that were smitially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax amounts in the penod in which such determination 1s made

Valuation of financial instruments

Trading secunties, other financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss denvatives and available-for-sale financial assets are stated at faw value The
{air value of these financial instruments s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a kability setiled between willing parties in arm's length transactions
The fair values of financial instruments are determined by reference to observable market prices where these are available and the market 1s active Where market
prices are not ava:lable or are unrehiable because of poor liquidity, fair values are determined using valuation techkriques including cash flow models which, to the
extent possible, use cbservable market parameters The process of calculating the fair value using valuahon techniques may necessitate the estimation of certain
pricing parameters, assumptions or model charactenstics Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported farr values of financial instruments The
fair value movement on assets and hatilities held at faw value through profit or loss and gains in respect of instruments held for frading are disclosed in note 6
Movemenis In respect of available-for-sale financial assets, including those ansing from changes in therr fair value, are disclosed n note 19 The fair values of the
Group's financial assets and labilties are disclosed within note 48 together with an indication of the valuation technique used for each major asset or hatihty
category

3 Segmental analysis

Lloyds TSB Bank Group 1s a leading financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services predominantly in the UK

The Group's activities are organised into three segments UK Retail Bankung, Insurance and Investments and Wholesale and International Banking Services provided
by UK Retail Banking encompass the prowvision of banking and other financial services to personal customers, private banking and mortgages Insurance and
investments offers life assurance, pensions and savings products, general insurance and asset management services Wholesale and Internat:onal Banking provides
banking and related services for major UK and multinational campanies, banks and financial institutions, and small and medium sized UK businesses It also
provides asset finance to personal and corparate customers, manages the Group’s activities an financial markets through its treasury function and prowides banking
and financial services i some overseas locations

Under the Group's transfer pricing arrangements, inter-segment services are generally recharged at cost, with the exception of the internal commussion arrangements
between the UK branch and other distnibution netwerks and the insurance product manufacturing businesses within the Group, where a profit margin 1s 2lso charged
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Inter-segment lending and deposits are generally entered into at market rates, except that non-interest beanng balances are priced at a rate that reflects the external
yield that could be earmed on such funds

Far those dervative contracts entered into by business units for nsk management purposes, the business unit retains the amount that would have been recognised on
an accrual accounting basis (an amount equal to the interest elernent of the next payment on the swap) and transfers the remainder of the fair value of the swap to the
central group segment where the resulting accounting volatility 1s managed though the establishment of hedge accounting relationships  Any change in fair value of
the hedged instrument attnbutable to the hedgea nsk 1s also recorded within the central group segment This alfocation of the fair value of the swap and change in fair
value cof the hedged instrument attributable to the hedged nsk avoids accounting asymmetry in segmental results, records velatiity where 1t 1s managed and provides
a far presentation of the segments’ operating performance It 1s the basis on which the segments are managed and measured internally and is the basis of the Group's
internal segmental reporting to the board

Wholesale
Life, pensions Insurance and
UK Retail General and asset and International Central Inter segment
Banking msurance  management  Investments Banking  group items  eliminations Total
£m £m £Em £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31 December 2007
Interest and simitar income 8,018 23 1,040 1,063 9,834 1,097 {3,138) 16,874
Interest and similar expense {4,235) - (527) {527) (7,316) (1,801) 3,138 {10,741)
Net interest income 3,783 23 513 536 2,518 (704) - 6,133
Other income (net of fee and commission
expense) 1,797 554 7,643 8,197 1,773 378 - 12,145
Total income 5,580 577 8,156 8,733 4,291 {326) - 18,278
Insurance claims - (302) (7,220} (7,522) - - - (7,522)
Total income, net of insurance ¢laims 5,580 275 936 1,211 4,291 (326) - 10,756
Qperating expenses (2,624) (154) (501} (655) (2,282) 33 - (5,528}
Trading surplus (deficit) 2,956 121 435 556 2,009 (293} - 5,228
Impairment (1,224) - - - {572) - - (1,796}
Profit on sale of businesses - - 272 272 385 - - 657
Profit (loss} before tax 1,732 121 707 828 1,822 (293} - 4,089
External revenue 9,132 1,235 8,854 10,089 10,082 316 - 29,619
Inter-segment revenue 1,012 49 181 230 1,559 1,302 (4,103 -
Segment revenue 10,144 1,284 9,035 10,319 11,641 1,618 (4,103} 29,619
External assets 115,012 1,164 72,213 73,377 163,294 1,860 - 353,543
Inter-segment assets 5,093 361 3,777 4,138 91,246 64,654 (165,131) -
Total assets 120,105 1,525 75,990 77,515 254,540 66,514 (165,131) 353,543
External liabilities 96,166 B70 65,304 66,174 162,376 15,388 - 340,104
Inter-segment hatilities 20,321 12 5,930 5,942 86,159 52,709 (165,131) -
Total habilities 116,487 882 71,234 72,116 248,535 68,097 (165,131} 340,104
Other segment items
Capital expenditure a0 11 452 463 613 178 - 1,334
Depreciation and amortisation 205 14 37 51 374 - - 630
Defined benefit scheme charges 114 3 26 29 92 (60) - 175
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3 Segmental analysis (continued) Wholesale
Life, pensions Insurance and
LK Retail General and asset and  International Central  Inter segment
Banking msurance  management Investments Banking group items eliminahons Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Year ended 31 December 2006
interest and similar income 6,913 24 820 844 8,508 997 {3,241) 14,111
Interest and similar expense (3,271) - (741} (741) {6,421) (1,588) 3,241 (8,780)
Net interest income 3,642 24 79 103 2,177 (591) - 5,331
QOther income {net of fee and commussion
expense) 1,621 594 9,893 10 487 2,035 194 - 14,337
Total income 5,263 618 9,972 10,590 4,212 (397 - 15,668
Insurance claims - (200) (8,389) (8,569) - - - (8,569)
Total income, net of Insurance clams 5,263 418 1,603 2,021 4,212 (397) - 11,099
Operating expenses (2,476) (157) (481) {638) (2,264) 116 - (5,262)
Trading surplus {deficit) 2,787 281 1,122 1,383 1,848 (281) - 5,837
Impairment {1,238) - - - (308) 9 - (1,555)
Profit (loss) before tax 1,549 261 1,122 1,383 1,640 (290) - 4,282
External revenue 8,136 1,249 10,888 12,137 8,659 154 - 29,086
Inter-segment revenue 698 19 199 218 2276 810 {4,102) -
Segment revenue 8,834 1,268 11,087 12,355 10,935 1,064 {4,102} 29,086
External assets 108,381 1,115 84,959 86,074 147,836 3,373 - 345,664
Inter-segment assets 3,331 502 4,050 4,552 80,995 53,588  (142,466) -
Total assets 111,712 1,617 89,009 90,626 228,831 56,961 (142,466) 345,664
External habilities 87,327 875 77,633 78,508 150 779 16 574 - 333,188
Inter-segment habilities 20,980 54 5,595 5,649 72,793 43044  (142,466) -
Tota! habilities 108,3C7 929 83,228 84,157 223,572 59,618 (142,466) 333,188
Other segment 1tems
Capital expendtture 82 7 845 852 647 143 - 1,724
Depreciation and amortisation 202 9 29 38 379 - - 619
Defined benefit scheme charges 121 4 24 28 100 (140) - 109
As the activities of the Group are predominantly carned out in the UK, no geographical analysis I1s presented
4  Net interest income Weighted average effective
interest rate
2007 2008 2007 2006
% % £m £m
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers 6 88 621 13,209 10,856
Loans and advances to banks 514 472 2,025 1,826
Lease and hire purchase recenvables 6 34 597 602 622
Interest recaivable on (oans and receivables 658 584 15,836 13,304
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 4 83 4 39 1,038 807
Total interest recervable 643 582 16,874 14,111
Interest payable
Deposits from banks 500 467 (1,919) {1,680}
Customer accounts 355 291 {5,097} {3,756)
Debt securities in issue 511 467 {2,620) (1,983)
Subordinated liabilities 616 556 (755} (677)
Liabihties under sale and repurchase agreements 481 435 (155) (260)
Interest payable on liabiities held at amortised cost 424 370 (10,546) (8,356)
QOther 428 968 (195) (424)
Total interest payable 424 382 (10,741) (8,780)
Net interest iIncome 6,133 5,331

Included within interest receivable 1s £395 million (2006 £297 mithiom) in respect of impared financial assets Net interest income also includes a credit of
£1 million (2006 charge of £1 mullion) transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve (note 42)
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5 Net fee and commission income 2007 2006
£m Em

Fee and commission ncome

Current accounts 693 652
Insurance broking 648 629
Credit and debit card fees 536 493
Trust and other fiduciary fees 362 331
Qther 988 1,014

3,227 3,119
Fee and commission expense (600) (638)
Net fee and commission income 2,627 2,481

As discussed in note 1{d), fees and commussions which are an integral part of the effective interest rate form part of net interest income shown 1n note 4 Fees and
commissions relating to instruments that are held at fair vatue through profit or loss are included within net trading income shown 1n note 6

Certain fees payable by the Group's asset finance business have been rectassified to interest income as part of the effective yield of the related lending, there is no
impact upon profit before tax  Comparative figures have been restated accordingly

6 Net trading income 2007 2006
£m £m

Foreign exchange translation gains 33 32
Gains on foreign exchange trading transactions 159 98
Totat foreign exchange 192 130
Investment property {lesses) gains (note 20) (321) 631
Secunties and other gains (see below) 3,265 5570
3,136 6,331

Securities and other gains compnse net gains ansing on assets and habilites held at fair value through profit or loss and for trading as follows

2007 2006
£m £m

Net income anising on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advarces to banks and customers 23 29
Debt securities 673 1,181
Equity shares 2,419 4 049
Total net income arising on assets held at fair value through profit or loss 3,115 5,259
Net (expense) income ansing on habilties held at fair value through profit or loss — debt secunties 1n i1ssue (153) 21
Total net gains ansing on assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss 2,962 5,280
Net gains on financial instruments hetd for trading 303 290
Secunities and other gains 3,265 5,570
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7 Insurance premium income 2007 2006
£m £m
Life insurance
Gross premiums 4,937 4,308
Ceded reinsurance premiums (98) {189)
Net earned premiums 4,839 4,119
Non-iife insurance
Gross premiums written 632 608
Ceded re:nsurance premiums (23} (17)
Net premiums 609 591
Change in provision for unearned premiums {18) 9
Net earned premiums 591 600
Total net earned premiums 5,430 4,719
Life insurance gross written premiums can be further analysed as foilows 2007 2006
£m £m
Life 1,998 1,831
Pensions 2,235 1,780
Annuities 689 681
Qther 15 16
(ross premiums 4,937 4,308
Non-life insurance gross written premiums can be further analysed as follows 2007 2006
£m £m
Credit protection 212 203
Home 412 394
Health 8 1l
632 608
8 Other operating income 2007 2006
£m £m
Qperating lease rental income 393 422
Rental income from Investment property (note 20) 227 313
Other rents receivable 31 28
Gains less losses on disposal of avadable-for-sale financial assets {note 42) 5 22
Movament n value of in-force business (note 22) (93) {199)
Other income 389 220
952 806
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9 Insurance claims

Insurance claims comprise

Life insurance and participating mvestment contracts
Claims and surrenders

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Change m habilities

Gross
Reinsurers’ share

Change in unallocated surplus {noie 34)

Total life insurance and participating investment contracts

Non-iife insurance
Claims and claims paid
Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Change n labilities
Gross
Reinsurers share

Total non-hfe snsurance

Total insurance claims expense

Life insurance gross ckaims can atso be analysed as follows
Deaths

Maturities

Surrenders

Annuities

Other

A non life (nsurance claims development table 1s included in note 32

29

2007 2006
£m £m
5,432 5,375
{73) (76)
5,359 5,299
1,955 2923
20 (18)
1,975 2,905
{114) 165
7,220 8,369
250 198
250 198
58 2

{6) -

52 2
302 200
7,522 8,569
296 286
1,516 1,385
2,994 3,081
568 558
58 65
5,432 5375
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10 Operating expenses 2007 2006
Em £m
Salaries 2,127 2,117
Social security costs 167 161
Pensions and other post-retirement benefit schemes (note 36) 238 165
Other staff costs 372 298
Staff costs 2,904 2,741
Other administrative expenses
Operating lease rentals 250 254
Repairs and maintenance 154 165
Communications and data processing 462 499
Advertising 192 184
Professional fees 279 230
Settlement of overdraft claims {see below) 76 -
Other 581 570
1,994 1,902
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (note 24) 594 602
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 23) 36 17
Total operaling expenses 5,528 5,262

Dunng the year ended 31 Decernber 2007, operating expenses include a charge of £76 milkon (2006 £nil) relating to the settlement of customer claims for the

repayment of overdraft fees, together with related costs

The average number of persons on a headcount basis employed by the Group durng the year was 69,553 (2006 76 092) of which 67,616 (2006 74,079) were

employed 1n the UK and 1,937 {2006 2,013) overseas

Fees payable to the Bank’s auditors

During the year the auditors earned the following fees 2007 2006
£m £m
Fees payable for the audit of the Bank’s annual report 67 59
Fees payable for other services
Audit of the Bank’s subsidianies pursuant to legislation 25 29
Other services supplied pursuant to tegislation 27 47
Other services relating to taxation 07 06
Services relating to corperate finance transactions 07 10
All other services 12 18
Total fees payable to the Bank's auditors 145 169
Durning the year the auditers also earned fees payable by entities outside the consolidated Lloyds TSB Bank Group (n respect of the following
2007 2006
£m Em
Audits of the Group pension schemes 02 02
Audits of unconsolidated Open Ended Investment Companies managed by the Group 04 04
Reviews of the financial position of corporate and other borrowers 28 16
Acquisition due diligence and other work performed in respect of potential veniure capital investments 06 10
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11 Impaiment 2007 2006
Em Em

Impairment losses on loans angd advances {note 18} 1,721 1,560
Other credit risk provisions (note 38} 5 (3)
1,726 1,555

Impairmert of available-for-sale financial assets (note 19} 70 -
Total wmpairment charged to the income staterment 1,796 1,555
12 Profit on sale of businesses 2007 2006
£m £m

Profit on sale of Lioyds TSB Registrars 407 -
Profit on sale of Abbey Life 272 -
Other, including adjustments in respect of businesses sold n prior years (22) -
657 -

Dunng 2007 the Group completed the following transactions

- The sale, announced on 21 May 2007, of the business and assets of the Bank's company registration business Lloyds TSB Regstrars

» The sale, announced on 31 July 2007, of Abbey Life Assurance Company Limited, a UK life operation which has been closed to new business since 2000

- The sale, announced on 3 October 2007, of The Duttan-Forshaw Group Limited, a medium-size car dealership

In addition, provision has been made for payments under an indemnity given in relation to a business scld in an earlier year

The businesses sold in 2007 did not represent separate matenal lines of business and consequently they have not been treated as discontinued operations

13 Taxation 2007 2006
£m £m
a Analysis of charge for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profit for the year 778 1,006
Adjustments 1n respeci of prior years (67) (155)
711 851
Double taxation relief (60) (195)
651 656
Foreign tax
Cuzrent tax on profit for the year 97 83
Adjustments 0 respect of prior years (3) (8)
94 75
Current tax charge 745 731
Deferred tax (note 37) (72) 531
673 1,262

The charge for tax on the profit for the year 1s based on a UK corporation tax rate of 30 per cent (2006 30 per cent)

The Group, as a proxy for policyholders in the UK, 1s required to record taxes on investment income, gains and losses each year Accordingly, the tax attributable to
UK Iife msurance policyholder earmings 1s included in income tax expense The tax credit attributable to policyholders was £243 million (2006 tax charge of
£222 rmihon), including a prios year tax charge of £5 million {2006 tax charge of £12 milion}

In addition to the income statement current tax charge, a total of £128 million of current tax has been credited 1o equity {2006 a total of £32 millhion charged to
equity}, a credit of £103 million (2006 a charge of £33 million) n respect of foreign exchange differences and a net credit of £25 million {2006 a net credit of
£1 mution) in respect of the revaluation of avallable-for-sale {financial assets
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13 Taxation (continued)

b Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

A reconcihiation of the charge that would result from applying the standard UK corporation tax rate {o profit before tax to the tax charge for the year s gven below

Profit before tax

Tax charge thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 30%

Factors affecting charge

Disallowed and non-taxable items

Overseas tax rate differences

Gains exempted or covered by capital losses
Policyholder interests

UK corperation tax rate change

Qther items

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Effective rate

2007 2006
£m £m
4,089 4,282
1,227 1,285
(20) {92)
()] (2)
{274) (78)
(173) 123
(1:0) -
27 26
673 1,262
16 5% 29 5%

The effective tax rate of the Group excluding the gross policyholder and Open Ended Investment Company interests from profit before tax and the tax charge and, in
2007, the profit on disposal of businesses from profit before tax and the impact on the year end deferred tax position of the UK corporation tax rate change was

27 5 per cent (2006 25 7 per cent)

14 Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets are comprised as foltows

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advancas to customers

Debt secunties

Government secunties

Other public sector securties

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Morigage backed securities

Other asset backed securities

Corporate and other debt secunties

Equity shares
Listed
Unlisted

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
4,663 5,756 4,663 5,756
53,433 62,172 4,521 3,063
58,096 67,928 9,184 8,819

2007 2006 ) 2007 20086
Other Other Other Other
financial financial financial financial
assets at assets at assets at assels at
fair vatue fair value fair value fair value
Trading through Trading through Trading through Trading through
assets  profit or loss assets  profit or loss assets  profit or loss assets  profit or loss
Em £m £m Em Em £m £m £m
29 1 34 3 29 1 34 3
756 403 350 448 756 403 350 448
62 4,848 180 8,626 62 1 180 11
- - - 44 - - - -
- 811 - 573 - - -~ -
87 70 451 87 87 ) 451 7
122 1,805 595 861 122 282 595 435
3,607 13,564 4,146 13,170 3,607 3,823 4,146 2,150
3,878 21,098 5,372 23,361 3,878 4,114 5,372 2,603
- 23,783 - 29,508 - - - -
- 8,148 - 8,852 - 3 - 9
- 31,931 - 38,360 - 3 - 9
4,663 53,433 5,756 62,172 4,663 4,521 5756 3,063

32




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

14 Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

At 31 December 2007 £55,914 million (2006 £65,355 mitlion) of trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group and
£8,111 milhon (2006 £7,601 million) of the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the following assets designated into that category

) financial assets backing insurance contracts and investment contracts which are so designated because the related llabiities either have cash flows that are
contractually based on the perfarmance of the assets or are contracts whose measurement takes account of current market conditions and where significant
measurement Inconsistencies would otherwise arise,

{n certain loans and advances to customers which are economically hedged by interest rate denvatives which are not in hedge accounting relationships and
where significant measurement inconsistencies would otherwise anse if the related dervatives were treated as trading iiabilities and the loans and advances
were carried at amortised cost, and

() certain private equity Investments that are managed, and evaluated, on a fair value basis In accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2007 of the loans and advances to banks and customers designated at fair vatue through profit or loss by the
Bank ang the Group was £404 million {31 December 2006 £451 million), the Bank and the Group do net hold any credit dernivatives or other Instruments in
mitigation of this sk There was no sigruficant movement n the fair value of these loans attnbutabte to changes in credit nsk, this 1s determined by reference to the
publicly available credit ratings of the instruments involved

The carrying value of assets of the Group that are subject to stocklencing arrangements was £1,450 million ai 31 December 2007 (2006 £1,781 mihon) all of
which the secured party 1s permitied by contract or custom to sell or repledge

15 Denvative financial instruments

The principal dernvatives used by the Group and the Bank are interest rate and exchange rate contracts, particular attention is paid to the hgudity of the markets and
products 1n which the Group and the Bank trade to ensure that there are no undue concentrations of activity and risk

Interest rate related contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options An Interest rate swap I1s an agreement between two parties 1o
exchange fixed and floating interest paymenis based upon inferest rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the underlying pnncipal amounts Forward
rale agreements are ¢ontracts for the payment of the difference between a specified rate of mnterest and a reference rate, applied to a notional principal amount at a
specific date in the future An interest rate option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the rnight, but not the obtigation, to fix the rate of Interest an a future loan
or depaosit, for a specified period and commencing on a specified future date

Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and options A forward fereign exchange contract 1s an agreement to buy
or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified future date at an agreed rate Currency swaps generally involve the exchange of interest payment
obligations denominated 1n different currencies, the exchange of principal can be notional or actual A currency option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the
nght, but not the obligation, to sell specified amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified future date

Credit derivatives, pnincipally crecit default swaps are used by the Group as pan of its trading activity and to manage 1ts own exposure to credit nsk A ¢redit default
swap 1s a swap tn which one counterparty receives a premium at pre set intervals in consideration for guaranteeing to make a specific payment should a negative
credit event take place As discussed in note 17, the Group also uses credit default swaps to synthetically secunitise £1,572 mihon (Bank £1,543 mullion) of its
cormmercial banking loans (2006 Group £961 million, Bank £939 million), and, in combination with external funding, to secuntise a further £2,753 million
{Bank £nil) of commercial banking loans (2006 £ni)

Equity denvatives are also used by the Group and the Bank as pan of their equity based retall product actmvity to eliminate the Group's and the Bank's exposure to
fluctuations in vanous international stock exchange indices Index-linked equity options are purchased which give the Group and the Bank the right, but not the
obligation, io buy or sell a specified amount of equities, or basket of equities, in the form of pubhished indices on or before a specified future date

The principal amount of the contract does not represent the Group's and the Bank's real exposure to credit nsk which 1s mited to the current cost of reptacing
contracts with a positive value o the Group or the Bank should the counterparty default To reduce credit nsk the Group uses a vanety of credit enhancement
techriques such as netting and collateralisation, where secunty is provided against the exposure Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active
markets, including recent market transactions and using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow and options pricing models, as appropriate
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15 Denvative financial instruments {continued)

The Group 2007 2006
Contract/ Fair values Congact/ Farr values
nottonal netional
amount Assets Labilites amount Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 150,450 1,759 1,285 116,255 794 1432
Currency swaps 32,447 832 755 21,081 346 522
Options purchased 7,609 157 - 3,076 51 -
Options written 6,988 - 149 3822 - 32
197,494 2,748 2,189 144,234 1,191 1,986
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 334,159 2,765 3,344 333,617 2,980 3,237
Forward rate agreements 102,274 6 34 40,876 17 18
Options purchased 33,147 171 - 17,034 68 -
Options wrtten 22,976 - 171 12,588 - &3
Futures 35,571 1 - 33,066 - 1
528,127 2,973 3,549 437,181 3,065 3,319
Credit derivatives 63,444 1,838 1,057 13,212 25 39
Equity and cther contracts 4,439 865 156 4,026 797 67
Total denvative assets/liabilities held for trading 8,424 6,951 5,078 5,411
Hedging
Dervatives designated as fair value hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps - - - 80 10 -
Interest rate swaps {Including swap oplions) 50,734 263 460 37,298 333 453
50,734 263 460 37,378 343 453
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 630 1 24 569 5 13
Dervatives designated as net investment hedges
Cross currency swaps 5,302 - 316 2,589 139 -
Total dervative assets/habiities held for hedging 264 800 487 466
Total recognised dervative assets/iabilities 8,688 7,751 5,565 5,877

At 31 December 2007 £3,573 mithion of total recognised denvative assets of the Group and £4 281 million of total recognised dervative liabilities of the Group
(2006 £3,068 million of assets and £3,526 million of liabities) had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year
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15 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

The Bank

Trading

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Currency swaps

Options purchased
Options written

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps
Forward rate agreements
Options purchased
Options written

Futures

Credit denvatives
Equity and other contracts
Total dervative assets/habilities held for trading

Hedging

Denvatives designated as fair value hedges
Cross currency interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps {inciuding swap opticns)

Dervatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps

Derivatives designated as net investiment hedges
Cross currency swaps

Total dervative assets/liabvhities held for hedging

Total recognised dervative assets/liablities

2007 2006
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notianal notional

amount Assets Liatulities amount Assets Liab:ities
£m £m £m E£m £m £m
155,435 1,804 1,308 119,408 8§22 1,437
32,742 834 777 13,230 432 446
8,694 157 - 3,294 51 -
7,008 - 150 3,664 - 32
203,879 2,795 2,233 139,597 1,305 1,915
347,033 2,777 3,365 348,065 3,094 3,228
103,902 36 34 40,961 17 12
33,543 174 - 17,463 68 -
23,061 - 174 12,740 - 64
35,189 - - 33,066 - -
542,728 2,987 3,573 452,295 3,178 3,304
63,195 1,838 1,053 13,212 25 39
6,728 733 733 7,349 671 667
8,353 7,592 5,180 5925
- - - 8O 10 -
50,209 270 433 36618 331 467
50,209 270 433 36,698 341 467
630 1 24 569 5 13
5,302 - 3186 2 589 139 -
271 773 485 480
8,624 8,365 5,665 6,405

At 31 December 2007 £3,590 million of total recognised derivative assets of the Bank and £4,687 million of total recogrused dervative habilities of the Bank
(2006 £3,181 mtllon of assets and £4,103 million of liabilities) had a contraciual residual matunty of greater than one year

16 Loans and advances to banks

Lending to banks
Money market placements with banks

Total loans and advances {o banks
Allowance for impairment losses (note 18)

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
5,892 5,966 8474 62,562
28,953 34,673 19,973 24,027
34,845 40,639 28,847 86,589
- (1) - (1)
34,845 40,638 28,447 86,588

At 31 December 2007 £5,773 muliion {2006 £15,259 million) of loans and advances to banks of the Group and £4,312 million (2006 £43,389 million) of the
Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

The Group and the Bank hold collateral with a fair value of £9,109 milon (2006 £6,837 million), which they are permitied to sell or repledge, of which
£8,482 millon (2006 £6,209 million) was repledged or sold to third parties for penods not exceeding three months from the transfer
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17 Loans and advances to customers

Agnculture forestry and fishing
Energy and water supply
Manufacturing

Construction

Transport, distribution and hotels
Postal and telecommunications
Property companies

Financial, business and other services
Personal

Mortgages

Other

Lease financing

Hire purchase

Due from fellow Group undertakings

Allowance for impairment losses (note 18)

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006

Em £m £m £m
3,226 2,905 1,467 1,355
2,102 2,024 2,102 2,024
8,385 7.513 6,788 6,135
2,871 2,332 2,531 2,040
11,573 10,490 10,158 9,131
946 831 907 775
17,576 12,896 16,303 12,164
29,707 22,999 21,952 16,240
102,739 95,601 90,217 846
22,988 23,025 19,120 19,038
4,686 4,802 - -
5423 5,060 3as 323

- 1,850 42,660 38,205
212,222 192,328 214,593 108,276
(2,408) {2,193} (1,855) (1,700)
209,814 190,135 212,738 106,576

At 31 December 2007 £153,302 million (2006 £141,272 million) of loans and advances to customers of the Group and £129,272 million
(2006 £35,191 milhon) of the Bank had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

The Group and the Bank hold collateral with a fair value of £1,975 milhon (2006 £444 million), which they are permitted 1o sell or repledge, of which
£1,818 miltion (2006 £238 million) was repledged or sold to third parties for perods not exceeding three months from the transfer

Of the Bank's amounts due from fellow Group undertakings at 31 December 2007, US$5 5 billion {2006 US$5 5 billion) has been pledged as secunty against a
demand loan made to the Bank by another of its fellow Group undertakings

Loans and atvances to customers include finance lease recevables, which may be analysed as follows

Gross investment in finance leases, receivable

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Unearned future finance income on finance leases

Rentals received In advance

Commitments for expenditure in respect of equipment 1o be leased

Net invesiment In finance leases

The net tnvestment in finance leases represents amounts recaoverable as follows

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

The Group
2007 2006
£m Em
620 637
1,917 2,358
5,339 5,358
7.876 8,353
(2,875) {2,945)
{131) (163)
{184} (443)
4,686 4,802
The Group
2007 2006
£m £m
340 234
1,004 1,232
3,342 3,336
4,686 4,802

Equipment leased to customers under finance (eases pnmanly relates to structured financing transactions to fund the purchase of aircraft, ships and other large
ndmdual value items The allowance for uncoltectable finance lease receivables included in the atlowance for impairment losses 1s £16 million (2006 £7 million)
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17 Loans and advances to custemers (continued)

The unguaranteed residual values included n finance lease receivables were as follows 2007 2006
£m £m

Not later than 1 year _ _

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 17 -
Later than 5 years 159 168
Total 176 168
Securitisafions

Loans and advances to customers include balances that have been securitised but not derecognised, comprising both residental mortgages and commercial banking
loans, the carrying values of which are set out below together with any related labilities

Residential mortgages are no! derecognised because the Group remains expesed to the majoriy of the nisk of any default in respect of them, commercial banking
loans are not derecognised because the Group has not transferred the contractual nghts to receive the cash flows from those loans nor has it assumed a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows from those lcans to a third party

Beneficial interests in certain residential mortgages have been transferred to special purpose entities which issue floating rate debt secunties Netther the Group nor
any entities in the Group are abliged to support any losses that may be suffered by the note holders and do not intend to offer such support The floating rate note
holders only receive payments of interest and principal io the extent that the special purpose entities have receved sufficient funds from the transferred mortgages and
after certain expenses have been met In the event of a defictency, they have no recourse whatsoever to the Group

At 31 December 2007 the total amount of residential mortgages subject to secuntisation for the Group s £46 284 million (2006 E£14 927 milhon) and for the Bank
15 £46,284 million (2006 £mil) n respect of which external funding at the year end amounted to £12 403 millien {2006 £10,048 million) for the Group and
£12,403 mullion (2006 £mil) for the Bark, external funding 1s shown m debt secunities in 1ssue (note 31)

The Group participates in the secuntisation through the provision of administration and other services, the provision of interest rate and currency swaps and in the
form of unsecured loan financing which 1s subordinate to the interests of the floating rate note holders

In addition the Group has entered into two secuntisations of its commercial banking loans as follows

— a synthetic secuntisation of £1,572 mullien {£1,543 rillion for the Bank, 2006 £961 mullion for the Graup and £939 million for the Bank) utlising credit default
swaps (CDSs),

— a secuntisation of £2,753 million (£nil for the Bank, 2006 £ml) utihsing a combination of CDSs and £88 million (2006 £nil) of external funding

The CDSs are accounted for as denvatives and are included in denvative financial instruments {note 15) and the external funding is shown in debt secunties in 1ssue
(note 31)

18 Allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group Loans and advances to customers

Loans and

Retai - Retail - advances 1o
mortgages other Wholesale Total hanks Total
Em Em £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2006 36 1 655 381 2,072 1 2073
Exchange and other adjustments 1 - (14) (13) - {13)
Adjustments on disposal of businesses and portfolios - (27) - (27 - 27)
Advances wriiten off {9} (1,338) (142) (1,489) - (1,489)
Recoveries of advances wriiten off in previous years 2 170 18 190 - 190
Unwinding of discount - (100} - (100) - (100)
Charge 1o the income statement 12 1,558 (10) 1,560 - 1 560
At 31 December 2006 42 1,918 233 2,193 1 2,194
Exchange and other adjustments - - 2 2 - 2
Advances written off (25) (1,439) (78) (1,542) - (1,542)
Recoveries of advances wntien off in previous years 2 133 2 137 - 137
Unwinding of discount - {101) {3 (104) - {104)
Charge to the income statement 18 1,518 186 1,722 (1) 1,721
At 31 December 2007 37 2,029 342 2,408 - 2,408

The analysis of allowances for impairment between retail and wholesale has been prepared based upon the type of exposure and not the business segment in which
the exposure 1s recorded Included within retail are exposures to personal customers and small businesses, whist included within wholesa'e are exposures 1o
corporate customers and other large institutions

The critena that the Group uses to determine that there 1s objective evidence of an impawrment loss are disclosed in note 1{}} All /mparred loans which exceed a
certain thresheld, principally within the Group’s corporate banking business, are individually assessed for imparrment havmg}regard 1o expected future cash flows
including those that could anse from the realisation of secunty
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18 Allewance for impairment losses on loans and advances (continued)

Included n loans and advances to customers were loans and advances individually determined to be impaired whose gross amount before impatrment atlowances
was £684 milhon (2006 £428 million) and 1n respect of which collateral with a fair value of £193 million (2006 £186 mullion) was held

The Bank Loans and advances to customers Loans and
Retall - Retail - advances to
mortgages other Non-retald Total banks Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Balance at 1 January 2006 - 1,365 353 1,718 1 1,719
Exchange and other adjustments - - (13) (13) - (13}
Adjustments on disposal of businesses and porifolios - 27 - 27) - (27)
Advances written off - (1,177} (126) (1,303) - (1,303}
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years - 143 14 157 - 157
Unwinding of discount - (100) - (100} - (100}
Charge to the incorne statement - 1,295 (27} 1,268 - 1.268
At 31 December 2006 - 1,499 201 1,700 1,701
Exchange and ather adjustments - - 1 1 - 1
Transfer of C&G business (note 26) 23 - - 23 - 23
Advances written off {4) {1,246) (35) {1,285) - (1,285)
Recoveries of advances wnitten off in previous years - 113 1 114 - 114
Unwinding of discount - (101} (3) (104) - (104}
Charge to the income statement 13 1,256 137 1,406 (1) 1,405
At 31 December 2007 32 1,521 302 1,855 - 1,855

Included 1n loans and advances to customers were loans and advances individually determined to be impaired whose gross amount before impairment allowances
was £646 million (2006 £147 million) and n respect of which caliateral with a fair value of £147 million {2006 £127 million) was held

19 Avalable-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunities

Government securities

Other public sector securities

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Mortgage backed secuntres

Other asset backed securities

Corporate and other debt securities

Equity shares
Listed
Unlisted

Treasury bills and other bills
Treasury bills and similar secunties
Other bills

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
319 393 - 6
5 189 5 -
1,825 1,615 1,283 1,611
6,050 5,662 1,464 1,604
4,071 4,721 413 433
6,270 4,817 1,027 220
18,540 17,397 4,192 3874
1 1 1 1
28 14 28 14
29 15 29 15
1,608 1,743 20 60
19 23 19 23
1,627 1,766 39 83
20,196 19,178 4,260 3,972

At 31 December 2007 £15,265 million (2006 £13,779 millien) of avallable-for-sale financral assets of the Group and £2,294 million {2006 £2,069 million) of

the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

All assets have heen individually assessed for impaument The critena used to determine whether an impairment loss has been incurred are disclosed in note 1{))
Included in avallable-for-sale assets at 31 December 2007 are debt securites individually determined to be smpaied whose gross amount before impairment

allowances was £75 miflicn and n respect of which no collateral was held
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19 Avatlable-for-sale financial assets (continued)

The movement in available-for-sale financial assets 1s summansed as follows The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying
value before value before
allowances  Allowances allowances  Allowances

for for Balance for for Balance
imparrment impairment  sheet value mpairment impaiment  sheet value
£m £m £m £m Em £Em
At 1 January 2006 14,940 - 14,940 4,503 - 4,503
Exchange and ather adjustments (1,116} - (1,116) (88) - (88)
Additions 23,448 - 23,448 8917 - 9,917
Disposals (18,106) - (18 106)  {10,353) - (10 353)
Amortisation of premiums and discounts 22 - 22 - - -
Changes In fair value {note 42) {10) - (10 N - N
At 31 December 2006 19,178 - 19178 3,972 - 3,872
Exchange and other adjustments (715) - (715) 249 - 249
Additions 21,667 - 21,667 8,197 - 8,197
Disposals (19,468) - (19,468) {8,022) - (8,022)
Amoriisation of premiums and discounts 36 - 36 - - -
Changes in fair value (note 42} (483) - (483) (130} - (130)
Impairment transferred from reserves {note 42) 70 (70) - 70 {70) -
Disposal of businesses (19) - (19) (6) - {6)
At 31 December 2007 20,266 70 20,196 4,330 {70} 4,260

Al 31 December 2007, the Bank had sold £607 millon (2006 £621 million) of debt secunties to one of its subsidiary undertakings, however the related
agreements are such that the Bank has retained substantially alf of the risks and rewards of ownership and, as a consequence, the debt secunties continue 1o be

recognised on the Bank’s balance sheet

20 Investment property of the Group

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments

Additions

Acquisitions of new properties

Additional expenditure on existing properties
Total additions

Cisposals

Adjustments on deconsolidation of QEICs
Changes in far value (note 6)

Disposal of businesses

At 31 December

2007 2006
Em £m
4,739 4,260
5 _

302 675
181 75
483 750
(271} (902)
(881) -

(321) 631
(32) -
3,722 4,739

Dunng the year the percentage ownership of certain OEICs changed so that the Group no longer has contrel, as a consequence these OEICs have been

deconsolidated

The investment properiies are valued at least annually at open-market value, by independent, professionally qualified valuers, who have recent experience In the

location and categones of the investment properties being valued

In addition the fellowing amounts have been recogrised 1n the income statement

Rental mcome

Direct operating expenses ansing from investment properties that generate rental income

Capital expenditure 1n respect of investment properties

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recogrnised in the financial statements
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2007 2006
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21 Goodwill The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2,377 2,373 8 8
Acgunsitions (note 50) - ! - -
Disposals (19) - (8) —
At 31 December 2,358 2,377 - 8

Cost* 2,364 2,383 -

Accumulated impairment losses (6) e) - -
2,358 2,377 - 8

*For acqu:sitions made prior to 1 January 2004, the date of fransition to IFRS, cost 1s included net of amounts amortised up to 31 December 2003

The goodwill held in the Group’s balance sheet Is tested at least annually for impairment For the purposes of impairment testing the goodwill 1s aflocated to the
appropriate cash generating unit, of the total balance of £2,358 milhon (2006 £2,377 million}, £1,836 million (or 78 per cent of the total} has been allocated to
Scottish Widows and £510 millien {or 22 per cent of the total) to Asset Finance

The recoverable amount of Scottish Widows has been based on a value in use calculation The calculation uses projections of future cash flows based upon budgets
and plans approved by management covering a five-year period, and a discount rate of 11 per cent (gross of tax) The budgets and plans are based upon past
experience adjusted to take into account anticipated changes in sales volumes product mix and margins having regard to expected market conditions and competitor
activity The discount rate 1s determined with reference to internal measures and available industry information Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been
extrapotated using a steady 3 per ceni growth rate which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the life assurance market Management believes that
any reasenably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of Scottish Widows to fall below its balance sheet carrying value

The recoverable amount of Asset Finance has also been based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and plans
approved by management covering a five year perod and a discount rate of 12 per cent {gross of tax) The discount rate has been set at a premium over the
Lioyds TSB Group's weighted average cost of capital to take inte account the specific nsk profile of the Asset Finance husiness The cash flows for each of the
businesses of Asset Finance beyond the five-year perod are extrapolated using steady growth rates, in each case not exceeding 4 per cent nor the long-term average
growth rates for the markets in which the respective businesses of Asset Finance participate

22 Value of in-force business of the Group

The asset in the consolidated balance sheet and movement recognised in the income statement are as follows

Gross value of in-force insurance and participating investment business 2007 2006

£m £m
At 1 january 2,723 2,922
Movement in value of in-force business (93) (199)
Disposal of business 412) -
At 31 December 2,218 2723

The principal features of the methodology and process used for determining key assumptions used 1n the calculation of the value of in-force business are set out
below

» Economic assumptions Each cash flow is valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets In practice, to
achieve the same result, where the cash flows are either independent of or move Linearly with market movements, a method has been applied known as the
‘certainty equivalent’ approach whereby 1t is assumed that all assets earn the risk-free rate and all cash flows are discounted at the nsk-free rate

A market consistent approach has been adopted for the valuation of financial options and guarantees, using a stochastic option pricing techmique calibrated to be
consistent with the market price of relevant options at each valuation date

The nsk-free rate assurned in valuing in-force business s 10 basis points over the 15-year gilt vield In valuing financial aptions and guarantees the nisk-free rate s
denved from gili yields plus 10 basis points, (n line with Scottish Widows™ FSA realistic balance sheet assumptions

The table below shows the range of resulting yields and other key assumptions at 31 December 2007 2006

% %
Risk-free rate {value of in-force) 465 472
Risk-{ree rate {financial options and guarantees) 428t0481 3910541
Retail price inflation 328 323
Expense inflation 418 413

« Non-market risk An allowance for non-market nisk 1s made through the choice of best estimate assumptions based upon experience, which generally will give the
mean expected financial outcome for shareholders and hence no further altowance for non-market nsk 1s requiced However, n the case of operational nsk and the
with-profits fund there are asymmetries in the range of potential autcomes for which an explicii allowance (s made

« Non-economic assumptions Future mantenance expenses, mortality, morbidity, lapse and paid up rate assumptions are based on an analysis of past experience
and represent management s best estimate of likely future experence
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23 Other intangible assets

Cast
At} January 2006
Additions

Al 31 Becember 2006
Addstions
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Accumutated amortisation
At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2006
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2007
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2007

Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2006

Software enhancements of the Bank and the Group principally comprise identifiable and directly associated internal staff and other costs

The Group The Bank
Software Software
Customner enhance enhance-
lists ments Total ments
£m Em £m £m
- 147 147 103
54 51 105 24
54 198 252 127
3 47 50 29
- (5} (5) -
57 240 297 156
- g7 a7 80
- 17 17 10
- 114 114 a0
5 3 36 13
- 2) (2) -
5 143 148 103
52 97 149 53
54 84 138 37

a4




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

24 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 January 2006

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Exchange and other adjustments

Adjustments cn disposal of businesses
Adjustments on deconsolidation of subsidianes
Addtions

Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2006

Exchange and other adjustments

Charge for the year

Dispesals

At 31 December 2006

Exchange and other adjustments

Adjustments on disposal of businesses
Adjustments on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2007
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2007

Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2006

At 31 December the future minimum rentals recervable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows

Receivable within 1 year
110 5 years
QOver 5 years

The Group The Bank

Operating Total Total

lease tangible tangible

Premises Equipment assets  fixed assets Premises Equipment  fixed assets
£m £m £m Em Em Em £m
1,421 2,667 2,961 7,049 1,005 2,112 3,117
- {3) {96) (99) - {3 (3)

92 286 552 Q30 82 262 344
(25) (101) {551) (677) (6) {48) (54)
1,488 2,849 2,866 7,203 1,081 2,323 3,404
- 2 {24} (22} - 1 1
(53) (89) - (142) {6) (56) (62)

- - {1,015} (1,015) - - -

60 286 549 895 55 266 321
(58) {177) (945) (1,180) 47) (108} {155)
1,437 2,871 1,431 5,739 1,083 2,426 3,509
601 1,796 361 2,758 529 1,345 1,874
{1 (1) (63) {65) h (2) (3)
82 248 272 602 70 215 285
(7) (83) (254) (344) (3 (33) (36)
675 1,960 316 2,951 595 1,525 2,120
- 2 (3) 1 - 1 1
{11) (35) - (46) {4) {6) (10)

- - (86) (86) - - -

83 242 269 594 72 214 286
(29) (162} (321) {512) (26) 97 {123)
718 2,007 175 2,900 637 1,637 2,274
719 864 1,256 2,839 446 789 1,235
813 889 2,550 4,252 486 798 1284
2007 2006

Em £m

259 431

271 747

9 30

539 1,208

Equipment leased to customers under operating leases primanly relates to vehicle contract hire arrangements Ouning 2006 and 2007 no contingent rentals in
respect of operating leases were recognised in the income statement

In addition, fotal future rummum sub-lease income of £113 million for the Group and £104 million for the Bank at 31 December 2007 (£120 million for the Group
and £103 million for the Bank at 31 Decermber 2006) s expected to be receved under non-cancellable sub-leases of premises

During the year the Group entered into an agreement which transferred control over a number of (s leasing subsid:aries to third parties These subsidiaries have been
deconsolidated and, consequently, operating lease assets and related accumulated depreciation in the amounts of £1,015 million and £86 million respectively have

been derecognised

25 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

At 1 January

Additions

Additional capital injections and transfers
Capital repayments

Disposals

At 31 December
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2007 2006
Em £rm
18,527 16,078
2,933 8
313 2,444
(5,628} 3
(8} -
16,137 18,527
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25 Investment in subsidiary undertakings {continued)

The pnincipal group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to 31 December and whose results are included in the consolidated accounts of Lloyds TSB

Percentage of eguity
share capital and
voling nghts held

Mature of business

Bank plc, are
Country of
registrationd
Incorporation
Lloyds TSB Commercial Finance Limited England
Lloyds TSB Leasing Limited England
Lloyds TSB Private Banking Limited England
The Agncultural Mortgage Corporation PLC England
Uloyds TSB Offshore Limited Jersey
Lloyds TSB Scotland plc N Seotland
Lloyds TSB General Insurance Ltmited England
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership Group Limited Engtand
Lloyds TSB Insurance Services Limited England
Lloyds TSB Asset Finance Dvision Limited England
Black Horse Linited England
Scottish Widows plc Scotland
Scottish Widows Annuties Limited Scotland

*Indirect interest

The pnincipal area of operation for each of the above group undertakings 1s the Umited Kingdom and the Channe! Islands

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%*
100%
100%*
100%*
100%~
100%
100%™
100%*
100%*

Credit factoning

Financial leasing

Private banking

Long-term agncultural finance

Banking and financiat services

Banking and financial services

General insurance

Investment management

Insurance broking

Consumer credi, leasing and related services
Consumer credit leasing and related services
Life assurance

Life assurance

None of the Bank's subsidiarnies has expenenced any significant restrictions in paying dividends or repaying loans and advances All regulated banking and insurance

subsidianes are required to mantain capital at levels agreed with the regulators, this may impact those subsicharies’ ability to make distributigns

26 Transfer of mortgage and banking business of Cheltenham & Gloucester plc

The mortgage and banking business of the Bank's wholly-owned subsidiary, Cheltenham & Gloucester plc (C&G), was transferred to the Bank on 1 October 2007 ‘
under a Court approved scheme pursuant to Part Vii of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 Consideration for the transfer was nil and the reserve anising on !
transfer was reduced by the carrying value of most of the Bank's investment in C&G The assets and liabilities transferred were as follows |

Loans and advances to customers {net of impairment allowances of £23 million)
Customer accounts

Debt securdies in 1ssue

Subarcinated liabilities

Funding from the Bank no longer required

QOther net habilities

Consideration patd

Reduction 1n the Bank s investment in C&G

Net amount ansing from transfer credited to retained profits
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Em

87,142

(14,826)

(13,255
{700)

{55,374) ‘
(669)

2,318

2,318
(1,745}
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27 Other assets

Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held
Deferred acqussition costs

Settlement balances

Other assets and prepayments

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
s 451 - -
212 443 - -
205 285 54 55
4,279 3,483 2,109 1,911
5,046 4,662 2,163 1,966

At 31 December 2007 £1,785 mullion (2006 £1,519 million} of ather assets of the Group and £226 mitlion (2006 £421 million) of the Bank had a contractual

residuat matunty of greater than one year

2007 2006
£m Em
Deferred acquisition costs of the Group
At 1 January 443 429
Acquisition costs deferred, net of amounts amortised to the income statement (22) 14
Disposal of businesses and other adjustments (209) -
At 31 Decemnber 212 443
28 Deposits from banks
The breakdown of deposits from banks between domesuc and miematonal offices 1S set out below The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £m £m
Doemaestic
Non-interest bearnng 101 89 104 89
Interest beaning 32,335 28,405 42,107 35,945
32,436 28,494 42,211 36,034
International
Non-interest beanng 46 31 46 31
Interest bearing 6,609 7,869 6,683 3,005
6,655 7,900 6,729 8,036
35,091 36,354 48,940 44,070

At 31 December 2007 £25 million (2006 £2,760 mullion) of deposits from banks of the Group and £563 million (2006 £2,290 milthon} of the Bank had a

contractual residual maturity of greater than one year

Included 1n deposits from banks, for both the Group and the Bank, were deposits of £1,509 mullion (2006 £582 million) held as collateral, pnncipally in relation to

derivative contracts The fair value of those deposits approximates the carrying amount
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29 Customer accounts The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m fim £m Em
Non-interest bearing current accounts 3,807 4,338 3,588 4,103
Interest bearing current accounts 45,726 43 064 42,586 40,699
Savings and Investment accounts 71,905 66,151 62,178 42 627
QOther customer deposits 35,275 27,214 54,893 40,509

156,713 140,767 163,245 127938

The breakdown of customer accounts between domestic and nternational offices 15 set oui below The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m Em £m Em
Domestic
Non-interest beanng 3,476 4,069 5,717 4,183
Interest beanng 149,501 133,139 151,654 119615

152,977 137,208 157,371 123,798
Internationai

Non-interest bearing 400 336 699 337
Interest beanng 3,336 3,223 5,175 3,803
3,736 3,559 5,874 4,140

156,713 140,767 163,245 127,938

At 31 December 2007 £1,950 million {2006 £3,255% million} of customer accounts of the Group and £12,199 million (2006 £6,650 million) of the Bank had a
contraciual residual matunty of greater than one year

Included 10 custormer accounts were deposits of £777 million (2006 £462 million) of the Group and £629 miliion (2006 £428 muillion} of the Bank held as
collateral, pnincipally in relation to derivative contracts The fair value of those deposits approximates the carrying amount

30 Trading and other liabiflities at fair value through profit or loss The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £m £m
Liabihities held at fair value through profit or toss (debt secunties) 3,107 1,156 3,107 1,156
Trading habiiities 99 28 99 28
3,206 1,184 3,206 1,184

At 31 December 2007, for both the Group and the Bank, £2,032 million (2006 £1 144 million) of trading and cther habilities at fair value through profit or loss had
a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

The amount contractually payable on matunty of the debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2007 was £3,131 million
(2006 £1,200 milien), which was £24 milhon higher (2006 £44 million higher) than the balance sheet carrying value There was an £8 milbon (2006 £nil)
decrease in the fair vatue of these habilities attributable to changes in credit spread risk, this 1s determined by reference to the guoted credit spreads of the Bank

Liabiities held at fair value through profit or loss represent designated debt secunties in 1ssue which contatn substantive embedded denvatives which would otherwise
need to be recognised and measured at fair value separately fram the related debt secunties

31 Debt secunties in 1ssue The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£Em Em £m £m
£uro medium-term note programme 4,692 5,650 4,692 5,650
Qther bonds and medium-term notes 12,753 10,157 12,403 -
Certificates of deposit issued 14,995 25,244 14,501 24,729
Commercial paper 17,388 13 067 5,051 2,340
Total debt secunties In Issue 49,828 54118 36,647 32,719

At 31 December 2007 £16,860 mullion (2006 £15,020 mailion) of debt secunties in 1ssue of the Group and £16,565 mullion (2006 £5,825 million) of the Bank
had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Debt secunties in 1ssue for the Group at 31 December 2007 included £12,403 mutlion {2006 £10,048 milhien) of notes 1ssued by the mortgage secuntisation
vehieles {note 17), debt secunties in 1ssue for the Bank at 31 December 2007 included £12,403 million (2006 £nil) of funding provided by those vehicles Debt
secunities in issue for the Group at 31 December 2007 also included £98 mullion {2006 £ni) in respect of the secuntisation of commergial banking loans {note 17)
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32 Liabilities of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and parhcipating investment contracts

Insurance contract habilivies
Participating investiment contract liabibites

2007 2006
£m £m
23,318 26,507
14,874 15,095
38,182 41,602 |

At 31 December 2007 £35,732 million (2006 £38,454 million) of habilihes ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts had a

contraciual residual matunty of greater than one year

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract abilities, substantially all of which relate to business written in the United Kingdom, are compnised as follows

Life insurance

Non-life insurance
Unearned premiums
Claims outstanding

*Reimnmsurance balances recevable are reported within other assets {note 27}

Life insurance

The movement i [ife Insurance contract labilities over the year can be analysed as follows

At 1 January 2006
New business
Changes :n existing business

At 31 December 2006

New business

Changes n existing business
Disposal of businesses

At 31 December 2007

*Reinsurance balances receivable are reported within other assets {note 27)

The movement 1n habilities ansing from participating investment contracts may be analysed as follows

At 1 January 2006
New business
Changes n existing business

At 31 December 2006
New business
Changes n existing business

At 31 December 2007

Pracess for deterrmining key assumptions

2007 2006
Gross  Reinsurance* Net Gross  Reinsurance™ Net
Em £m £m £m £m £m
22,655 {340) 22,315 25,920 {425) 25,495
456 - 456 438 - 438
207 {10) 197 149 (4) 145
663 {10) 653 587 (4} 583
23,318 (350) 22968 26,507 (429} 26,078
Gross  Reinsurance* Net
£m £m £m
26,022 (511) 25,511
1,045 {98) 947
(1,147) 184 {963)
25,920 (425) 25,495
2,428 (18) 2410
{1,344) 15 (1,329}
{4,349) 88 (4,261)
22,655 (340) 22,315
£m
14,068
1,815
(788)
15,095
491
(712)
14,874

The process for determining the key assumptions for insurance contracts and participating investment contracts 1s set out below

These policy rabihties can be sphit into With Profit Fund liabilities, accounted for using the FSA's realistic capital regime (reahistic hahilities) and Non-Profit Fund
labilities, accounted for using a traditional prospective actuanal discounted cash flow methodology as described in the accounting policies

With Profit Fund realistic liabihties

The Group's With Profit Fund contains hife inswrance contracts and participating investment contracts The calculation of With Profit Fund realistic habilities uses best
estimate assumpbions for mortality, persistency rates and expenses These are calculated in a similar manner {o those used for the value of in-force business as
discussed in note 22 The persistency rates used for the realistic valuation of the With Profit Fund Labiliies make an allowance for potential changes in future
experience as the guarantees and options within with-profits contracts become more valuable under adverse markei conditions
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32 Liabitities of the Group arising from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts {continued)

Other key assumptions are

« Investment returns and discount rates The realistic capital regime dictates that With Profit Fund hab:lities are valued on a market-consistent basis Thas 1s achieved
by the use of a valuation model which values l:abilities on a basis calibrated to tradable market option coniracts and other observable market data The With Profit
Fund financial options and guarantees are valued using a stochastic simulation model where alt assets are assumed ta earn, on average, the nisk-free yield and all
cash flows are discounted using the nsk-free yield The nsk-free yield 15 defined as O 1 per cent higher than the spot yields derived from the UK gilt yield curve

Guaranteed annuity option take-up rates The guaranteed annusty option 1ake up rates are set with regard to the Group's actual experience and make allowance for
potential increases 1n take-up rates when the Guaranteed Annuity Options become mare valuable to the policyholder

investment volatiity The calibration of the stochastic simulation model uses implied velatilities of derivatives where possible, or historical observed volatility where
it 15 not possible to observe meaningful pnces For example, as at 31 December 2007, the 10 year equity-implied at-the-money assumption was set at
25 5 per cent {31 December 2006 20 per cent) The assurmption for property volatility was 15 per cent (31 December 2006 15 per cent), with swaption volatility
of broadily 11 per cent (31 December 2006 broadly 13 per cent)

Mortahity The mortality assumptions, including allowances for improvements in lengewity for annuitants, are set with regard to the Group s actual expenence where
this 15 significant, and relevani industry data otherwise

Lapse rates Lapse rates refer to the rate of policy termination and the rate at which policyholders stop paying regular premiums These rates are based on a
combination of ustonical expenence and management's views on future expenence taking into consideration potential changes in future expenence that may result
from guarantees and options becoming more valuable under adverse market conditions

Non-Profit Fund labiities

Generally, assumptions used to value Non-Profit Fund liabilities are prudent in nature and therefore contain a margin for adverse deviation This margmn for adverse
deviation 1s based on management's judgement and reflects management's views on the inherent level of uncertainty The key assumptions used in the measurement
of Non-Profit Fund habilities are

- Interest rates The raies used are denved in accerdance with the FSA Rules These Limit the rates of interest that can be used by reference to a number of factors
ncluding the redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date

Margins for nsk are allowed for 1n the assumed interest rates These are derved from the limiis in the FSA Rules, incluging reductions made o the available yields to
allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of each stock

Mortality and morbidity The mortahity and morbidity assumptions, including allowances for improvements in longevity for annuitants, are set with regard to the
Group's actual expenence where this provides a reliable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and include a margin for adverse deviation

Lapse rates Lapse rates, set with regard to the Group's actual experience and with a margin for adverse deviation, are allowed for on some Non-Profit Fund
contracts

Maintenance expenses Allowance 1s made for future policy costs explicitly Expenses are determined by reference to an internal analysis of current and expected
future costs plus a margin for adverse deviation Explicit allowance 1s made for future expense inflation

Key changes i assumptions

During 2007, following a detailed review of the Group’s cument and expected expertence there has been a change in the key assumption in respect of lapse rates
The impact of this change has been to decrease profit before tax by £52 mithon, this amount includes movernents in habilities and value of the in-force business in
respect of insurance centracts and participating investment contracts
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32 Liabilites of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Sensibvity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect of changes in key assumptions en profit before tax disclosed in these financial siatements assuming that the other
assumptions remain unchanged In practice this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correlated These amounts include movements in
assets, habilities and the value of the In-force business in respect of insurance contracts and participating investment coniracts The impact 1s shown in one direction
but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetrical

Increase/(reduction)

in profit before tax

Change in vanable £m

Non-annuitant mortality 5% reduction 28
Annuitant mortality 5% reduction (90)
Lapse rates 10% reduction 47
Maintenance expenses 10% reductton 79
Risk-free rate! 0 25% deduction 42
Guaranteed annuity option take up? 5% addstion (4}
Equity investment volatility® 1% addition (5)
Widening of credit spreads® 0 1% addition {65)

Assumptions have been flexed on the basis used to calculate the value of in-force business and the realistic and statutory reserving bases
For the above sensitivities a 5 per cent reduction means a reduction to 95 per cent of the expected rate

1This sensitivity shows the impact on the value of in-force business, financial options and guarantee costs, statutory reserves and asset values of reducing the risk-free
rate by 25 basss points

2This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 5 per cent addition to the expected rate
3This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 1 per cent addition to the expecied rate

“This sensitivity shows the impact of a 10 basis point increase in corporate bond yields and the corresponding reduction in market values Govemment bond yields and
the nsk free rate are assumed 10 be unchanged

Non-life insurance

Gross non-life insurance contract liabihties are analysed by line of business as follows 2007 2006
£m £m

Credit protection 274 268
Home 3as 314
Health 4 5
663 587

For non-life msurance contracts, the methodology and assumptions used n relation to determining the bases of the earned premium and ctaims provisioning levels
are derived for each individual underwntten product Assumptions are intended to be neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome There has been no
significant change n the assumptions and methodologies used for setting reserves

The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

The unearmed premium reserve Is determined on a basis that reflects the length of ime fer which contracts have been in force and the projected incidence of risk over
the term of each contract

Claims outstanding compnse those claims that have been notified and those that have been incurred but not reported Claims incurred but not reported are
determined based on the historical emergence of claims and their average cost The notified claims element represents the best estimate of the cost of claims reported
using projections and estimates based on hustonical experience
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32 Liabihities of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

The movements in non-life insurance contract hiabilities and reinsurance assets over the year have been as follows

Prowisrons for unearned premiums Gross  Reinsurance* Net
£m Em £m
At 1 January 2006 447 - 447
Increase in the year 608 {1 591
Release in the year (617} 17 (600)
At 31 Cecember 2006 438 - 438
Increase in the year 632 (23) 609
Release n the year (614) 23 (591)
At 31 December 2007 456 - 456
*Reinsurance balances recevable are reported within other assets {note 27)
These provisions represent the Liability for short-term nsurance contracts for which the Group’s obligations are not expired at the year end
Claims and loss adiustment expenses Gross  Reinsurance* Net
£m £m £m
Notified claims 120 {4) 116
tncurred but not reported 27 - 27
At 1 January 2006 147 4 143
Cash pard for claims settled in the year (223) - (223)
increase/(decrease) in habilities
Anstng from current year claims 231 - 231
Ansing from prior year claims (6} - (6)
At 31 December 2006 148 (4) 145
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (275) - (275}
increase/(decrease) in labilities
Ansing from current year claims 341 (9) 332
Ansing from prior year claims (8) 3 (5}
At 31 December 2007 207 (10) 197
Notifled claims 188 (10) 178
Incurred but not reported 19 - 19
At 31 December 2007 207 (10) 197
Notified claims 127 {4) 123
Incusred but not reported 22 - 22
At 31 December 2006 149 (4) 145

*Reinsurance balances recewvable are reported within other assets (note 27)

49




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

32 Liabilites of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Non-life msurance claims development table

The development of insurance habiliies provides a measure of the Group's ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims The top half of the table betow illusirates
how the Group's estimate of total claims outstanding for each accident year has changed at successive year ends The bottom half of the table reconciles the
cumulative ciaims to the amount appearing in the balance sheet The accident year bawis 1s considered the most appropriate for the business wnitten by the Group

Non-life insurance all nsks — gross Accident year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Total
£m f.m &m £m £m Em

Estimate of ultimate ¢laims costs
At end of accident year 234 227 211 208 317 1,197
Cne year later 220 209 207 206
Two years later 223 207 204
Three years later 221 206
Four years later 220
Cutrent estimate of cumulative claims 220 206 204 206 317 1,153
Cumulative payments to date (216) {202) (194) (186) (164) (962)
Lrabihity recognised n the balance sheet 4 4 10 20 153 191
Liability 1n respect of prior years &
Total hability included in the balance sheet 197
The liability of £197 million shown n the above table excludes £10 millien of unallocated claims handling expenses
33 Liabitities of the Group ansing from non-participating investment contracts
The movement In habiliies ansing from non-participating invesiment contracts may be analysed as follows Gross  Reinsurance® Net

£m £m £m
Al 31 December 2006 21,839 (33) 21,806
New business 2,316 - 2,316
Changes 1n existing business 215 11 226
At 31 December 2006 24,370 (22) 24,348
New business 2,413 - 2,413
Changes in existing business (1,303) 22 (1,281)
Disposal of businesses (7,283) - (7,283)
At 31 December 2007 18,197 - 18,197

*Remsurance balances receivable are reported within ather assets (note 27)

At 31 December 2007 £17,929 milien (2006 £23,449 millicn) of habilities arising from non-participating investment contracts had a contractual residual maturity

of greater than one year

34 Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses for the Group
The movement In the unallocated surplus within long-term insurance business over the year can be analysed as follows

At 1 January
Change 1n unallocated surplus recognised In the income statement (note 9)
Disposal of businesses

At 31 December
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2007 2006
£m £m
683 518
{114) 165
(15) -
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35 Other habilities The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Setilement balances 445 475 51 8l
Unitholders' interest in OEICs 3,441 4,583 - -
Qther creditors and accruals 5,865 5,976 4,072 3,199
9,751 11,034 4,123 3,280

At 31 December 2007 £4,369 million (2006 £6,410 mullion) of other habilities of the Group and £36 mithon (2006 £328 million) of the Bank had a contractual

residual matunty of greater than one year

36 Retirement benefit obligations

Charge to the Group income staterment 2007 2006
£m Em
Defined benefit pension schemes 158 104
Other post-retirement benefit schemes 17 5
Total defined benefit schemes 175 109
Defined contnbution pension schemes 63 56
238 165

Amounts recognised In the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m fm £m
Defined benefit pension schemes 2,033 2,362 1,512 1,745
Other post-retrement benefit schemes 111 100 111 100
2,144 2462 1,623 1 845

For accounting purposes, the assets and habilities of the Group's post-retirement benefit schemes are allocated between the participating employers, including the
Bank, i proportion to the cash contnbutions made in to the schemes

Pension schemes
Defined benefit schemes

The Group has established a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK and overseas The majonty of the Group's and the Bank's employees are members
of the defined benefit sections of the Lioyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2 These schemes provide rebrement benefits caleulated as a percentage of final
salary depending upon the length of service, the minimum retirement age under the rules of the schemes 1s 50

The latest full valuations of the schemes were carmed out as at 30 June 2005, these have been updated to 31 December 2007 by qualified independent actuanes
The last full valuations of other Group schemes were carried out on a number of different dates, these have been updated to 31 December 2007 by qualified
independent actuanes or, In the case of the Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a qualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows

The Group's and the Bank's obligations In respect of defined benefit schemes are funded The Group expects to pay contributions of some £500 mullion (the Bank
some £400 million} to its defined benefit schemes in 2008

Amounts included n the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £Em £m £m
Present value of funded abligations 16,795 17,378 12,899 13,166
Fair value of scheme assets (16,112) {15,279y (12,410} (11,579)
683 2,099 489 1,587
Unrecogmised actuanal gams 1,350 263 1,023 158
Liatuhty 1n the balance sheet 2,033 2,362 1,512 1,745
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36 Retirement benefit obligattons (continued)

Movements in the defined benefit obligation

At 1 January

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuanal gans

Benefits paid

Past service cost

Curtaiiment

Disposal of businesses
Exchange and other adjustments

At 31 December

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets

At 1 January

Expected return

Employer contributions

Actuanal gains

Benefits pad

Disposal of businesses
Exthange and other adjustments

At 31 December

Actual return on scheme assets

Assumptions

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
17,378 17,320 13,166 13,134
302 325 219 236
866 817 666 623
(971) (434) (751) {324}
(555) (555) (436) (429)
25 32 23 32
- (129) - (108)
(262) - - -
12 2 12 2

16,795 17,378

12,899 13,166

The principal actuanal and financial assumptions used 1n valuations of the defined benefit pension schemes were as follows

Discount rate
Rate of inflation
Rate of salary increases

Rate of increase for pensions In payment and deferred pensions

Life expectancy for member aged 60, on the valuation date

Men
Women

Life expectancy for member aged 60, 15 years after the valuation date

Men
Women

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
15,279 14,026 11,579 10,619
1,035 942 799 717
446 550 342 426
138 314 114 244
(555) {555) (436} (429)
(244) - - -
12 2 12 2
16,112 15,279 12,410 11,579
1,174 1,256 913 961
2007 2006

% %

580 510

330 290

400 393

310 270

Years Years

259 258

279 278

271 270

290 289

The morality assumptions used in the scheme valuations are based on standard tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuanies which were adjusted in line
with the actual experience of the relevant schemes The table shows that a member retinng at age 60 as at 31 December 2007 (s assumed to live for, on average,
25 9 years for a male and 27 9 years for a female in practice there will be much vanation between individual members but these assumptions are expected to be
appropriate across all members It 1s assumed that younger members will live fonger in retirement than those retinng now This reflects the expectation that mortality
rates will continue to fall over ime as medical science and standards of iving improve To Mlustrate the degree of improvement assumed the table also shows the Iife
expectancy for members aged 45 now, when they retire in 15 years time at age 60

An analysis of the impact of a reasonable change in these assumptions 1s provided in note 2
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36 Retirement benefit cbligations {continued}
The expected return on scheme assets has been calculated using the following assumptions

Equities

Fixed interest gilts
Index linked gilts
Non-government bonds

Property
Cash

The expected reiurn on scheme assets in 2008 will be calcutated using the following assumptions

Equities and aliernative assets

Fixed nterest gits

Index inked gilts

Non-government bands

Property

Money market instruments and cash

Composition of scheme assets

Equities

Foed (nferest gilts

Index hnked gilts

Non-government bonds

Property

Money market instruments and cash

At 31 December

2007 2006
% %
80 80
46 41
42 39
51 48
65 64
39 37
2008
%
82
45
44
60
67
48

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
8,537 9,677 6,557 7,376
2,041 1,114 1,629 845
1,433 921 1,093 679
1,990 1,543 1,543 1,148
1,666 1,333 1,342 1,052
445 691 246 479
16,112 15,279 12,410 11,579

The assets of all the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee administered funds

The expected refurn on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy Expected
yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields at the balance sheet date at 2 term and credit rating broadly appropriate for the bonds held
Expected returns on equity and property investment are long-term rates based on the views of the plan's independent investment consultants The expected return on
equities allows far the different expected returns from the private equity, infrastructure and hedge fund investments held by some of the funded ptans Some of the
funded plans also invest in certain money market (nstruments and the expected teturn on these investments has been assumed to be the same as cash
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36 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Experience adjustments history (since the date of adoption of 1AS 19}

The Group 2007 2006 2005 2004
£m Em £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligation 16,795 17,378 17,320 14,866
Fair value of scheme assets (16,112) (15,279) (14,026} (11,648)
683 2,099 3,294 3,218
Expenence kosses on scheme liabilities (185) (50) (69) (126)
Experience gains on scheme assets 139 314 1,538 361
The Bank 2007 2006 2005 2004
£m £m Em £m

Present value of defined benefit obligation 12,899 13,166 13,134 11 282
Fair value of scheme assets (12,410} {11,579) (10,619) (8.839)
489 1,587 2,515 2,443
Experience losses on scheme latnlities {150} (42) {53) (124)
Experience gains on scheme assets 114 243 1,166 282
The expense recognised n the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December comprises 2007 2006
Em Em

Current service cost 302 325
Interest cost 866 817
Expected return on scheme assets {1,035) {942)
Curtaiiment - (128)
Past service cost 25 32
Total defined benefit penston expense 158 104

Following changes 1n age discrimination legislation in 2008, the Group ceased to augment the pension entitlement of employees taking early retirement, this change
reduced the Group's defined benefit pension Liability at 31 December 2006 by £129 mullion (£1 million of which was unrecognised) and resulted in a one-off credit to
the 2006 income statement of £128 million

Defined contnbution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contributicn pension schemes in the UK and overseas, principally the cefined contribution sections of the Lloyds TSB Group
Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2

During the year ended 31 December 2007 the charge to the income statemeni in respect of these schemes was £63 million (2006 £56 million), representing the
contributions payable by the employer in accordance with each scherne's rules

Other post-retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of schemes which provide pest-retirement healthcare benefits to certain employees, retired employees and therr dependants The
principal scheme relates to former Lloyds Bank staif and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retirement healthcare for all ehigible
former employees (and therr dependants) who retired pnor to 1 January 1996 The Group has entered into an insurance contract to provide these benefits and a
provision has been made for the estimated cost of future insurance premiums payable

For the pnincipal post retirement healthcare scheme the latest actuanal valuation of the hability was carried out at 30 June 2007, this valuation has been updated to
31 December 2007 by gqualified independent actuanes The principat assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of increase in healthcare
premiums has been assumed at 7 43 per cent (2006 7 02 per cent)

Amount included in the balance sheet The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em
Present value of unfunded obligations 123 110 123 110
Unrecognised actuanak losses (12) (10} {12) (10}
Liability in the balance sheet 111 100 111 100
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36 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Movements In the other post-retirement benefits obligation The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m Em £m £Em
At 1 January 110 112 110 112
Actuanal lass (gain} 2 (1) 2 {1}
Insurance premiems paid {6) (6) (6} {6)
Charge for the year 17 5 17 5
At 31 Decemnber 123 110 123 110
37 Deferred tax balances
The movement in the net deferred tax balance 15 as follows The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m
Liabilty (asset) at 1 January 1,416 1,170 {861) (984)
Exchange and other adjustments 1 {4) - -
Cisposals (389) (281) - -
Income statement {credit) charge
Due to change n UK corporation tax rate (110} - 46 -
Other 38 531 202 123
(72} 531 248 123
Amount credited to equity
Avallable-for-sale financial assets (note 42) 1) - - -
Cash flow hedges (note 42) {6) - (8) -
N - ® -
Liability (asset) at 31 December 949 1,416 (619) (861)

The 2007 Finance Act reduction In corporation tax rate from 30 per cent to 28 per cent resulted in a decrease 10 the provision for deferred tax at 31 December 2007
of £1 10 mullion for the Group and increased the provision by £46 million for the Bank

The deferred tax (credit) charge n the consolidated income statement comprises the following temporary differences

Accelerated capital allowances

Pensions and other post retirement benefits
Investment reserve

Allowances for impairment losses
Unrealised gains

Tax on value of in-force business

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax assets and labiliies are compnsed as follows

Deferred tax assets

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
Allowances for impairment losses

Other provisions

Derivatives

Tax losses carried forward

Other temporary differences

2007 2006

£Em £m
(32) (106)

137 157

(30} 59

42 22

o1 162
(108) (59)

10 296

(72) 531

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £Em £m
(620} (736) (453) (563}
(101) {143) 97) (136)
(15) (39) (12) (27)
(185) {168) {115) (132)
(409) (326) - -
(144) {(247) (87 {107}
(1,474) (1,659) (764) {965)
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37 Deferred tax balances (continued) The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated capital allowances 979 1,252 61 58
Investment reserve 119 149 - -
Unrealised gains 342 500 - -
Tax on value of In force business 652 875 - -
Other temporary differences 331 299 84 46
2,423 3,075 145 104

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses and foreign tax credit carry forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits 1s probable

Deferred tax assets of £33 million for the Group and £nil for the Bank (2006 £567 mion for the Group and £305 mullion for the Bank) have not been recogmised in
respect of capital losses carned forward as there are no predicted future capital profits Capital losses can be carned forward indefinitely

In addition, deferred tax asseis have not heen recognised tn respect of Eligibte Unrelieved Foreign Tax (EUFT) and other foreign tax credds carried forward as at
31 December 2007 of £104 million for the Group and £34 million for the Bank (2006 £138 million for the Group and £49 millien for the Bank), as there are no
predicted future taxable profits against which the unrelieved foreign tax credits can be utiised EUFT can be carmried forward indefinitely

Deferred {ax habifities

Deferred tax habiities have not been recogrised for tax that may be payable if earmngs of certain subsidianies were remisted to the UK Such amounts are either
reinvested for the foreseeable future or can be remitted free of tax Unremifted eamings totalled £928 mullion for the Group and £111 mullion for the Bank
(2006 £682 million for the Group and £27 million for the Bank)

Future transfers from Scottish Widows plc's long-term business funds to its Shareholder Fund wiil be subject to a shareholder tax charge Under IAS 12, no provision
15 required to be made to the extent that the trming of such transfers 1s under Scotlish Widows pic's control  Accordingly, deferred tax habilities of £90 muliion
{2006 £110 millhion} have not been recognised

38 Other provisions

The Group Provisions for Vacant
conlingent Customer leasehold
labiites and  remediation  property and
commitments provisions other Total
£m £m £m N £m
At 1 January 2007 27 101 131 259
Exchange and other adjustments - - 6 6
Provisions appled {3) (54) {13) (70)
Amortisation of discount - - 3 3
Charge for the year -] - 10 15
Dhsposal of businesses v - )] - (4
At 31 December 2007 29 43 137 209
The Bank Provisions for Vacant
contingent Custamer Jeasehold
hatnlities and  remethation  praperty and
cammitrnents provisions other Total
£m Em £m £m
At 1 January 2007 27 81 88 196
Exchange and other adjustments - - 6 6
Provisions applied . (3) {48) n (58)
Amorusation of discount - - 1 1
Charge for the year 5 - 9 14
Transfer of C&G business {note 26) - 6 - 6
At 31 December 2007 29 39 97 165
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38 Other prowisions {continued}

Prowisions for contingent liabiities and commitments

Provisions are held in cases where the Group 15 irrevocably commutted to provide addinonal funds, but where there 1s doubt as io the potential borrower’s ability to
meet 1is repayment obligations .

Customer remediation provisions

In previous years the Group has established provisions for the estirnated cost of making redress payments to customers in respect of past product sales, 1n those cases
where the oniginal sales processes have been found to be deficient Dunng 2007 management have reviewed the adequacy of the provisions held having regard to
current complant volumes and the leve! of payments beng made and are satisflied that no additional charge 1s required (no charge was made 1 2008)
At 31 December 2007 the remaining prowisions held relate to past sales of a number of products, including marigage endowment policies, sold through the branch
networks of Lioyds TSB Bank, Lloyds TSB Scotland and Cheltenham & Gloucester and underwritten by life assurance companes within the Group and also by third
parties The principal assumptions that are made 1n the assessment of the adequacy of the provision relate to the number of cases that are hkely to require redress
1aking into account any time barnng, and the estimated average cost per case The ultimate cost and tming of the payments rermains highly uncertain and will be
influenced by extemnal factors beyond the control of managernent, such as regulatory actions, media interest and the performance of the financial markets However, 1t
1s expected that the majonty of the remaining expenditure will be incurred over the next year

Vacant leasehold property and other

Vacant leasehold property provisions are made by reference to a prudent estimate of expected sub let income, compared to the head rent, and the possibility of
disposing of the Group's interest in the lease, taking into account conditions tn the property market These provisions are reassessed on an annual basis and wilt
normally run off aver the penad of under-racovery of the leases concerned, currently averaging two years, where a property 1s dispased of earlier than anticipated, any
remaming balance in the provision relating to that property 15 released

The Group also carries pravisions in respect of its obligations refating to UIC insurance Company Limited {UIC), which 1s in provisignal liquidation The Group has
indemnified a third party agarnst losses in the event that UIC does not honour its obligations under a reinsurance contract, which 1s subject to ashestosis and pollution
claims in the US The ultimate cost of setting the Group’s exposure 1n respect of the insurance business of UIC and the tming remains uncertain The provision held
represents management’s current best estimate of the cost after having regard to the financial condition of UIC and actuarial estimates of future claims
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39 Subordinated habihties

The Group 2007 2006
Note Em £m
Preferred secunties
6 90% Perpetual Capita! Secunities (US$1,000 milhion} a.d 471 483
6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares | - -
Eure Step-up Non-Voting Mon-Cumutative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 (€430 miliion) a,) 335 312
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2013 (€500 million} a.c,h 365 345
Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non Cumulative Preferred Secunties callable 2015 (£250 million) ak 248 248
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2017 (€750 mullion) ach 504 478
1,923 1,866
Undated subordinated Labilities
Primary Capita! Undated Floating Rate Notes ab
Series 1 (US$750 mllion) 374 383
Series 2 (US$500 million) 249 255
Series 3 (US$E00 million) 29% 306
113,% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£100 mullion) 100 100
5%:% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 mill:on) ah 915 845
Undated Step-up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 million) ab 110 101
6%3% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (£410 mullion} ag 408 408
5 125% Step-up Perpetual Subordinated Notes callabie 2015 (£560 million) ae 534 525
5 57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 {¥20 billion) a,l 111 107
Undated Subordinated Floating Rate Loan callable 2015 (£600 million} 600 -
Undated Subordinated Floating Rate Loan callable 2016 (US$1,000 million} 498 -
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step up Notes callable 2016 (£500 million) a.g 449 475
6',% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 (£270 million) 4.8 238 255
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 million) a.g 188 189
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (£450 million) a,g 444 447
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 mullion} 4,8 453 470
5,970 4,866
Dated subordinated habilities
7%:% Subordinated Bonds 2007 (E300 million) - 300
5%,% Subordinated Notes 2008 {DM 750 millicr) 281 260
10%:% Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 (£100 million) f 102 104
9'4,% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (£100 mullion) 100 99
6'/2% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 million} 302 283
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 {(£100 million) f 110 113
4%,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 million) 609 562
Subordinated Filoating Rate Notes 2011 (£150 midhon} 150 156
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 (£100 mullion) 100 100
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£200 million) 200 200
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 (£150 milkon} 150 150
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 mullion} 464 464
57/a% Subordinated Naotes 2014 {£150 million) 149 149
6%% Subardinated Netes 2015 (£350 million) 316 330
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 rmillion} b 300 300
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (€500 million) b in 336
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 million) b 73 e7
5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 rmillion) 305 328
9%:% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 million) 312 329
Subordinated Non-Interest Beanng Loan on roling 6 year notice (£15C million) 150 150
4,544 4,774
Total subordinated habilties 12,437 11,506

At 31 December 2007 £12,054 miilion {2006 £11,206 millien) of subordinated habilities had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year
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The Bank 2007 2006
Nate £m £m
Preferred securities
6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunities {US$%1,000 mullion} ad 471 483
6% Non-cumulative Redeernable Preference Shares [ - -
Euro Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunties callable 2012 (€430 million) a, 335 312
6 35% Step-up Perpetuat Capital Secunties callable 2013 (€500 millian) a.ch 365 345
Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Securihies callable 2015 (£250 million) ak 248 248
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2017 (€750 million) a,c.h 504 478
1,923 1,866
Undated subgrdinated habilities
Primary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes ab
Senes 1 (USS750 mullion) 374 383
Series 2 (USS500 mullion) 249 255
Series 3 (US$600 million) 299 306
11%,:% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (£100 million} m 100 -
55%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1 250 million) ah 915 845
Undated Step-up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 millicn) ab 110 101
6%4% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 (€410 million) ag 408 408
5 57% Undated Subordinated Step up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20 billion) ER 111 107
Undated Subordinated Floating Rate Loan callable 2015 (£600 million) 600 -
Undated Subordinated Floating Rate Loan cablable 2016 (US$1,000 milton) 498 -
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 {£500 million) a.g 449 475
6>% Undated Subordinated Step-up Netes callable 2019 (€270 millon) ag 238 255
8% Undated Subordinated Step up Notes calfable 2023 (£200 mullion} ag 188 189
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (€450 mull:on) ag 444 447
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 million) ag 453 470
5,436 4,241
Dated subordinated lhabilities
734% Subordinated Bonds 2007 (£300 million) - 300
5% Subordinated Notes 2008 (DM 750 nulleon) 281 260
105;'5% Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 (£100 mullion) f 102 104
9'%% Subordinated Bonds 2009 (€100 million) 100 99
6Y,% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 million) 302 283
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 (£100 millon) f 110 113
4%,% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 million) 609 562
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 {£150 millicn) m 150 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2011 {£100 rullion) m 100 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2012 (£200 million) m 200 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2013 {£150 mullion) m 150 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 {£464 millien) 464 464
57/:% Subordinated Notes 2014 (£150 million) 149 149
6%.% Subardinated Notes 2015 (£350 million) 316 330
Subardinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 (£300 rmllion} b 300 300
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 callable 2011 {€500 million) b 3n 3386
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 {€100 mithon} b 73 67
5 75% Subordinated Step-up Notes 2025 callable 2020 {£350 mullion) 305 328
9% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 million) 312 329
Subordinated Non-Interest Bearing Loan on rolling 6 year notice {£150 million) 150 150
4,544 4,174
Total subordinated habilihies 11,903 10 281

At 31 December 2007 £11 520 million (2006 £9,981 million) of subordinated liabilities had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

These liabtliies will, 1n the event of the winding-up of the 1ssuer, be subordinated to the claims of depositors and alt other creditors of the 1ssuer Neither the Group nor

the Bank has had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its subordinated lrabilities duning the year (2006 nil}
a} In certain circumstances, these notes, bonds and securities would acquire the charactenstics of preference share capital Any repayments of undated subordinated

liabiities would require the pnor consent of the Financial Services Authonty They are accounted for as lrabilities as coupon payments are mandatory as a

consequence of the terms of the 6% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

b} These notes bear interest at rates fixed penodically in advance based on London Interbank rates

c) in certain circumstances the interest payments on these securities can be deferred although 1n this case nerther Lloyds TSB Bank ple nor Lloyds TSB Group plc can
declare or pay a dividend unti any deferred payments have been made In the event of a winding up of Lloyds TSB Bank ple, these securities will acquire the

charactensiics of preference shares

d} In certain circumstances the interest payments on these securities can be deferred although in this case neither Lloyds TSB Bank plc nor Lioyds TSB Group plc can
declare or pay a dividend until payments are resumed Any deferred payments will be made good on redemption of the secunities The secunties can be redeemed at

par at the option cf Lloyds TSB Bank plc on any coupon date after 22 November 2007
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&) In certain circumstances the interest payments on these secunties can be deferred afthough in this case Scothish Widows plc cannot declare or pay a dividend unti

f}

any deferred payments have been made
Guaranteed by Lloyds TSB Group pl¢ on a subcrdinated basis

g) At the callable date the coupon on these notes will be reset by reference to the applicable five year benchmark gilt rate
h) In the event that these notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset 1o a floating rate

1)
)]

In the event that these notes are not redeemed at the catlable date, the coupon will be reset to a margin of 1 60 per cent over the five year Yen swap rate
These securnties constitute imited partnershp interests in Lloyds TSB Capital 1 L P, a Jersey imited partnershup in which Lloyds TSB {General Partner) Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary, 1s the general partner Non-cumufative income distributions accrue at a fixed rate of 7 375 per cent per annum up to 7 February 2012,
thereafter they will accrue at a margin of 2 33 per cent over EURIBOR, to be set annually This 1ssue was made under the imited subordinated guarantee of Lloyds
TSB Bank pl¢ In certain cercumstances these preferred secunives will be mandatonly exchanged for preference shares in Lioyds TSB Group pie  Lleyds TSB Group ple
has entered nto an agreement whereby dividends may only be paid on its ordinary shares i sufficient distributable profits are available for distributions due in the
financial year on these preferred securities

k) These secunties constitute mited partnership interests in Lioyds TSB Capital 2 L P, a Jersey imited partnership in which Uoyds TSB (General Partner) Limited, a

wholly owned subsidiary, is the general partner Non-cumulative income distributions accrue at a fixed rate of 7 834 per cent per annum up to 7 February 2015,
thereafter they will accrue at a margin of 3 50 per ¢ent over a rate based on the yield of specified UK government stock This 1ssue was made under the limited
subordinated guarantee of Lloyds TSB Bank plc In certain circumstances these preferred secunties wiill be mandatorily exchanged for preference shares in
Lloyds TSB Group plc Lloyds TSB Greup plc has entered into an agreement whereby dividends may only be paid on its ordinary shates if sufficient distnbutable
profits are avadable for distributions due in the financial year on these preferred securities

Threughout 2007 and 2006, the Bank has had in 1ssue 100 6 per cent non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are
redeemable at the option of the Bank at any time, carry the nights to a fixed rate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no dividend
shalt be payable in the event that the directors determine that prudent capital ratros would not be maintained If the dividend were paid Upen winding up, the shares
rank equally with any other preference shares 1ssued by the Bank

m)These subordinated liabilities have been assumed by the Bank as part of the transfer of the C&G business {note 26)

40 Share capital Group and Bank
2007 2006
£m £m

Authonsed share capital
1,650 mullion ordinary shares of £1 each 1,650 1,650

1 cumulative floating rate preference share of £1 - -

100 6 per cent Non-Curnulative Redeemable Preference shares of £1 each - -

Issued and fully paid ardinary shares
Ordinary shares of £1 each
At 1 January and 31 December 1,542 1,542

Cumulative floating rate preference share of £1
At 1 January and 31 December - -

Issued and fully paid preference shares

Throughout 2007 and 2006, the Bank has had in issue 100 6 per cent non cumulative redeemable preference shares of £1 each The shares, which are
redeemable at the option of the Bank at any time, carry the nights to a fixed rate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, no dividend
shall be payabte 1n the event that the directors determine that prudent capital ratios would not be maintained if the dividend were paid Upon winding up, the shares
rank equally with any other preference shares issued by the Bank In accordance with the requirements of Internalicnal Financial Reporting Standards, these shares
are reported within liabilities {note 39)

41 Share premium account Group and Bank
2007 2006
£m £m
At 1 January and 31 December 2,960 2,960
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42 Other reserves

Other reserves comprise

Revaluation reserve in respect of avallable-for-sale financral assets
Cash flow hedging reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve

Movements in other reserves were as follows

Revalation reserve i respect of available-for-sale financial assets
Al 1 January
Exchange and other adjustments

Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale financial assets
Current tax
Deferred tax

Income statement transfer
Disposals

impairment

Current tax

Disposal of businesses
At 31 December

Cash flow hedging reserve
At 1 January

Change 1 fair value of hedging denvatives
Deferred tax

Income statement transfer

At 31 December

Foreign cutrency translation reserve

At 1 January

Currency transiation differences ansing in the year
Foreign currency {losses) gains on net investment hedges
Current fax

At 31 December
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The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em
(399) - (49} (3)
{3) 12 {3} 12
(9) (27} 8 {5)
411) (15} (44) 4
The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em Em
- 29 (3) 26
1) 2 - -
(483) (103 (130} (7)
46 - 46 -
1 - - -
(436) (10) (84) )]
(5) (22) (6] (22)
70 - 70 -
{21} 1 (21) -
a4 (21) 44 (22)
(6} - 6) -
(399} - (49} (3}
12 11 12 11
(20} - (20) -
6 - 6 -
(14) - (14) -
1) 1 {1) 1
(3) 12 (3) 12
27) 4 (5) 18
257 (108} 13 (23)
(342) 110 - -
103 {33) - =
(239} 77 - -
{9 (27) 8 {5}
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43 Retamed profits The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 7.637 6,639 4,257 3,726
Profit for the year* 3,384 2,916 2,799 2,449
Dmvdends {1,957) (1,918) (1,957) (1,918)
Transfer of C&G business (note 26) - - 573 -
At 31 December 9,064 7,637 5,672 4,257

*No tncome statement has been shown for the Bank, as permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985

44 Ordinary dividends 2007 2006

Em fm
Second intenm dividend 1n respect of previous year, declared dusing the current year 1,325 1,316
First interim dividend in respect of current year 632 002

1,957 1,918

The directors have proposed a second intenm dividend of £1,621 millwon (2006 £1,325 million) which will be paid on 7 May 2008, this 15 equivalent to
105 14 pence per ordinary share (2006 85 94 pence)

45 Share based payments

Charge to the income statement

The charge 1o the income statement 1s set out below 2007 2006
£m £m

Executive and SAYE schemes

QOptions granted in the year ] | 6

Cptions granted in prior years 24 25
30 31

Share incentive plan

Shares granted in the year 12 12

Shares granted in pricr years 17 15
29 27
59 58

During the year ended 31 December 2007 Llayds TSB Group plc operated the following share based payment schemes, a!l of which are equity settled

Executive schemes

The executive share aption schemes were long-term incentive schemes available to certain senior executives of the Group, with grants usually made annually Options
were granted within imits set by the rules of the schemes relating to the number of shares under option and the price payable on the exercise of options The last grant
of executive options was made in August 2005 These oplions were granted without a performance multipker and the maximum limi for the grant of options In
normal crrcumstances was three times annual salary Between Apnl 2001 and August 2004, the aggregate value of the award based upoen the market price at the
date of grant could not exceed four imes the executive’s annuai remuneration and, normally, the limit for the grant of options to an executive 1n any one year would be
equal to 1 5 times annual salary with a maximum performance multiplier of 35 Prior to 18 Apnl 2001, the normal Lirmit was equal to one year's remuneration and
no performance multiplier was applied
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Performance condilions for execulive oplions

For options granled up to March 2001

QOptions granted Perormance condiions

March 1997 - August 1999 Growth in eamings per share which 15 equal tc the aggregate percentage change in the Retail
Price Index plus two percentage points for each complete year of the relevant perod together
with a further condition that Lloyds TSB Group pic's ranking based on shareholder return
{calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) over the relevant period
should be in the top fifty companies of the FTSE 100

March 2000 - March 2001 As for March 1997 — August 1999 except that there must have been growth in the earnings
per share equal to the change in the Retail Price tndex plus three percentage poings for each
complete year of the relevant period

In respect of options granted between March 1997 and March 2001 the relevant penod for the performance conditions begins at the end of the financial year
preceding the date of grant and will continue until the end of the third subsequent year following commencement or, f not met, the end of such later year in which the
conditions are met Once the conditions have been satisfied the options will remain exercisable without further conditions 1If they are not satisfied by the tenth
anniversary of the grant the option will lapse

For options granted from August 2001 to August 2004
The performance condition 1s inked to the performance of Lioyds TSB Group plc's total shareholder return (calculated by referance to both dividends and growtn in
share price) against a comparator groug of 17 compames inctuding Lloyds TS8 Group plc

The performance condition 1s measured over a three year penod commencing at the end of the financral year preceding the grant of the option and continuing until the
end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition 1S not then met, 1t will be measured at the end of the fourth financtal year If the condition has not then
been met, the options will lapse

To meet the performance conditions, the Group's ranking against the comparator group must be at least ninth The full grant of options wilil only become exercisable i
Lloyds TSB Group plc 1s ranked first A performance multiplier (of between nil and 100 per cent) will be applied below this level to calculate the number of shares in
respect of which options granted to executive directors will become exercisable, and will be calculated on a shiding scale If Lioyds TSB Group plc 1s ranked below
median the options will not be exercisable

Optians granted to senior executives other than executive directors are not so highly leveraged and, as a result, different performance multipliers are applied to their
options For the majonty of executives, options are granted with the performance conditon but no performance multipher

For options granted in 2005
The same conditions apply as for grants made up to August 2004, except that

— the performance condition 1s linked to the performance of Lloyds TSB Group plc's total shareholder return (catculated by reference to both dividends and growth in
share price) against a comparator group of 15 companies including Lloyds TSB Group plc,

- If the performance condition has not been met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options wilt lapse, and

— the full grant of aptions becomes exercisabte only iIf the Group 1s ranked in the top four places of the comparator group A sliding scale apphes between fourth and
eighth positions If Lioyds TSB Group 1s ranked below the median {ninth or below) the options will not be exercisable and will lapse

Movements in the number of share options outstanding under the Executive share option schemes dunng 2006 and 2007 are set out below

' 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted

2007 average exercise 2006 average exercise

Number of options pnce {pence) Number of opbons pnce (pence)

Quistanding at 1 January 32,459,593 459 84 43,977 411 485 35
Exercised (267,650) 509 10 (328,218) 437 Q3
Forfeited (11,570,169) 421 76 (11,189.600) 560 77
Qutstanding at 31 December 20,621,774 480 57 32,459,593 459 84
Exercisable at 31 December 423,300 876 37 819,139 744 90

The wetghted average share price at the time that the options were exercised during 2007 was 574 39 pence (2006 552 29 pence) The weighted average
remaining contractuat iife of options outsianding at the end of the year was 6 2 years (2006 6 8 years)

Save-As-You-Earn schemes

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Eam (SAYE) schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the expiry of a fixed term of three or
five years, have the option to use these savings within six months of the expiry of the fixed term to acquire shares In Lloyds TSB Group plc at a price equal to
80 per cent of the market price at the date the opticns were granted Grants in penods up to 31 December 2001 alsc had options exercising after seven years
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Movemenss in the number of share options outstanding under the SAYE schemes are set out below

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

2007 average exercise 2006 average exercise

Number of options pnice (pence}  Number of options pnce {pence)

Qutstanding at 1 January 90,220,144 33594 114,459,474 31417
Granted 10,759,688 432 00 19,301,716 418 00
Exercised (9,473,792) 351 28 (35,148,982) 294 84
Forfeited (3,447,524) 363 45 (3,440,257) 33947
Cancelled (1,822,417) 397 98 (3,984,599) 427 14
Expired (562,872) 547 46 {967,208) 50313
Qutstanding at 31 December 85,673,227 342 49 90,220,144 335654
Exercisable at 31 December 1,560,472 45901 889,479 47541

The weighted average share price at the time that the opticns were exercised duning 2007 was 552 20 pence (2006 524 36 pence) The weighted average
remaining contractual hife of options outstanding at the end of the year was 1 7 years {2006 2 2 years)

The weighted average fair value of SAYE options granted duning the year was £1 07 (2006 £1 00) The values for the SAYE options have been determined using a
standard Black-Scholes model

Other share option plans

Lioyds TSB Group Executive Share Plan 2003

The plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the plan share options may be granted fc seniar employees Options granted to date under this scheme were
granted specifically to facitate recruitment Options granted under this plan are not subject to any performance conditions

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

2007 average exercise 2006 average exercise

Number of opticns price {pence) Number of options pnce (pence)

Qutstanding at 1 January 357,123 Nil 268,918 Nil
Granted 214,444 Nil 165,395 Nil
Exercised {203,170) Nit (77,190} Nil
Forferted (59,679) Nif - Nil
Outstanding at 31 December 308,718 Nil 357,123 Nil

The weighted average fair value of oplions granted In the year was £5 27 (2006 £4 58) The weighted average share price at the time that the optiens were
exercised during 2007 was 539 77 pence (2006 557 25 pence} No options outstanding at 31 December were exercisable The weighted average remaining
contractual Iife of options outstanding at the end of the year was 1 B years (2006 2 O years) .

Lioyds TS8 Group executive share plan 2005

This plan was adopted by the Group 1n 2005, specifically to facilitate the recruitment of Ms Dhal Ms Dial 1s the only paricipard in the plan Options granted under this
plan are not subject to any performance conditions and will normally become exercisable only i Ms Dial remains as an employee and has not given notice of
resignation, on 31 May 2008, or if Ms Dial ceases to be an employee before that date in certain circumstances described in her service agreement 1n both cases the
options will be exercisable for s months and then lapse

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

2007 average exercise 2008 average exercise

Number of options pnce (pence)  Number of options price {pence)

Qutstanding at 1 January and 31 Decermnber 242,825 Nil 242,825 Nil

No options outstanding at 31 December were exercisable The weighted average remaining contractual ife of options outstanding at the end of the year was O 9 years
(2006 19 years)

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Long-Term incentive Plan introduced 1n 2006 1s a long-term incentive scheme atmed at delivering shareholder value by linking the receipt of shares to an
improvement in the performance of the Group over a three year period Awards are made within imits set by the rules of the plan, with ihe limits determiming the
maximum number of shares that can be awarded equating to three times annual salary, in exceptional circumstances this may ncrease up to four tmes
annual salary

The performance conditions for awards made in May and August 2006 are as follows

[} For 50 per cent of the award (the 'EPS Award') - the percentage increase 1 earnings per share of the Group {on a compound annualised basis} over the
relevant period must be at least an average of 6 percentage points per annum greater than the percentage increase (if any) in the Retail Price Index over the
same penod 11115 less than 3 per cent per annum the EPS Award will lapse If the increase 1s more than 3 per cent but less than 6 per cent per annum then
the proportion of shares released will be on a straight line basis between 17 5 per cent and 100 per cent The relevani period commenced on 1 January 2006
and ends on 31 December 2008
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() For ihe other 50 per cent of the award (the ‘TSR Award'} — it will be necessary for the Group's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both
dividends and growth in share price) to exceed the median of a comparator group (14 companies) over the relevant penod by an average of 7 5 per cent per
annum for the TSR Award to vest in full 17 5 per cent of the TSR Award will vest where the Group's total shareholder return s equal to median and vesting
will occur on a straight hne basis in between these potnts Where the Group’s total shareholder retum 1s below the median of the comparator group the TSR
Award will 1apse The relevant perrod commenced on 1 January 2006 and ends on 31 December 2008

The performance conditions for awards made in March and August 2007 are as follows

(1} For 50 per cent of the award (the ‘EPS Award') - the performance condition 1s as described for May 2006 with the relevant performance penod commencing
on 1 January 2007 and ending on 31 December 2009

() For the other 50 per cent of the award (the ‘TSR Award’) - the periormance condition 1s as described for May 2006 with the relevant performance period
commencing on 8 March 2007 (the date of award) and ending on 7 March 2010

2007 2006

Number of Muenber of

shares shares

Qutstanding at 1 January 5,788,108 -
Granted 7,884,787 5,852,386
Forfeited (463,814) (64,278)
Qutstanding at 31 December 13,209,081 5,788,108

The farr value of the share awards granted in 2007 was £3 13 (2006 £2 96)

Performance share plan

Under the performance share plan, introduced during 2005, participating executives will be eligible for an award of free shares, known as performance shares, o
matich the bonus shares awarded as part of their 2004 and 2005 bonus The maximum match will be two performance shares for each bonus share, awarded at the
end of a three year period The actual number of Lioyds TSB Group plc's shares awarded will depend on Lioyd TSB Gioup's total shareholder return performance
measured over a three year penod, compared to other companies In the comparater group The maximum of two performance shares for each bonus share will be
awarded only if the Group's total sharehalder return performance places it first in the comparator group, one performance share for each bonus share will be granted if
the Group 15 placed fifth, and one performance share for every two bonus shares if the Group 15 placed eighth (median) Between first and fifth position and fifth and
eighth position sliding scales will apply If the total shareholder return performance 1s below median, no performance shares will be awarded There will be no retest
Whilst income tax 1s deducted from the bonus before deferral into the plan, where a match of performance shares 15 justified, these shares will be awarded as f
inceme tax had not been deducted

2007 2006

Number of Number of

shares shares

Qutstanding at 1 January 1,849,102 826,438
Granted - 1,035,564
Farfeited (81,508) {12,900}
QOutstanding at 31 December 1,767,594 1,849,102

The fair value of the matching element of the performance shares awarded dunng 2006 was £1 92

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaining contractual life and number of options outstanding for the option
schemes were as {ollows

Executive schemes SAYE schemes Other share option plans
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
exercise  remaining life Number of exercise  remainung hite Number of exercise  remaining lfe Number of
price (pence) (years) options  price {pence) {years) options  price {pence) (years) options
31 December 2007
Exercise price range
£0t0 £2 - - - - - - N1 14 551,543
£2t0 £3 - - - 284 00 09 42,651,925 - - -
£3to £4 - - - 353 10 19 15,775,539 - - -
£4to £5 449 34 68 17,898,897 424 23 29 26,525,262 - - -
£51t0 £6 551 09 22 815,965 563 65 01 720,501 - - -
£6to £7 652 47 31 1114912 - - - - - -
£7 to £8 - - - - - - - - -
£81to £9 871 54 07 792,000 - - - - - -
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Exscutive schernes SAYE schemes Other share option plans
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
exercise price  remaining life Numbes of  exercise grice  remaining hife Number of  exerise price  remaining life Number of
(pence) (years) options (pence) (years) options (pence) (years) options
31 December 2006
Exercise price range
£0 o £2 - - - - - - Nil 19 599,948
£2t0E3 - - - 284 Q0 18 45,234,578 - - -
£3t0£4 394 25 62 6265105 345 97 23 23,320,638 - - -
E4 0 £5 444 24 77 22,497,465 422 94 31 20,125,284 - - -
E51to0 £6 541 32 26 1,424,507 571 24 07 1522876 - - -
£6 to £7 652 98 42 1,332,177 - - - - - -
£7 to £8 - - - 718 00 02 16,768 - - -
EBto £9 87312 ¥7 940,339 - - - - - -

The fair value calcutations are based on the following assumptions

Other option Other share

SAYE schemes plans
Risk-free interest rate 5 35% 546% 519%
Expecied life 3 7 years 1 4 years 3 0 years
Expected velatihity 21% 17% 17%
Expected dividend yietd 63% 6 0% 63%
Weighted average share price £540 £573 £541
Waeighted average exercise price £4 32 Nit Nil
Expected forfeitures 6% 4% 4%

Expected volatility 1s a measure of the amount by which Lloyds TSB Group plc's shares are expected to fluctuate during the life of an option The expected volatiity 15
estimated based on the historical volatihity of the closing daily share price over the most recent period that 1s commensurate with the expected Iife of the option The
historical volatility 15 compared to the implied volatility generated from market traded options in Lloyds TSB Group plc's shares to assess the reasonableness of the
historical volatiity and adjustments made where appropttate

Share incentive plan

Free shares

An award of Lioyds TSB Group plc shares may be made annually to employees based on a percentage of each employee's salary in the preceding year up to
maximum of £3,000 The percentage 1s normally announced concurrently with Lloyds TSB Group's annual results and the price of the shares awarded 1s announced
at the time of award The shares awarded are held in trust far a mandatory penod of three years en the employees’ behalf The award 15 subject to a non-markel based
condiion 1f an employes leaves the Uoyds TSB Group within this three year period for other than a ‘good’ reason, all of the shares awarded would be forfeited (for
awards made up to April 2005, only a portion of the shares will be forfeited 75 per cent within one year of the award, 50 per cent within two years and 25 per cent
within three years)

The number of shares awarded relating to free shares (n 2007 was 6,784,201 (2006 7,725,195), with an average fair value of £5 82 (2006 £5 28), based on
the market price at the date of award

Matching shares

Lioyds TSB Group undertakes to match shares purchased by emplayees up to the value of £30 per month, these shares are held in trust for 2 mandatory period of
three years on the employees behalf The award is subject to a non-market based conditon if an employee leaves within this three year perod for ather than a ‘good’
reason or the accompanying partnership shares are sold within that time, 100 per cent of the matching shares are forfeited (or the portion relating to the shares sold)

The number of shares awarced relating to matching shares 1n 2007 was 2,073,018 (2006 2,036,423), with an average fair value of £5 49 (2006 £5 40), based
on market prices ai the date of award
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibiity for planning, directing and conirolling the activities of an entity, the Group's key
management personnel are the members of the Lloyds T$B Group plc group execuiive commitiee together with its non-executive directers

The table below details, on an aggregated basis, key management personnel compensation 2007 2006
£m £m
Compensation
Salanies and other short-term benefits 15 14
Post-employment benefits 4 3
Termination benefits - -
Share based payments 4 3
Total 23 20

The aggregate of the emoluments of the directors was £12,055,000 (2006 £11,257 000)
The aggregate of the amount of the gains made by directors on the exercise of Uoyds TSB Group ple share options was £nil (2006 £125,175)

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing under defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes were two and three respectively
{2006 two and four} Aggregate company contnbutions in respect of directors to defined contribution pension schemes were £173,000 (2006 £122,000)

The total for the highest paid director (Mr Daniels) including the £ril (2006 £7,702) gain on the exercise of Lloyds TS8 Group ple share options, was £2,884,000
(2006 £2,452,000) The amount of his accrued pension at the year end was £147,000, being his pension entitlement based on pensionable service with the
Group to 31 December 2007 but payable at normal retirement age

2007 2006
millions millions
Share options over Uoyds TS8 Group plc shares
At 1 January 11 i2
Granted {including opticns of appointed directors) - -
Exercised/lapsed (including optiens of retired directors) (4) (1)
At 31 December 7 11
2007 2006
milhons mulions
Share incentive plans over Lioyds TSB Group plc shares
At 1 January 4 1
Granted (including entitlements of appoiniees) 2
Exercised/lapsed {including entitlements of retirees) -
At 31 December 6 a

The tables below detail, on an aggregated basis, balances outstanding at the year end and related income and expense, together with information relating 1o other
transactions between the Group and its key management personne)

2007 2006
£m fim

Loans
At 1 January 2 3
Advanced 1 N
Repayments (1} (1)
At 31 December 2 2

The loans are on both a secured and unsecured basis and are expected to be settled in cash The loans attracted nterest rates of between 4 95 per cent and
30 0 per cent in 2007 (2006 5 1 per cent and 19 9 per cent)

No provisions have been recognised In respect of loans given to key management personnel {2006 £nil)

2007 2006
£m £m

Deposits
At 1 January 5 5
Placed 21 12
Withdrawn (21) (12)
At 31 December 5 5
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Deposits placed by key management personnel attracted interest rates of up to 8 O per cent (2006 5 2 per cent)
Al 31 December 2007, the Group provided guaraniees totalling £6,154 in respect of one directar (2006 £19,744 in respect of one director)

Al 31 December 2007, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Group and its banking subsid:aries with directors and connected persons
included amounts outstanding m respect of toans and credit card transactions of £2 million with five directers and three connected persons (2006 £2 millian with
four directers and four connected persons)

Balances and transactions with feltow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings

Balances and transactions between members of the Uoyds TSB Bank group

In accordance with IAS 27, transactions and balances between the Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, and between those subsidiary undertakings have all been
eliminated on consolidation and thus are not reported as related party transactions of the Group

The Bank as a result of its position as parent of a banking group, has a large number of transactions with varigus of 1ts subsidiary undertakings, these are inciuded on
the batance sheet of the Bank as follows

2007 2006
£m £m

Assets, included within
Derivative financial instruments 203 273
Loans and advances to banks 6,575 60,804
Loans and advances to customers 42,660 37,301
Other assets 264 477

49,702 98,855

Liabtiities, inctuded within

Deposits from banks 10,015 9,513
Customer accounts ' 25,348 18,294
Derwvative financial instruments 702 706
Subordinated liabilities 583 560
Other liabilities 519 510

37,167 29,583

Due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, it 1s neither practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and outflows
Dunng 2007 the Bank earmned interest iIncome cn the above asset balances of £4,269 million (2006 £4,585 millien) and incurred interest expense on the above
liability balances of £1,513 millien (2006 £940 million)

In addition, the Bank raised recharges of £476 million (2006 £517 million) on its subsidiaries in respect of costs incurred and also received fees of £705 million
(2006 £583 millien), and paid fees of £125 million {2006 £14 milhon), for vanous services provided between the Bank and 1ts subsidianes

Details of contingent habilities and commitments entered inte on behalf of fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings are given in note 47

Balances and transactions with Uoyds TS8 Group pic
The Bank and its subsidiaries have balances due to and from the Bank's parent company, Lioyds TSB Group plc, which are included on the balance sheet as follows

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £Em Em
Assets, inctuded within
Denvative financial instruments 29 - 29 -
Loans and advances to customers - 1,850 - 04

29 1,850 29 204
Liabilities, included within
Customer accounts 158 1,425 81 1,349
Dernwvative financial instruments 169 114 169 114
Subordinated liabilities 2,765 1,714 2,765 1,114
Other labilities 17 - 17 -

3,109 3253 3,032 2,677

These balances include Lloyds TSB Group ple's banking arrangemenis and, due 1o the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, it 1s neither
practical nor meaningful to disclose information on gross inflows and outflows Duning 2007 the Group earned interest income on the above asset batances of
£1 milkon and the Bank earned interest income of £nit (2006 Group £3 million, Bank £nil), the Group incurred an interest expense on the above liability batances of
£176 million and the Bank incurred an interest expense of £148 million {2006 Group £105 millkon, Bank £73 million)
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Other refated party disclosures
At 31 December 2007 the Group's pension funds had call deposits with Lioyds TSB Bank plc amounting to £23 million {2006 £19 million)

The Group manages 107 (2006 89) Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs), and of these 40 (2006 38} are consoldated The Group invested £1,961 million
{2006 £372 million) and redeemed £1 526 milion (2006 £237 mllion) in the unconsolidated OEICs durning the year and had investments, at far value of
£2,233 milhon {2006 £1,746 million) at 31 December The Group earned fees of £200 muthon from the unconsolidated OEICs (2006 £149 million} The Bank
held no investments in QEICs at any time dunng 2006 or 2007

The Group has a number of asscciates held by its venture capital business that it accounts for at fair value through profit or loss At 31 December 2007, these
companies had total assets of approximately £3,184 miliion {2006 £1 625 millien), habilities of approximately £3,182 milon (2006 £1,609 mill:on) and for the
year ended 31 December 2007 had turnover of approximately £2,136 milhon (2006 £2,409 million) and made a net profit of approximately £9 million (2006 net
loss of £5 milllon} In addition the Group has provided £609 milllon (2006 £460 million) of financing te these companies on which 1t received £23 miliion
(2006 £20 milton) of interest income 10 the year

47 Contingent habilities and commitments

Legal proceedings

During the ordinary course of business the Group 15 subject to threatened or actual legal proceedings All such matenal cases are pencdically reassessed, with the
assistance of external professional advisers where appropnate, to determine the ikelihood of the Group incurring a habiity In those instances where it 1s concluded
that it 1s more likely than not that 2 payment will be made, a provisicn Is established to management's best estimate of the amount required to settle the cbligation at
the relevant balance sheet date In some cases it wili not be possible to form a view, either because the facts are unclear or because further hme Is needed properly o
assess the ments of the case No prowisions are held agamnst such cases, however the Group does not currently expect the final outcome of these cases to have a
matetial adverse effect on its financial position

On 27 July 2007, following agreement between the UK Office of Fair Trading (OFT) and a number of UK financial institutions, the OFT 1ssued High Court legal
proceedings against those institutions, including Lloyds TSB Bank plc, to determine the legal status and enforceability of certain of the charges applied to ther
personal customers Iin relation to requests for unplanned overdrafts A preliminary 1ssues hearing has now taken place and judgement 1s currently awaited It s likely
that further hearings will be required and, if appeals are pursued, the proceedings may take a number of years to conclude Pending resalution, the Financial Services
Authonty has agreed, subject to certain conditions, that the handling of customer complaints on this sssue can be suspended until the proceedings are concluded
unless in the hight of prevalling circumstances this would be inapproprate The Group intends strongly to defend its position  Accordingly, no provisicn In refation to
the outcome of this tigation has been made Depending on the Court's determinations, a range of outcomes Is possible, some of which could have a significant
financial impact on the Group The ultimate impact of the htigation on the Group can only be known at its conclusion

There has been Increased scrutiny of the financial institutions sector, especially in the US, with respect to combating money laundering and terronst financing and
enforcing comphiance with economic sanctions The Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) administers US laws and regulations in relation to US economic sanctions
against designated foreign countnies, nationals and others and the Group has been conducting a review of 1is conduct with respect to historic US dollar payments
involving countries, persons or entities subject to those sanctions The Group has provided information relating to its review of such histonc payments to a number of
authorities inctuding OFAC, the US Department of Justice and the New York County Distnict Astorney's office which, along with other authonties, have been reported
to be conducting a broader review of sanctions compliance by non US financial institutions  The Group is involved 1n ongoing discussions with these authorities with
respect to agreeing a resolution of their investigations No provision has been made in respect of this matter The Group does not expect the final outcome to have a
matenial adverse effect on its financial position

Contingent habiities and commiiments ansing from the banking business
Acceptances and endorsements arise where the Group or the Bank agrees to guarantee payment on a negotiable instrument drawn up by a customer

Other 1terns serving as direct credit substiiutes wnctude standby letters of credit, or other rrevocable obligations, where the Group or the Bank has an irrevocable
obligation to pay a third party beneficiary if the customer fails to repay an outstanding commiment, they also include acceptances drawn under letters of credit or
similar faciliies where the acceptor does not have specific title to an dentifiable underlying shipment of goods

Performance bends and other transaction-related contingencies (which include bid or tender bonds, advance payment guarantees, VAT Customs & Excise bonds and
standby letters of credit relating to a particular contract or non-financral transaction) are undertakings where the requirement to make payment under the guaraniee
depends on the outcome of a future event

The Group's and the Bank's maximum exposure to loss is represented by the contractual nonuinal amount detailed in the table below Consideration has not been
taken of any possible recovenes from customers for payments made in respect of such guarantees under recourse provisions or from collateral held
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47 Contingent habilittes and comritments (continued) The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 40 63 42 68
Other
Other items serving as direct credit substitutes 1,095 618 984 654
Performance bonds and other transaction-related cantingencies 2,429 2,096 2,465 2,114
3,524 2714 3,449 2,768
3,564 2,777 3,491 2,836
The Bank
2007 2006
£m £m
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings 42 62

The contingent liabihities of the Group and the Bank, as detailed above, arise in the normal course of banking business and 1t 1s not practicable to quanufy ther fulure

financial effect

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m
Commitments
Documentary credits and other shori-term trade-related transactions 306 374 309 273
Forward asset purchases and forward deposits placed 463 5,764 590 5,764
Undrawn formal standby facihties, credit hnes and aother commiiments to lend
Less than 1 year oniginal maturity
Mortgage offers made 4,639 4,071 4,083 -
Cther commitments 52,791 49,731 63,704 58,115
57,430 53,802 67,787 58,115
1 year or over onginal maturity 32,165 28,477 28,572 24,996
90,364 88,417 97,258 89,148
The Bank
2007 2006
£m Em
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings 13,526 12,589

Of the amounts shown above in respect of undrawn formal standby facilities ¢redit lines and ather commitments to Jend £53,036 million (2006 £51,288 rmillion)

for the Group and £46,831 million (2006 £52,419 rmulhion} for the Bank were irrevocahle

Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company Is the lessee, the future mimmum lease payments under non-canceliable prermises operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Mot later than 1 year 212 212 194 192
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 677 733 617 677
Later than 5 years 764 835 678 759
1,653 1,780 1,489 1,628

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for cestain of its properties Some of these operating lease arrangements have renewa!l options and
rent escalation clauses, although the effect of these 1s not matenal No arrangements have been entered mto for contingent rental payments

Capital commutments

Excluding commitments of the Group v respect of investment property (note 20), capial expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December 2007
amounted to £102 mdlion for the Group and £5 mulhon for the Bank (2006 £75 mullion for the Group and £1 mullion for the Bank) Of the capital commitments of
the Group, £96 million {2006 £74 milkion} relates to assets to be leased to customers under operating leases The Group's management is confident that future net
revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover these commitments
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As a bancassurer, financral instiruments are fundamental to the Group's activities and, as a conseguence, the nsks associated with financial instruments represent a
significant component of the rnisks faced by the Group

The pnmary nisks affecting the Group through its use of fingncral instruments are credit nsk, market nsk, which includes interest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk,
insurance nsk, and lquidity nsk Information about the Group's management of these rnisks is given below

Credit nsk

Definution

The nsk of reductions in earnings andfor value through financial or reputational loss, as a result of the failure of the party with whom we have contracted to meet 1
obligations (both on and off balance sheet)

Risk appette
Credit nsk appetite 1s expressed beth 1n terms of credit nisk econormic eguity and 1n terms of the impact of credit nsk on earmings volatihty

Credit nsk appetite 1s described and reported through a suite of metrics derived from a combination of accounting and credit porifolic model parameters which in turn
use the vanous credit nsk rating systems as inputs These metrics are supplemented by a variety of policies, sector caps and limits to manage concentration risk at an
acceptable level

Exposures
The principal sources of credit nisk within the Group anise from toans and advances to retail customers, financial institutions and corporate clients The credit nsk
exposures of the Group are set out within this note

In terms of loans and advances, credit nsk anses both from amounts lent and commitments to extend credit 1o a custorner as required These commitments can take
the form of loans and overdrafts, or credit instruments such as guarantees and standby, documentary and commercial letters of credit With respect to commitments
fo extend credit, the Group 1s potentially exposed to loss in an amaunt equal to the total unused commitments However, the likely amount of loss I1s leéss than the total
unused commitments as most retaill commitments to extend credit can be cancelled and the credit worthiness of customers 15 monitered continually In addition
most wholesale commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards

Credit sk can also anse from debt securities, denvatives and foreign exchange activites Note 15 shows the total notional principal ameunt of interest rate, exchange
rate, credit denvative and equity and other contracts outstanding at 31 December 2007 The notional principal amount does not, however, represent the Group's
credit nsk exposure, which 1s imited to the current cost of replacing contracts with a positive value to the Group

Credit risk exposures in the insurance businesses arnse primarily from holding investments and from exposure 1o reinsurers

Measurement

In measunng the credit nsk of loans and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, the Group reflects three components (1) the ‘probability of
default’ by the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations, (i) current exposures to the counterparty and their hkely future development, from which the Group
denves the ‘exposure at default’, and (u1) the likely recovery ratio on the defaulted obligations {the loss given default’)

The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating models talored to the various categones of counterparty For its retail
lending expaosure at default and loss given default models are also inuse All rating models, which are authorised by executive management, comply with the Group’s
standard methodology They have been developed internally and use statistical analysis, combined, where appropnate, with external data and/or credit officer
Judgement Each rating model s subject to a nigorous vahdation process, undertaken by independent nsk teams, which includes benchmarking to externally available
data, where possible

Each probability of default rating model segmenis counterparties into a number of rating grades, each representing a defined range of default probabilities The
outputs of different rating approaches are also mapped on to either a retall or a wholesale master scale {an analysis of the portfolio 1s set out within this note)
Exposures migrate between classifications if the assessment of the obhigor probability of default changes or, in the case of martgages, 1f the abligor probability of
default changes or the assessment of loan-to-value changes

The rating systems described above assess probability of default exposure at default and loss given defauit, wn order to denve an expected loss in contrast,
impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence
of impairment (note 18) Due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financtal statements differs from the
amount determined from the expected loss model that is used for internal operational management and banking regulation purposes

The Group's debt secunties heldings, which are the subject of external agency ratings, are marked to market and independently checked by the middle office function
within the products and markets business Simiarly, debt secunty investments within Scottish Widows are independently marked to market

The Group atso employs a statistically-based credit portfolio model, which models portfolio credit nisk based on defaults and calculates the economic equity employed
and credit value at nisk for each portiolic

Mitigation
The Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit nsk

Internal control

- Credit principles and policy Uoyds TSB Group Risk sets out the group credit principles and policy according 1o which credit nisk 1s managed, which in turn is the
basis for dwisional and business umi credit policy Prninciples and policy are reviewed regulany and any changes are subject to a review and approval process
Business unit policy includes lending guidelines, which define the respensibities of lending officers and provide a disciplined and focused benchmark for credit
deasions Credit policy also specifies maximum holding period limits for the credit trading portfolios
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Counterparty hmits Credit nsk in wholesale portfolios is subject to individual credit assessments, which consider the strengths and weaknesses of individual
transactions and the balance of nsk and reward Exposure to indivmdual counterparties groups of counterparties or customer risk segments 15 controlled through a
tiered hierarchy of delegated sanctioning authonties Approval requirements for each decisicn are based on the transaction amount, the customer's aggregate
faciities credit risk ratings and the nature and term of the nsk The Group's credit approval critena for counterparty underwriting 1s the same as that for assets
intended to be held over the peniod to maturnity

Credit sconng Inits principal retail portfolios, the Group uses statistically-based decisioning techniques {pnmarily credit scaring) Divisional sk depaniments review
scorecard effectiveness and approve changes, with material changes subject to Lloyds TSB Group Risk approval

.

Cross-border and cross currency exposures Country imsts are authorised and managed by a dedicated urit taking into account economic and political factors

Concentration nsk Credit nsk management in¢ludes portfelio controls on certain industnies, sectors and product lines that reflect nsk appette Credit policy 15
aligned to our sk appetite and restricts exposure to certain high nsk and more vulnerable sectors Note 17 provides an analysis of loans and advances to customers
by industry {for wholesale) and product (for retal) Exposures are monitored to prevent excessive concentration of nsk These concentration nisk controls are nat
necessarily in the form of a maximum mit on fending but may instead require new business in concentrated sectors to fulfil additional hurdle requirements
Amongst these controls 15 a senes of sector caps to manage restdual value risk exposure, seeking to ensure an acceptable distnbution of nsk The Group's targe
exposures are managed in accordance with regulatory reporting requirements

Stress testing and scenarno analysis The credit portfolio s also subjected to stress testing and scenario analysis, to simulate outcomes and calculate their associated
impact Events are medelled at a groupwide level at divisional and business unit level and by portolio for example, for a specific industry sector

Specialist units Credit quality 15 mamtained by specialist units providing, for example intensive management and control, secunty perfection, maintenance and
retention, expertise in docurnentation for lending and associated products, sector-specific expertise, and legal services applicable to the particular market ptace and
product range offered by the business

Daily settlement limits Settlement nsk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, secunties or equities 1s made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in
cash, securities or equities Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk ansing from the Group's market
transactions on any single day

Collateral
The principal collateral types for toans and advances are

- Mortgages over residential properties

« Charges over business assets such as premises, mventory and accounts receivable,
« Charges over financial instruments such as debt secunties and equities,

« Guarantees received from third parties

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptabulity of specific classes of collateral Collateral he!d as security for financial assets other than loans and
advances 1s determined by the nature of the instrument Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed
secunties and simiar instruments which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments  Collateral s generally not held against leans and advances 1o financial
institutions  except where securities are held as part of reverse repurchase or secunties borrowing transactions or where a collateral agreement has been entered into
under a master neting agreement

it 15 Group policy that collateral should always be realistically valued by an appropnately qualified source, independent of the customer, at the tme of borrowing
Collateral 1s reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business unit credit policy, which will vary according to the type of lending and collateral involved In
order to mimimise the credit loss the Group may seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant
individual loans and advances

Master netting agreements

Where it 15 efficient and likely o be effective (generally with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions), the Group enters into master
neting agreements Although master netting agreements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and habilities, as transactions are usually settled
on a gross basis, they do reduce the credit nsk to the extent that f an event of default occurs all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and setiled on a net
basis The Group's overall exposure to credit nsk on derivative instruments subject to master netuing agreements can change substantially within a short period since it
1s affected by each transaction subject to the agreement

Derivatives

Credit nsk exposure on individual derivative transactions 1s managed as part of the overall lending imit with customers, together with potential exposures from market
movements Collateral or cther security 15 not usually obtained for credit risk exposuies on these instruments, except where the Group requires margin deposits from
counierpariies

Other credi risk transfers
The Group also undertakes asset sales, securitisations and credit denvative-based transactions as a means of mitigating or reducing credit risk, taking into account the
nature of assets and the prevailing market conditions
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Morutorng

Portfolio monitoring and reporting In conjunction with group nisk, businesses and divisions identify and define portfolios of credit and related risk exposures and the
key benchmarks, behaviours and charactenstics by which those portiolios are managed 1n ferms of credit nsk exposure This entails the production and analysis of
regular portfolio monitoring reports for review by senior management Lloyds TSB Group Risk in turn produces an aggregated review of credrt nisk, throughout the
Group, ncluding reporis on significant credit exposures, which are presented to the Lloyds TSB Group Business Risk Committee

Risk assurance and oversight Dwvisional and group level aversight teams momitor credit performance trends, review and challenge exceptions to planned outcomes
and test the adequacy of credit nsk infrastructure and governance processes throughout the Group This includes tracking portfolio performance against an agreed
set of key nsk indicators Risk assurance teams are engaged where appropriate to conduct further credit reviews if a need for closer scrutiny 15 dentified

Term to matunity The Group monstors the term to matunty of credit commitments because longer-term commuments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments

Market nsk

Definitron

The nisk of reductions in earings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, ansing from unexpected changes in financial prices, including interest rates,
exchange rates and prices for bonds, commodities, equities, property and other instruments 1t anses in all areas of the Group's activities and 1S managed by a vanety
of different techriques

Risk appetite
Market rnisk appetite 1s defined as the quantum and composition of market nsk that exists currently 1 the Group and the direction 1n which the Group wishes to
manage this

This statement of the Group's overall appetite for market nisk 1s reviewed and approved annually by the board The group chief executive allocates this risk appetite
across the Group Individual members of the Lloyds TSB Group Executive Commuttee ensure that market nsk appetite 1s further delegated to an appropnate level
within their areas of responsibility

Exposures
The Group's banking activities expose it to the nsk of adverse movements In interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices, with little or no exposure to
commodity risk

Most of the Group s trading activity s undertaken o meet the requirements of wholesale and retall customers for foreign exchange and interest rate products
However, some interest rate and exchange rate positions are taken using denvatives and other on-balance sheet instruments with the objective of earming a profit from
favourable movements in market rates

Market risk in the Group's retail portfolios and in the Group's capital and funding activities anses from the different repneing charactenstics of the Group's non-trading
assets and labmities Interest rate nsk anses from the mismatch between interest rate insensitive habilities and interest rate sensitive assets

Foreign currency nisk also arises from the Group s invesiment in 1is overseas operations
The Group's insurance activities also expose it io market nisk, encompassing mterest rate, exchange rale, property and equity risk

- The management of with-profits funds leads to assets and labiities that are mismatched with the aim of generating a higher rate of return on assets to meet
policyholders’ expectations

- Unit-linked Labiities are matched with the same assets that are used to define the liability but future fee iIncome 1s dependent upon the performance of those assets

« For other insurance habibties the aim 1s to invest in assets such that the cash flows on investments will match those on the projected future hatiliies It 1s not
possible to eliminate nsk completely as the timing of insured events 1s uncertain and bonds are not available at all of the required maturities As a result the cash
flows cannot be precisely matched and so sensitivity tests are used to test the extent of the mismatch

- Surplus assets are held primartly in three portfolios the surplus in the non-profit fund within the long-term fund of Scottish Widows plc, assets in shareholder funds
of Iife assurance companies and an nvesiment portfolic within the general inscrance business

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes are exposed to s:gnificant nisks {rom the constituent parts of thesr assets and from the present value of their liabilkities,
primanly equity and real interest rate nsk For further information on pension scheme assets and habilities please refer to note 36

Measurement

The primary market risk measure used within the Group 1s the Value at Risk {VaR) methodology, which incorporates the volatility of relevant market prices and the
correlation of their movements This 1s used for determining the Group’s overall market risk appetite and for the high level allocation of risk appetite across the Group
Although an important measure of risk, VaR has imitations as a result of its use of listonical data, assumed distnbution, holding peneds and frequency of calculation
The use of confidence levels does not convey any information about potential loss when the confidence level 1s exceeded VaR can also be less well suited to
non-hnear positions, for example aptions The Group recogrises these imitations and supplements its use with a vanety of other techniques These reflect the nature
of the bussness activity and include interest rate repricing gaps, open exchange positions and sensitivity analysis Stress testking and scenaro analys:s are also used n
certain portfohos and at group level, to simulate extreme conditions to supplement these core measures

Banking - trading and other financial assets at far value through profit ar loss

Based on the commonly used 95 per cent confidence level, assuming positions are held overright and using observation pertods of the preceding 300 business days,
the VaR for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 based on the Group's global trading positions was as detailed in the table below {the table also aggregates
patentiat loss measures from options portfolios) VaR s calculated daily for trading and other fair valued portiolios n the products and markets business
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The nsk of less measured by the VaR model 1s the potential loss in earnings  The total and average trading VaR does nol assume any diversification benefit across the
four nsk types The maximum and minimum VaR reported for each nsk category did not necessarity occur on the same day as the maximum and minimum VaR
reported as a whole

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Close Average Maximum Minimum Close Average Maximum Mimimum

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Interest rate nsk 163 220 4 66 127 367 247 471 06l
Foreign exchange nisk 008 023 053 004 026 031 072 004
Equity risk 000 029 302 000 000 000 000 000
Credit spread nsk 421 360 830 206 231 152 246 000
Total VaR 592 632 11 00 428 624 430 630 089

Banking — non-trading

The estimated impacts of an immedtate 200 basis point increase in interest rates on economic value for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are shown
below Economic value 1s defined as the present value of the non-trading portfolios concerned Impacts have only been shown in one direction but can be assumed to
be reasonably symmetrical No currency breakdown has been provided due to the relatively low averall sensitvity These calculations are made monthly using
assumptions regarding the matunty of interest rate insensitive assets and habilities The portfolio 1s updated monthly to reftect any changes in the refationship between
customer behaviour and the level of interest rates  This non-trading disclosure 18 now value based rather than income based (as in 2006) in line with market risk
reporting used internally

Internal reporting shows this sensitivity as a percentage of the Group's regulatory capital base, and as at December 2007 the relevant percentage was 0 3 per cent
(2006 3 1 per cent) The sensitivity has fallen as a result of changes to balance sheet management strategy This 1s a nsk based disclosure which would be
amartised n the income statement over the duration of the portfolio

31 December 31 December

2007 2006
£ Em
Reduction in value 67 476

Insurance portfolios

The Group's market nsk exposure in respect of Insurance activities described above 1s measured using European Embedded Value (EEV) as a proxy for economic
value The pre-tax sensitivity of EEV {0 standardised market stresses 1s shown below for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 Foreign exchange nsk anses
predominantly from overseas equity holdings Impacts have only been shown in one direction but can be assumed tc be reasgnably symmetncal Opening and
closing numbers only have been provided as this data 1s not volatile or tracked on a daily basis This disclosure has been amended to reflect other internal reporting for
market nsk 1n the nsurance portfoho, 1n accordance with IFRS7

31 December 31 December

2007 2006

£m £m

Equity nsk (impact of 10% fall pre-tax) (248) (277)
Interest rate nsk (impact of 25bp reduction pre-tax} 58 85

Mitigation
Vanous mitigation activities are undertaken across the Group to manage partfolios and ensure they remain within approved limits

Banking — non-trading activities

Interest rate nsk ansing from the different repricing charactenstics of the Group's non-trading assets and hatuhties, and from the mismatch between interest rate
insensitive llabiiities and interest rate sensihive assets, 1s managed centrally Matching assets and liabilsies are offset against each other and internal interest rate
swaps are also used

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange nisk in the course of providing services to their customers All non-structural foreign exchange exposures in
the non-tracing book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitored and controlled

Insurance activities
Investment holdings are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Holdings are diversified to minimise specific risk and the relative sizes of atge
indimidual exposures are manitored closely For assets held outside unit-inked funds, investmenis are only permutted in countries and markets which are sufficientty
regulated and liguid

Monitoring

The Lloyds TSB Group Asset and Liability Commuttee regularly reviews hegh level market nisk exposure including but not imited to, the data descrnibed above 1t also
makes recommendations to the group chief executive concerning overall market risk appetite and market nsk policy Exposures at lower levels of delegation are
monitored at vanous mtervals according to their volatility, from daily in the case of trading portfolios to monthty or quarterly in the case of tess volatile portfolios Levels
of exposures compared to approved lumits are monitored locally by independent risk functions and at a high level by Lloyds TSB Group Risk Where appropnate,
escalation procedures are in place
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Banking activities

Trading 1s restricted to a number of specialist centres, the most important centre being the products and markets business in London These centres also manage
market nsk in the wholesale non-trading portfofios, both in the UK and internationally The leve! of expasure is stnctly controlled and monitored within approved
himits Active management of the wholesale portiolios 1s necessary to meet customer requiremments and changing market circumstances

Market risk in the Group's retail portfolios and 1n the Group s capital and funding activities s managed within imits defined in the detailed group policy for interest rate
nisk in the banking bock, which 1s reviewed and approved annually

Insurance activities
Market risk exposures from the insurance businesses are centrolled via approved investment policies and Limits set with reference to the Group's overall nisk appetite
and regularly reviewed by the Uoyds TSB Group Asset and Liabilitly Committee

« With profits funds are managed in accordance with the relevant fund’s principles and practices of financial management

+ The investment strategy for other insurance habilites 1s determiried by the term and nature of the underlying habilities and asset/liability matching positions are
actively momitored  Actuarial tools are used to project and match the cash flows

+ Investment strategy for surplus assets hetd in excess of habilittes takes account of the regulatory and internal business requirements for capital to be held to support
the business now and In the future

The Group also agrees strategies for the overall mix of pension assets with the pension scheme trustees

Insurance nsk

Defimtton

The risk of reductions in earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, due to fluctuations (n the timing, frequency and severity of insured/underwntten
events and to fluctuations in the timing and amount of claim setttements This includes fluctuations in profits due o customer behaviour

Risk appetite
Insurance risk appetite 1s defined as the quantum and compaosition of insurance nsk that exists currently in the Group and the direction in which the Group wishes te
manage this

Exposures

The major sources of insurance nsk withun the Group are the insurance businesses and the Group's defined benefit pension schemes The nature of insurance
business involves the accepting of insurance risks which relate primarily io mortality, mortudity, persistency, expenses, property damage and unemployment The
prime insurance fisk carmed by the Group's pension schemes 1s related to mortahty

Measurement
Insurance risks are measured using a vanety of techniques including stress and scenano testing, and, where appropriate, stochastic modelling
Current and potential future insurance nsk exposures are assessed and aggregated using nisk measures based on 1-1n-20 year stresses and other supporting measures

where appropriate

Mitigation

A key element of the control framework 1s the consieration of insurance nsk by a suitable combination of high level committees/boards For the kfe assurance
businesses the key control body 15 the board of Scotish Widows Group Limited with the more significant risks also being subject to approval by the Lloyds TSB group
executive comimittee andfor the Lloyds TSB Group board For the general insurance businesses the key control body 1s the Lloyds TSB insurance executive committee
with the more significant nsks again being subject to Lioyds TSB Group Executive Committee andfor Lioyds TSB Group board approval All group pension schemes
1ssues are covered by the Lloyds TSB Group Asset and Liability Commuttee and the Lloyds TSB Group Business Risk Committee

The overall insurance nisk 1s mitigated through pooling 2nd through dwversification across large numbers of uncorrelated individuals, geographical areas, and different
types of nsk exposure

Insurance nsk s primarily controlled wa the following processes

« Underwnting {the process to ensure that new insurance proposals are properly assessed)

- Pricing-to-risk (new insurance proposals would usually be priced in accordance with the underwnting assessment}
« Claims management

» Product management

» The use of reinsurance or other risk mitigation techniques

In addition, limis are used as a control mechanism for insurance nisk at policy level

Some nsurance risks are retained winle others are rensured with external underwnters The retained nsk level s carefully controlled and monitored, with close
attention being paid 1o underwnting, claims managemeni, product design, policy wordings, adequacy of reserves, solvency management and regulatory
requirements
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General msurance exposure to accumulations of nsk and possible catastrophes 1s mitigated by reinsurance arrangements which are broadly spread over different
reinsurers Detailed modetling, including that of the probable maximum loss under various catastrophe scenanos supports the choice of reinsurance arrangements
Appropriate reinsurance arrangements also apply within the life and pensions businesses with significant mortality risk and morbidity nsk being transferred to our
chosen remnsurers

Options and guarantees are \ncorporated in new insurance products only after careful consideration of the nsk management ssues that they present

In respect of insurance risks 1n the staff pension schemes, the Group ensures that effective communication mechanisms are in place for consuliation with the trustees
and that risk management 15 in hine with the Group's nsk appetite

Monitoring

QOngoing monitenng 1s In place to track the progression of Insurance rnisks This normally involves monstoring relevant expenences aganst expeclations (for exampfe
claims experience, option take up rates, persistency experience, expenses, non-disclosure at the point of sale), as well as evaluating the effectiveness of controls put in
place to manage Insurance risk

Expenses are monitored by an analysis of the Group's experience retative {o budget Reasons for any significant divergence from expectation are investigated and
remedial action taken

Persistency rates of life assurance pelicies, which relate to the rate of policy termination and the rate at which policies cease to pay regular premums, are regularly
assessed by reference to appropnate rnisk factors

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s defined as the nsk that the Group does not have sufficient firancial resources to meet its commitments when they fall due, or can secure them only at
excessive cost Funding risk 1s further defined as the nisk that the Group does not have sufficiently stable and diverse sources of funding or the funding structure 15
nefficient

Risk appetite
Risk appetite 1s set and reported through various metnics that enable the Group to manage liquidity constraints

Exposure
Ligquidity exposure represents the amount of petential outflows in any future penod less commutted inflows in that penod such that the Group 15 unable to meet its
financial obhgations as they fall due, or can only secure them at excessive cost Liquidity 1s considered from both an (nternat and regulatory perspective

Measurement
A series of measures are used across the Group to monitor bath short and long term Liquidity including ratios, cash outfiow triggers and stress test survival peried
triggers

An analysis of financial instrument habilities of the Group, excluding those ansing from insurance contracts on an undiscounted future cash flow basis according to
contractual matunty into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaiming penod at the balance sheet date 1s shown in this note  An analysis of Insurance contracts
on a behavioural basis is also shown 1n this note

Mitigation

The Group mitigates the nsk of a iquidity mismatch which 1s cutside of its appetite by managing the hiquidity profile of the balance sheet through both short-term
liquidity management and long-term strategic funding

Short-term hiquidity management s considered from two perspectives, business as usual and cnsis hguidity, both of which relate to funding In the less than one year
time harizon

Longer term funding 1s used to manage the Group's strategic liquidity profile which 1s determined by the Group's batance sheet structure Longer term is defined as an
oniginal matunty of more than one year

The Group's funding and llquidity management 1s fundamentally based on a significant reta)l deposit base, accompanied by appropriate funding from the wholesale
markets A substantial proportion of the retaill deposit base 1s made up of customers’ current and savings accounts which although repayabte on demand, have
traditionally in aggregate prowded a stable source of funding Additionally, the Group accesses the short-term whotesale markets to provide inter-bank deposits and to
1ssue certificates of deposit and commercial paper to meet short-term obligations The Greup's short-term money market funding 1s based on an analysis of the
market's capacity for the Group's credit, based on guantitatve data The Group has developed strong relationships with certain wholesale market segments, for
example central banks and corporate customers, {o supplement iis retail deposit base

During 2007, amounts deposited by customers increased by £15,946 mullion from £140 767 million at 31 December 2006 to £156,713 million at 31 December
2007 These customer deposits were supplemented by short-term wholesale market operations the use of sale and repurchase agreements and the ssue of
subardinated loan capital and wholesale funding sources in the capital markets, these comprised Eure Medium-Term Note programmes, of which £7,090 million
had been utihsed for senior funding at 31 December 2007, and commercial paper programmes, under which £5,051 million had been utidised at 31 December
2007 The Group also raised whotesale funding via the 1ssuance of Residentral Mortgage Backed Securites £12,403 million was outstanding at 31 December
2007

The ability 10 sell assets quickly Is alse an important source of quidity for the Greup's banking businesses The Group holds sizeable balances of marketable debt
secunities which can be sold to provide additional short-term funding should the need anse

Within the insurance businesses, non-linked funds investments are arranged to minimise the possibility of being a distressed seller whilst at the same time investing
to meet policyholder obhigations For unut-inked business, deferral provisions are designed 1o give time to realise hnked assets without being a forced seller
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The Group 1s able 1o raise funds by 1ssuing subordinated habibities or equity As at 31 December 2007, the Group had £12,437 million of subordinated debt tn
1ssuance The cost and availability of suboerdinated hability finance are influenced by credit ratings A reduction in these ratings could increase ihe cost and could
reduce market access At 31 December 2007 the credit ratings of the Bank, the pnimary 1ssuer in the Group, were as follows

Sentor debt
Moody s Aaa
Standard & Poor’s AA
Fitch AA+

The ratings outlook from Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch for the Bank is stable These credit ratings are not a recommendation to buy, hold or sell any secunty,
and each rating should be evaluated independently of every other rating

The Group maintains a system of intemnal controls consistently apphied providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded and undertaken in accordance
with delegated authonties that permit the preparation and disclosure of financial statements, prudential regulatory reporting and tax returns in accordance with IFRS,
statutory and regulatery requirements

Monitoring

Liguidity 1s actively monitored at business unit and group level at an appropriate frequency Routine reporing is mn place to senior management and through the
Uloyds TSB Group's commuittee structure, in a particular the Lloyds TSB Group Asset and Liability Commuttee |n a stress situation the leve! of monitoring and reporting
1s Increased commensuraie with the nature of the event Liquichty policies an¢ procedures are subject to independent oversight

Capital 1s actively managed at an appropnate fevel of frequency and regulatory ratios are a key factor in the Group's budgeting and planning processes with updates of
expected ratios reviewed regularly during the year by the Lloyds TSB Group Asset and Liabihty Committee Capital raised takes account of expected growth and
currency of nisk assets Capital policies and procedures are subject to independent oversight

The Lloyds TSB Group undertakes a programme of work designed to support an annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, In
accordance with the requirements of s 404 of the US Sarbanes Oxley Actof 2002, to identify and maintain tax habitities and to assess emerging regulation and legislation

Measurement basis of financial assets and habilities
The accounting policies n note 1 describe how different classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, sncludmg fair value gans and
losses, are recognised The following tables analyse the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities by category and by balance sheet heading

The Group At fair value through
profit or loss
Denvatives
designated Desigrated Held at
as hedging Held far  upen imitial Avaitable- Loans and amartised Insurance
nstruments trading recognition for sale receivables cost contracts Tatal
£m £m £m Em Em £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2007
Financial assets

Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 4,330 - 4,330
Items 1n the course of collection from banks - - - - - 1,242 - 1,242
Trading and other financia! assets at far value - 4,663 53,433 - - - - 58,096
thraugh profit or loss

Dervative financial instruments 264 8,424 - - - - - 8,688
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 34,845 - - 34,845
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 209,814 - - 209,814
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - 20,196 - - - 20,196
Total finangia! assets 264 13,087 53,433 20,196 244,659 5,572 - 337,211
Financial liaahities

Deposits from banks - - - - - 39,091 - 39,091
Customer accounts - - - - - 156,713 - 156,713
Items in course of fransmission to banks - - - - - 668 - 668
Trading and other liabilities at fair value through - 99 3,107 - - - - 3,206
profit or loss

Dernvative financial instruments BOO 6,951 - - - - - 7,751
Debt securities 1 1ssue - - - - - 49,828 - 49,828
Liabilibes ansing from insurance contracts and - - - - - - 38,192 38,192

participating investment contracts

Uiatnbities anising from non-participating mvestment - - - - - 18,197 18,197

contracts

Unallpcated surplus within insurance businesses - - - - - - 554 554
Subordinated habilities - - - - - 12,437 - 12,437
Total financial habilities BOO 7,050 3,107 - - 258,737 56,943 326,637
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The Group At far value through
profit or foss
Denvatives
designated Designated Helg at
as hedging Held for  upon initial Avallable- Loans and amortised Insurance
{nstruments trading recognition for sale recewvables cost contracts Tatal
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m £m

As at 31 Decernber 2006
Financial assets

Cash and batances at central banks - - - - - 1,898 - 1,898
ltems (n the course of collechon from banks - - - - - 1431 - 1,431
Trading and other financial assets at fair value - 5,756 62,172 - - - - 67 928
through profit or loss
Denvative financial nstruments 487 5,078 - - - - - 5,565
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 40,638 - - 40,638
Loans and advances to customers - - ~ - 190,135 - - 190,135
Avallabte-for-sale financial assets - - - 19,178 - - - 19,178
Total financizl assets 487 10 834 62,172 19178 230,773 3,329 - 326,773
Financial habtities
Depaosits from banks - - - - - 36,394 - 36,394
Customer accounts - - - - - 140,767 - 140,767
Items 1n course of fransmission to banks - - - - - 781 - 781
Trading and other habihties at fair vatue through ~ 28 1,156 - - - - 1,184
profit or loss
Denvative financral instruments 466 5,411 - - - - - 5,877
Debt secunties in 1ssue - - - - - 54,118 - 54,118
Liabilities ansing from insurance contracts and - - - - - - 41,602 41,602
participating (nvestment contracts
Liabilities anising from non-participating investment - - - - - - 24,370 24,370
contracts
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses - - - - - - 683 683
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 11,506 - 11,506
Total financial habilities 466 5,439 1,156 - - 243,566 66 655 317,282
The Bank At fair value through
profit or loss

Denvatives

designated Designated Held at

as hedging Heid for  upan imital Available- Loans and amortised

instruments trading recognition for sale recevables cost Total

£m £m Em £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2007
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 4,211 4,211
Items 1n the course of collection from banks - - - - - 1,196 1,196
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 4,663 4,521 - - - 9,184
Dervative financial instruments 271 8,353 - - - - 8,624
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 28,447 - 28,447
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 212,738 - 212,738
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 4,260 - - 4,260
Total financial assets 271 13,016 4,521 4,260 241,185 5,407 268,660
Financial habilities
Deposits from banks - - - - - 48,940 48,940
Customer accounts - - - - - 163,245 163,245
Items 1n course of transmission to banks - - - - - 613 613
Trading and other liabilities at {air value through profit or loss - 99 3,107 - - - 3,206
Dervative financial instruments 773 7.592 - - - - 8,365
Debt secunties in 1ssue - - - - - 36,647 36,647
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 11,903 11,903
Total financial abilities 773 7,691 3,107 - - 261,348 272919
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The Bank At fair value through
profit or loss
Dervatives
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon initiat Avallable- Loans and amartised
nstruments trading recognition for-sale  recewables cost Total
£m £m £m Em Em Em £m

As at 31 December 2006
Financial assets

Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 1,678 1678
ltems 1n the course of collection from banks - - - - - 1,358 1,358
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 5 756 3,063 - - - 8,819
Dernvative financral instruments 485 5,180 - - - - 5 665
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 86,588 -~ 86,588
Loans and advances to cusiomers - - - - 106,576 - 106,576
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 3,872 - - 3,972
Total financial assets 485 10,936 3063 3,972 193,164 3,036 214,656
Financial liabilities

Deposits from banks - - - - - 44 070 44 070
Customer accounts - - - - - 127,938 127938
Items In course of transmissicn to banks - - - - - 660 660
Trading and other habilities at far value through profit or loss - 28 1,156 - - - 1,184
Dervative financial instruments 480 5,925 - - - - 6,405
Debt securities in 1ssue - - - - - 32,719 32719
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 10,281 10,281
Total financial habiities 480 5953 1,156 - - 215,668 223,257
Currency rnisk

Foreign exchange exposures comprise those onginating «n treasury trading achvities and structural foreigrs exchange exposures which anse from investment in the
Group’s overseas cperations

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange nisk tn the course of providing services to their custormers All non structural foreign exchange expaesures In
the non-trading book are transferred o the trading area where they are monitored and controllec These nisks reside in the authonsed trading centres who are
allocated exposure hmits The limits are monitored daily by the local centres and reported o Wholesale and International Banking Market and Liquidity Risk
Associated VaR and the closing, average, maximum and mimmum for 2006 and 2007 are disclosed on page 74

Risk anses from the Group's investments 1n 1ts overseas operations The Group’s structural foreign currency exposure is represented by the net asset value of the
foreign currency equity and subordinated debt investments in its subsidianies and branches Gains or losses on structural foreign currency exposures are taken o
retained earmings

The Group and the Bank hedge part of the currency translation risk of the net investments in certain foreign operations using cross currency swaps At 31 December
2007 the notional principal of these cross currency swaps was £5,302 million with a net fair value iability of £316 milhon (2006 £2 589 million with a net fair
vajue asset of £139 mithon) (note 15) and they were designated on an after-tax basis as hedges of net investments in foreign operations In 2007 there 1s no
ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement that arises from net investment hedges {2006 nil)

The Group's main gverseas operations are in the Amenicas and Europe Detalls of the Group's siructural foreign currency exposures are, after net investment hedges,
as follows

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £m £m
Functional currency of Group operations
Euro 95 76 61 48
US dollar 7 97 37 35
Swiss franc 70 70 51 45
Cther non-sterling 208 188 175 161
380 431 324 289

Interest rate risk

In the Group's retall banking business interest rate nisk anses from the different repnicing charactenstics of the assets and habilites Liabilities are either insensitive to
interest rate movements, for example interest free or very low interest customer deposits, or are sensitive 10 interest rate changes but bear rates which may be varied at
the Group's discretion and that for competitive reasons generally reflect changes in the Bank of England’s base rate There are a relatively small votume of deposis
whose rate 15 ¢ontractually fixed for their termn to matunty

Many banking assets are sensitive to interest rate movemnents, there 1s a farge volume of managed rate assets such as vanable rate mortgages which may be
considered as a natural ofiset to the interest rate nsk ansing from the managed rate lrabilities However a ssgnificant proportion of the Group’s lending assets, for
example personal leans and mortgages, bear interest rates whrch are contractually fixed for penods of up to five years or longer
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The Group establishes two types of hedge accounting relationships for interest rate nisk fair value hedges and cash flow hedges The Group 1s éxposed to fair value
interest rate nisk on its fixed rate customer Joans, its fixed rate customer deposits and the majonity of its subordinated debt, and to cash flow interest rate nisk on s
variable rate loans and deposits together with its floating rate subordinated debt The majority of the Group's hedge accounting relationships are fair value hedges
where interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest rate nsk inherent in the fixed rate mortgage portfolio At 31 December 2007 the aggregate notional principal
of interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges was £50,734 million (2006 £37,378 million) for the Group and £50,209 million (2006 £36,638 million)
for the Bank with a net fair value hability of £197 milkon (2006 £110 million) for the Group and £163 milhon (2006 £126 mullion) for the Bank (note 15) The
gains recogrused by the Group on the hedging instruments were £24 million {2006 losses of £288 million) The Group's losses on the hedged dems attributable to
the hedged nisk were £117 millon (2006 gains of £266 million)

tn addition the Group has a small number of cash flow hedges which are primanly used 1o hedge the variabihity in the cost of funding within the wholesale business
These cash flows are expected to occur over the next six years and the hedge accounting adjustments will be reported in the income statement as the cash flows arise
The notronal principal of the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges at 31 December 2007 was £630 million (2006 £569 million) for the Group and the
Bank with a net fair value liability of £23 mullion {2006 £8 mullion) for the Group and the Bank (note 15} In 2007, there 15 no ineffectiveness recognised in the
Group's income statermneny that arises from cash flow hedges (2006 £mil} There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in
2007 or 2006 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer being expected to occur

Credit nsk

At 31 December 2007, the maximum credit nsk exposure of the Group and the Bank in the event of other parties failing to perform their cbligations 15 detailed below
No account i1s taken of any collateral held and the maximum exposure to loss I1s considered to be the balance sheet carrying amcunt or, for non-dernivative off-balance
sheet transactions and financial guarantees, their contractua) norminal amounts

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £m £m
Loans and advances to banks 34,845 40,639 28,447 86,589
Loans and advances to customers 212,222 192,328 || 214,593 108,276
Deposit amounts available for offset? (6,206) (6,392) (5,819) (6,040)
Impairment losses (2,408) {2,194) {1,855) {1,701}
238,453 224,381 235366 187,124
Avallable-for-sale debt securities and treasury and other biils 20,167 19,163 4,231 3,958
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 26,165 29,568 9,181 8,810
Derivative assets, before netting 8,688 5,565 8,624 5,665
Amouns available for otfset under master netting arrangements! (3,287), {2,761) {3,287), {(2,761)
5,401 2,804 5,337 2,904
Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held 350 451 - -
Financial guarantees 9,753 8,139 10,056 8,633
Irrevocable loan commitments and other credit-related comlngencle's2 56,600 54,065 50,322 55,255
Maxemum credit nsk exposure 356,889 338,571 314,493 266 684
Maximum credit nsk exposure before offset items 366,382 347,724 323,599 275,485

Deposit amounts available for offset and amounts available for offset under master netting arrangements do not meet the cntena under IAS 32 to enable loans and
advances and denvative assets respectively to be presented net of these balances n the financial statements

See note 47 ~ Contingent habilities and commutments for further infarmation
A general description of collateral held n respect of financial instruments is disclosed on page 72

Loans and advances to banks — the Group may require collateral before entering inte a credit commitment with anather bank, depending en the type of the financial
product and the counterparty involved, and netting agreements are obtained whenever possible and 1o the extent that such agreements are legally enforceable

Avallable-for-sale debt secunties, treasury and other bills, and trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - the credit quality of the
Group's avaitable-for-sate debt securities, treasury and other bills, and the majonty of the Group's trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or toss
hetd 1s set out below An analysis of trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss i1s included in note 14 and a similar analysis for
available-for-sale financial assets 1S inctuded in note 19 The Group's non-participating investment contracts are all unit-hnked Movements in the fair values of
tradtng and gther financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which back those investment centracts, including movements ansing from credit nsk, are borne by
the contract holders

Denvative assets — the Group reduces exposure to credit nisk by using masier netting agreements and by obtaining cash collateral An analysis of denvative assets Is
given In note 15 Of the net denvative assets of £5,401 million for the Group and £5,337 mullon for the Bank (2006 £2,804 mulhon for the Group and
£2,904 million for the Bank), cash collateral of £2,004 million {2006 £912 million) was held for both the Group and the Bank and a further £1,459 malhon for the
Group and £1,385 million for the Bank was due from OECD banks (2006 £1,251 million for the Group and £1,209 million for the Bank)

Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held - of the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held of £350 million (2006 £451 million), £341 million
{2006 £447 million} are due from nsurers with a credit rating of AA or above
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Ftnancial guarantees — these represent undentakings that the Group wiil meet a customer's obligation to third parties if the customer fails to do so Commitrents to
extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit The Group 1s theoretically exposed o loss
In an amount equal to the iotal guarantees or unused commitments, however, the hkely amount of loss 1s expected to be significantly less, most commitments to
extend credit are contingent upan customers maintaining speciic credit standards

Reverse repo and repo transactions ~ for reverse repo transactions which are accounted for as coltateralised loans It 1s the Group's policy to seek collateral which 1s
at least equal to the amount loaned At 31 December 2007 the fair value of collateral accepted under reverse repo transactions that the Group 1s permitted by
contract or custom to sell or repledge was £10,300 million (2006 £6,446 million) and for the Bank was £10,300 million {2006 £6,446 million) Of this,
£10,299 million {2006 £6,445 milhon) for the Group and £10,299 milion (2006 £6,445 million) for the Bank was sold or repledged as at 31 December 2007
including £768 milion (2006 £1,099 million) for the Group and £768 mullion {2006 £99 million) for the Bank in respect of repo transactions accounted for as
secured borrowings, where the secured party 15 pernitted by contract or custom to sell or repledge The remainder has been held for continuirig use within the
business

Loans and advances - The Group LD;"S and
agvances
Loans and advances to customers designated

at fair value Loans and

Retall - Retan - through advances

mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss to banks

£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 2007

Neither past dus nor i/mpaired 99,828 29,850 73,475 203,153 1,189 34,845
Past due but not impaired 2,153 966 639 3,758 - -
Impaired — ng provision required 415 100 293 808 - -

- provision held 343 3,600 560 4,503 - -
Gross 102,739 34,516 74,967 212,222 1,189 34,845
Allowance for impairment losses (note 18} (37) {2,029) (342) {2,408) - -
Net 102,702 32,487 74,625 209,814 1,189 34,845

No amounts were due from fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings at 31 December 2007

Loans and

advances

Loans and advances to customers designated
at fair value Loans and
Retan - Retail - thraugh advances
mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loess to banks
£m Em £m £m £m £m

31 December 2006

Neither past due nor impaired 92 873 29,364 60,005 182,242 835 40638
Past due but not impaired 1,943 1,005 374 3,322 - -
Impaired - no provision required 658 9z 158 Q08 - -
- provision held 127 3,580 299 4,006 - 1
Gross 95 601 34,041 60,836 190,478 835 40,639
Allowance for impairment losses (note 18) (42) (1,918) {233) (2,193) - (1)
Net 95,559 32,123 60,603 188,285 B35 40,638
Due from fellow Lioyds TSB Group undertakings 1,850 - -
Total 190,135 835 40,638

No impairment allowances have been raised n respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings

The analysis of lending between retail and wholesale has been prepared based upon the type of exposure and not the business segment in which the exposure Is
recorded Included within retail are exposures to personal customers and small businesses, whilst included within wholesale are exposures to corporate customers
and other large nstitutions
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Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired - The Group L:z"‘:n"’c';‘:
Vi
Loans and advances 1o customers designated
al fair value Loans ang
Retall - Retail - through advances
mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss to banks
£€m £Em £m £m Em £m

31 December 2007

Good quality 99,407 18,157 46,240 191 34,647
Satisfactory quality 378 8,964 25,013 670 190
Lower guality 1 665 2,034 327 7
Below standard, but not impaired 42 2,064 188 1 1
Total 99,828 29,850 73,475 203,153 1,189 34,845
31 December 2006

Good quality 92,472 16,940 35,659 513 40,418
Satisfactory quality 359 9,667 21,797 314 201
Lower quality - 663 2,249 3 17
Below standard, but not impaired 42 2,094 300 5 2
Total §2,873 29,364 60,005 182,242 835 40,638

The defimtions of good quality, satisfactory quality, lower quality and below standard, but not impaired applying to retail and wholesale are not the same, reflecting
the different charactenstics of these exposures and the way they are managed ntemally, and consequently totals are not provided Wholesale lending has been
classified using internal probability of default rating models mapped se that they are comparable to external credit ratings Good quality lending comprises the lower
assessed default probabilities, with cther classifications reflecting progressively higher default nisk Classifications of retail iending incarporate expected recovery levels
for mortgages, as well as probabilities of default assessed using internal rating models Good quality lending 1ncludes the lower assessed default prebabilities and ali
loans wsth tow expected iosses in the event of default, with other categories reftecting progressively higher nisks and lower expacted recoveries

Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired — The Group Lﬂsnsnac”d
advances
Loans and advances o customers designated
at fair value Loans and
Retail - Retal - through advances
moarigages ather Wholesale Total  profit or loss to banks
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2007
0-30 days 1,123 781 266 2,170 - -
30 60 days 445 155 107 707 - -
60 90 days 260 29 129 418 - -
90-180 days 325 1 67 393 - -
Over 180 days - - 70 70 - -
Total 2,153 966 639 3,758 - -
Fair value of cotlateral held 2,111 n/a nfa n/a
31 December 2006
0-30 days 1,104 797 156 2,057 - -
30-60 days 341 182 60 583 - -
60-90 days 216 26 38 280 - -
90-180 days 280 - 70 350 - -
Over 180 days 2 - 50 52 - -
Total 1943 1,005 374 3322 - -
Farr value of collateral held 1,907 nfa n/a nfa

A financial asset is ‘past due’ if a countesparty has faited to make a payment when contractually due

Collateral held aganst retall mortgage lending 1s principally comprised of residential properties, their fair value has been estimated based upon the last actual
valuation, adjusted 1o take into account subsequent movements in the Halifax House Price Index, after making allowance for indexation error and dilapidations The
resulting valuation has been imited to the prncipal amount of the outstanding advance n order o provide a clearer representation of the Group's credit exposure

Lending decisions are based on an obliger's ability to repay from nermat business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any secunity provided Collateral
values for non-mortgage lending are assessed more nigerously at the time of loan onigination or when takung enforcement action and may fluctuate, as in the case of
floating charges, according to the level of assets held by the customer Whulst collateral 1s reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with business unit credit policy,
this vases according 1o the type of lending and collateral invoived It 1s therefore not practicable to estimate and aggregate current fair vatues of collateral for
non-mortgage lending
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Loans and advances — The Bank Loans and
advances
Loans and advances to customers designated
at farr value Loans and
Retaill - Retail - theough advances
mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or lass to banks
£m £m £Em £Em £Em Em
31 December 2007
Nerther past due nor impaired 87,689 22,048 54,632 164,376 1,189 21,872
Past due but not impaired 1,943 723 596 3,262 - -
Impaired — no piovision required 391 81 302 774 - -
- provision held 194 2,804 523 3,521 - -
Gross 90,217 25,656 56,060 171,933 1,189 21,872
Allowance for impairment losses {note 18) {32) (1,521) (302) (1,855) - -
Net 90,185 24,135 55,758 170,078 1,189 21,872
Due from fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings 42,660 - 6,575
Total 212,738 1,189 28,447
Loans and
advances
Loans and advances to customers designated
at farr value Loans and
Retail - Retaill - through advances
mortgages other Wholesale Total profit of loss to banks
£Em £Em £m £m £m £m
31 December 2006
Neither past due nor impaired 842 21,833 43019 65,694 835 25,785
Past due but not impaed 3 734 343 1,080 - -
Irpaired — no proviston required - 77 122 199 - -
- provision held 1 2,837 260 3,098 - -
Gross 846 25,481 43,744 70071 835 25,785
Allowance for impairment losses (note 18) - {1,499) {201) {1,700) - (1)
Net 846 23,982 43,543 68,371 835 25,784
Due from fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings 38,205 - 60,804
Total 106,576 835 86,588
No impairment allowances have been raised 1n respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds TSB Group undertakings
Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired — The Bank ngs:nacr;g
Leans and advances 10 customers designated
at fair value Loans and
Retail - Retall - through advances
mongages othet Wholesale Totad  profi of foss 1o banks
£m fm £m £m Em £m
31 December 2007
Good qualdy 87,593 12,280 33,998 191 21,680
Satisfactory quality 96 7,515 19,545 670 184
Lower qualty - 641 1,065 327 7
Below standard, but not impaired - 1,612 = 3 S R 1 1
Total 87,689 22,048 54,639 164,376 1,189 21,872
31 December 2006
Good qualhty 776 11,637 23,956 ; 513 25,566
Satistactory quality 66 8,050 17,279 ] 314 200
Lower qualty - 640 1,526 3 17
Below standard, but not imparred - 1,606 258 1 — 5 2
Total 842 21,833 43,019 65,694 835 25,785
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Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired — The Bank Loans and
advances
Loans and advances 1o customers designated
at fair value Loans and
Retail - Retail - through advances
mortgages other Wholesale Total  profit or loss to banks
£m £m Em £m £m £m
31 December 2007
0-30 days 982 544 241 1,767 - -
30-60 days 407 150 99 656 - -
60-90 days v 244 28 119 391 - -
90-180 days 310 1 67 378 - -
Over 180 days - - 70 70 - -
Total 1,943 723 596 3,262 - -
Fair value of collateral held 1,926 n/a nfa n/a
31 December 2006
0-30 days 1 534 138 673 - -
30-60 days 1 175 54 230 - -
60-90 days 1 25 33 59 - -
90-180 days - - 69 69 - -
Over 180 days - - 49 49 - -
Total 3 734 343 1,080 - -
Fair value of collatera! held 5 n/a n/a n/a

Renegotiated loans and advances
Loans and advances that were renegotiated during the year and that would otherwise have been past due or impaired at 31 December 2007 totalled £579 million
(2006 £342 million) for the Group and £251 millien (2006 £45 mullion) for the Bank

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
Repossessed collateral £m £m £m £m
Residential property 73 55 54 -
Other 9 10 - -
Total 82 65 54 -

The Group does not take physical possession of properties or other assets held as collateral and uses external agents to realise the value as soon as practicable,
generally at auction, to settle \ndebtedness Any surplus funds are returned to the borrower or are otherwise dealt with in accordance with appropriate insolvency
regulations
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Debt secunihes, treasury and other bills - analysis by credit rating

The Group

As at 31 December 2007

Debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets

Debt secunties

Government securities

Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset backed securities

Corporate and other debt secunties

Total held as trading assets

Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Debt secunties

Government securities

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Mortgage backed securities

Other asset backed secunties

Corperate and other debt secunties

Total held at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunties

Government securities

Other public sector securities

Bank and buiding society ceruficates of deposit
Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset backed securties

Corporate and other debt secunties

Total debt securities
Treasury bills and other bills

Total hetd as avallable-for-sale assets

As at 31 December 2006

Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assels

Government securties

Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset backed securities

Corporate and other debt securities

Total held as trading assets

Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Government securnties

Other public sector secunties

Bank and bwlding society certificates of deposit
Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset backed secunties

Corporate and other debt secunties

Total held at fair value through profit or loss

Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB or lower Not rated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
62 - - - - - 62
- 28 51 8 - - 87
- 15 61 38 3 5 122
268 1,268 1,390 103 59 519 3,607
330 1,311 1,502 145 62 524 3,878
4,808 6 15 1 - 18 4,848
42 548 53 - - 168 B11
61 - - - - 9 70
1,367 214 153 71 - - 1,805
5,118 1,606 2,868 2,528 340 1,104 13,564
11,726 3,685 4,591 2,749 402 1,823 24976
310 - - - - 9 319
- - - - - 5 5
- 1,683 125 - 15 2 1,825
5,880 14 10 - - 146 6,050
3,895 37 27 - - 112 4,071
3,822 1,170 186 - - 1,092 6,270
13,907 2,904 348 - 15 1,366 18,540
31 1,596 - - - - 1,627
13,938 4,500 348 - 15 1,366 20,167
148 - - - - 32 180
235 57 114 35 5 5 451
114 75 172 176 13 45 595
345 1,773 1616 59 6 347 4,146
842 1,905 1,902 270 24 429 5,372
8,558 30 32 1 - 5 8,626
13 - 6 - - 25 44
16 345 47 - - 165 573
56 - - - - 31 87
321 5 61 30 - 444 861
5,870 1,598 2,915 1,597 153 1,037 13,170
15,676 3883 4,963 1,898 177 2,136 28,733
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt securities

Government securties

Other public sector securnties

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Mongage backed secunties

Other asset backed securities

Corporate and ather debt securities

Total debt secunties
Freasury bills and other bills

Total held as available-for-sale assets

There are no material amounts for debt securities, treasury and other bills which are past due but not impaired

Debt securnities, treasury and other bills — analysis by credit rating

The Bank

As at 31 December 2007

Debt securities held at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets

Government securities

Mortgage backed securities

Other asset backed securities
Corporate and other debt secunties

Total held as trading assets

Other assets heid at fair value through profit or loss

Government securities

Mortgage backed securities

Other asset backed securilies
Corporate and other debt secunties

Total held at fair value through profit ar loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunties

QOther pubhic sector secunties

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Mortgage backed secunties

Other asset backed securnties

Corporate and other debt secunties

Total debt securities
Treasury bills and other bills

Total held as available-for-sale assets

Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB or lcwer Not rated Tatal
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m
379 - - - - 14 393
189 - - - - - 189
6 1,229 356 24 - - 1,615
5,559 13 - - - 390 5,662
4,598 80 27 5 5 4,721
1,971 976 698 - 1,172 4817
12,702 2,298 1,081 30 5 1,281 17 397
46 1,705 - - 15 - 1,766
12,748 4,003 1,081 30 20 1,281 19,163
Rated BB
AAA RA A BBB or lower Not rated Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m £Em
62 - - - - - 62
- 28 51 8 - - 87
- 15 61 38 3 5 122
268 1,268 1,390 103 59 519 3,607
330 1,311 1,502 149 62 524 3,878
1 - - - - - 1
- - - - - 8
282 - - - - - 282
1,471 12 362 1,357 276 345 3,823
2,084 1,323 1,864 1,506 338 877 7,992
- - - - - 5 5
- 1,146 125 - 10 2 1,283
1,424 14 10 - - 16 1,464
238 37 26 - - 112 413
729 272 I - - 25 1,027
2,391 1,469 162 - 10 160 4,192
3o 9 - - - - 39
2,421 1,478 162 - 10 160 4,231
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As at 31 Detember 2006

Debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets

Debt securities

Government securities

Mortgage backed securities

QOther asset backed securities
Corporate and other debt secunties

Total held as trading assets

QOther assets held at fair value through profit or foss

Government securities

Mortgage backed secunties

QOther asset backed securities
Corporate and other debt secunties

Tetal held at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunities

Government securities

Bank and buillding scciety certificates of deposit
Mortgage backed secusities

Other asset backed secunties

Corporate and other debt securities

Total debt securities
Treasury ills and other bills

Total held as available-for-sale assets

Liquidity risk

Rated BB
AAA AA A BBB or lower Not rated Totat
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
148 - - - - 32 180
235 57 114 35 12 5 451
114 75 172 176 13 45 595
345 1,773 1616 59 6 347 4,146
842 1,205 1,902 270 24 429 5372
11 - - - - - 11
- - - - - 7 7
19 - - 18 - 398 435
886 - 225 €06 111 322 2,160
1,758 1,905 2,127 894 135 1,156 7975
- - - - - 6 6
2 1,229 356 24 - - 1611
1,501 13 - - - a0 1,604
310 80 27 6 5 5 433
92 5 5 - - 118 220
1,905 1327 388 30 5 219 3,874
42 26 - - 15 - 83
1,947 1,353 388 3o 20 219 3,957

The tables below analyse financial nstrument lrabilities of the Group and the Bank, exctuding those ansing from insurance and participating investment contracts, on
an undiscounted future cash flow basts according to contractual maturity, into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date,
balances with no fixed maturnty are included in the over 5 years category

The Group

As at 31 December 2007
Deposits from banks
Customer accounts

Dervative financial instruments, trading and other liabilties at fair value through

profit or loss
Debt secunties in ssue

Liabilities ansing from non-participating investment contracts

Subordinated liabihties
Total

As at 31 December 2006
Deposits from banks
Customer accounts

Derwvative financral instruments, trading and other habilities at

fair value through profii or foss
Debt secunties in 1ssue

Liabihities ansing from non-participating investment contracis

Subordinated fiabilities
Total

Up to 1-3 312 15 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
Em £m Em Em £m £m
35,466 2,218 1,480 26 - 39,190
144,406 4,800 7,578 2,002 537 159,323
10,454 2,176 3,607 1,589 1,851 19,677
20,299 6,032 7,789 13,152 6,197 53,469
18,197 - - - - 18,197
T 16 188 970 5,854 11,098 18,126
228,838 15,414 21,424 22,623 19,683 307,982
28 376 3,707 1,722 818 1,942 36,565
129,694 3,492 5,560 2,355 1,590 142,691
9,043 2037 2,600 663 a87 15,230
28,887 5,231 6,569 11,030 7.176 58,893
24,370 - - - - 24,370
4 166 829 4,073 11,812 16 884
220,374 14,633 17,280 18,939 23,407 294,633

Dervatives (other than those used 1n a hedging relationship) and trading habilities are included in the up to 1 month column at their fair value Liquidity risk on these
items ts not managed on the basis of contractual matunity as they are frequently settled on demand at fair value and therefore this 1s considered a better piesentation

of the Group's hquidity nsk Denvatives used in a hedging relationship are included according to therr contractual maturity

Cash flows for undated subordinated hiabilities whose terms give the Group the option to redeem at a future date are included within the table on the basis that the

Group will exercise its option to redeem
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The principal amount for undated subordinated habilities with no redemption option 1s Included within the over 5 years column, interest of approxmately
£126 million per annum which 1s payable in respect of those instruments for as long as they remain in1ssue (1 € In perpetuity) 15 not included beyond S years

The Bank Up to 1-3 312 1-5 Qver 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2007

Deposits from banks 43,854 2,632 2,067 652 63 49,268
Customer accounts 137,530 5,862 10,545 13,416 1,295 168,648
Detrvative financial instruments, trading and other Hiabilities at fair value through 10,641 185 3,508 1,485 1,271 17,091
profit or less

Debt securities m issue 7,959 5,678 7,605 13,050 5,701 39,993
Subordinated hatnlities - 181 941 5,760 10,451 17,333
Total 199,984 14,538 24,667 34,363 18,781 292,333

As at 31 December 2006

Deposits from banks 35,852 4,004 2,109 1,407 902 44,274
Custemer accounts 104,768 5,397 11,704 5,588 2,553 130,010
Dervative financial instruments, trading and other liabilities at fair value through 9,575 27 2,600 660 850 13,712
profit or loss

Debt securities 1 issue 17,919 4,816 5,217 2,427 5,204 35,583
Subordinated habilities - 156 751 3,459 10,819 15,185
Total 168,114 14 400 22,381 13,541 2,328 238,764

Liahilities of the Group ansing from insurance and participating investment contracts are analysed on a behavioural basis, as permitted by IFRS 4, as follows

Up to 1-2 312 15 Qver 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m Em Em Em £m £m
As at 31 December 2007 238 651 1,570 9,548 26,1858 38,192
As at 31 December 2006 247 716 1,852 9,682 29,105 41,602

The following tables set out the amounts and residual maturities of off balance sheet contingent liabilities and commitments

The Group Within i-3 35 Over 5
1 year YEars years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2007
Acceptances 39 1 - - 40
Other contingent habilities 1,441 1,032 255 796 3,524
Total contingent habihties 1,480 1,033 255 796 3,564
Lending commitments 60,981 13,758 10,634 4,221 89,595
Other commitments 466 78 108 117 769
Total commitments 61,447 13,837 10,742 4,338 90,364
Total contingents and commitments 62,927 14,870 10,997 5,134 93,928

31 December 2006

Acceptances 62 1 - - 63
Other contingent Labilities 953 976 263 522 2,714
Total contingent liabihities 1,015 977 263 522 2,777
Lending commitments 56,019 11,310 11,050 3900 B2,279
Other commitments 5,945 109 23 61 6,138
Total commitments 61,964 11,419 11073 3961 88,417
Total contingents and commitments 62,979 12,396 11,336 4 483 91,194
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The Bank Within 13 35 Over 5

1 year years years years Total
31 December 2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Acceptances 41 1 - - 42
Other contingent habilities 1,370 1,028 255 796 3,449
Total contingent liabihties 1,411 1,029 255 796 3,491
Lending commitments 71,781 11,780 8,928 31,870 96,359
Other commitments 597 77 108 117 899
Total commitments 72,378 11,857 9,036 3,087 97,258
Total contingents and commitments 73,789 12,886 9,291 4,783 100,749

31 December 2006

Acceptances 67 1 - - 68
Other contingent habilities 1010 975 263 520 2,768
Total contingent habibhities 1,077 976 263 520 2,836
Lending commitments 60,509 9,531 9,448 3,623 83,111
Other commiiments 5,844 109 23 61 6.037
Total commitments 66,353 9,640 9,471 3,684 89,148
Total contingents and cgmmitmenis 67,430 10,616 9,734 4,204 91,984

Fair values of financtal assets and habilities
Financial instruments include financial assets, financral habilities and denvatives The fair value of a financial instrument 1s the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged In a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or Llguidation sale

Wherever possible, fair values have been estimated using market prices for instruments held by the Group Where market prices are not available, fair values have
been estimated using quoted values for instruments with characteristics either dentical or similar to those of the instruments held by the Group These estimation
techriques are necessarily subjective in nature and involve several assumptions

The fair values presented 1n the following table are at a specific date and may be significantly different from the amounts which will actually be paid or receved on the
matunty or settlement date

Because a variety of estimation techniques are employed and significant estimates made compansons of fair values between financial institutions may not be
meaningful Readers of these financial statements are thus adwised to use caution when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

Fair value information 15 not provided for items that do not meet the definition of a financial instrument These items include intangible assets, such as the value of the
Group's branch network, the long-term refationships with depositors and credit card relationships, premises and equipment, and shareholders’ equity These items
are matenal and accordingly the Group believes that the fair value information presented does not represent the underlying value of the Group

The valuation technique for each major category of financial instrument 1s discussed betow

Trading and other financral assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair values of financral instruments quoted 1n active markets are based on quoted pnces The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted In active
markets are determined using valuation techniques including cash flow models which, to the extent practical, use observable market inputs such as interest rate yield
curves, equities and commodities prices, option volatilities and currency rates that are either directly observable or are implied from instrument prices

Denvative financral instrurnents

All denvatives are recognised at therr far value Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and using
valuatien techniques, including discounted cash flow and optiens pricing models, as appropriate Derivatives are carned in the balance sheet as assets when their fair
value 1s positive and as habilities when therr far value 1s negative

Loans and advances to banks and customers

The Group provides loans and advances to commercial, corporate and persanal customers at both fixed and vanable rates The carrying value of the varable rate
loans and those relating to lease financing 1s assumed to be therr farr value For fixed rate lending, several different techriques are used to estimate fair value, as
considered appropriate For commercial and persenal customers, far value 1s principally estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows (including interest at
contractual rates) at market rates for similar loans offered by the Group and other financial institutions  The fair value for corporate loans 1s estimated by discounting
anticipated cash flows at a rate which reflects the effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes in credit nsk Certain loans secured on residential properties
are made at a fixed rate for a limited period, tymcally two to five years, after which the loans revert to the relevant vanable rate The fair value of such loans 15
estimated by reference 1o the market rates for sumilar loans of matunty equal o the remaining fixed interest rate penod

Available-for-sale financial assets
Listed secunties are valued at current bid prices Unlisted secunties and other financial assets are valued based on discounted cash flows market prices of similar
nstruments and other appropriate valuation techniques
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Deposits from banks and customer accounts
The fair value of deposits repayable on demand 15 considered to be equal to therr carrying value The far value for all other deposits and custemer accounts 1S
estimated using discounted cash flows applying either market rates, where applicable, or current rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities

Debt securities n 1ssue and subordinated habilities
The fair value of short-ierm debt secunties in 1ssue 1s approxmately equal to their carnying value Fair value for other debt secunties and for subordinated habilities 18
estimated using quoted market prices

Trading and other habififies at fair value through profit or loss

The fair vatues of financial instruments quoted in active markets are based on quoted prices The fair values of financial instruments that are not quated 1n active
markets are determined using valuation technigues including cash flow modets which to the extent practical, use abservable market inputs such as interest rate yield
curves, equities and commodities prices, option volatilities and currency rates that are either directly observable or are implied from instrument prices

Liabiities ansing from non-participating investment contracts

The value of the Group's non-participating investment contracts, all of which are umt-linked, 1s contractually linked to the fair values of financial assets within the
Group's unitised (investment funds and 1s determined using current umt prices multiphied by the number of units attributed ta the contract holders at the balance sheet
date Their value 1s never less than the amount payable on surrender, discounted for the required notice period where applicable

Financial commitments and conlingent abilifies

Financial guarantees are valued on the basis of cash premiums receivable The Group considers that it 1s net meaningful or practicat to provide an estimate of the fair
value of other contingent liabibties and financial comnitments given the lack of an established market, the diversily of fee structures and the difficulty of separating
the value of the instruments frem the value of the overall transaction Therefore only financiai guarantees are included n the following table

The Group The Bank
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Farr value
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Trading and other finrancial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 58,096 67,928 58,096 67,928 9,184 8,819 9,184 8,819
Derivative financia! instruments 8,688 5,565 8,688 5,565 8,624 5,665 8,624 5,665
Leans and advances to banks 34,845 40,638 34,832 40,641 28,447 86,588 28,434 86,591
Leans and advances to customers 209,814 190,135 209,066 189,827 212,738 106,576 212,015 106,675
Available-for-sale financial assets 20,196 19,178 20,196 19,178 4,260 3,972 4,260 3,972
Financial habifities
Deposits from banks 39,091 36,394 39,063 36,383 48,940 44,070 48912 44,059
Customer accounts 156,713 140,767 156,766 140,688 163,245 127938 163,293 127,929
Trading and other habilities at fair value through profit
or loss 3,206 1,184 3,206 1,184 3,206 1,184 3,206 1,184
Dernvative financial instruments 7,751 5877 7,751 5877 8,365 6,405 8,365 6,405
Debt secunties n 1ssue 49,828 54,118 49,567 54,070 36,647 32,719 36,387 32,671
Liabilities ansing from non-participating invesiment
contracts 18,197 24,370 18,197 24,370 - - - -
Financial guarantees 26 49 26 49 26 49 26 49
Subordinated habuities 12,437 11,506 12,674 12,250 11,903 10,281 12,162 10,921

49 Capital

For the banking businesses the international standard for measuning capital adequacy 1s the nsk asset ratio which relates regulatory capital to balance sheet assets
and off-balance sheet exposures weighted according o broad categonies of risk as defined by the Basel | framewark The Group's regulatory capital 1s dwided into tiers
defined by the European Community Banking Consolidation Directive as implemented in the UK by the FSA's General Prudential Sourcebook Tier 1 compnses
mainly shareholders’ equity, tier 1 capital instruments and minonity interests, after deducting goodwill and other intangible assets Tier 2 compnses collective
impairment prowistons, and qualifying subordinated lean capital, with restnictions on the amount of collective impairment provisions and loan capital which may be
included The amount of qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed that of tier 1 capital Totat capital 1s reduced by deducting invesiments in subsidiaries and associates
which are not consolidated for regulatory purposes and ivestments in the capital of ather creditfinancial institutions In the case of the Group, this means that the net
assets of its life assurance and general nsurance businesses are deducted from s regulatory capital Risk weighted assets are determined according to a broad
categonsation of the nature of each asset or exposure and counterparty and, for the FSA defined trading book, by taking into account market-related nsks
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£m Em

Tier 1 capital 13,856 12,657
Tier 2 capital 11,669 10,582
25,525 23,239

Supervisory deductions (5,135) (8,004)
Total capital 20,390 15,235

There are himits imposed by the FSA as to the proportion of the regulatory capital base that can be made up of subordinated debt and preferred secunties The
unpredictabte nature of movements 1n the value of the investiments suppanting the long-term assurance funds could cause the amouni of qualitying tier 2 capital to be
restricted because of {alling tier 1 resources The Group seeks 1o ensure that even n the event of such restrictions the total capital ratio will remain adequate

The Group and sts regulated subsidiary banks have been allocated an Individual Capital Ratio by the FSA, and the board has agreed a formal buffer to be maintained
in addition to this ratio This 15 subject to ongoing review and menitoring by the Lloyds TSE Group Asset and Liability Commmitiee Any breaches of the formal buffer
must be notified to the FSA, together with proposed remedial action No such notifications have been made dunng 2007 With effect from 1 January 2008 the Group
moved onto the Basel Il framework and maintained satisfaciory capital ratios throughaut the transition

The Iife assurance and generai insurance businesses are subject to separate regulatory rules Further disclosure relating to the Iife assurance business, as required by
FRS 27, 1s set out below

Life assurance businesses

The principal subsidiary involved in the Group's fe assurance operatiens 15 Scottish Widows ple (‘Scottish Widows'}, which holds the only large With Profit Fund
managed by the Lloyds TSB Group Throughout 2006 and up unt the third quarter of 2007 the Group alsc owned Abbey Life Assurance Company Limited (which
had been closed to new business since March 2000) but this business was sold at the end of September 2007

Basis of determining regulatory capital of the Iife assurance businesses

Available capital resources

Available capital resources represent the excess of assets over habilities calculated in accordance with detailed regutatory rules tssued by the FSA Different rules apply
depending on the nature of the fund, as detailed helow

Statutory basis Assets are generally valued on a basis consistent with that used for accounting purposes {with the exception that, in cerain cases, the value attributed
1o assets 1s hmited) and which follows a market value approach where possible Liabilities are calculated using a projection of future cash flows after making prudent
assumptions about matters such as investment return, expenses and mortahty Discount rates used to value the iabilities are set with reference to the nisk adjusted
yields on the underlying assets in accordance with the FSA rules Other assumptions are based on recent actual experience, supplemented by tndustry information
where appropriate The assessment of llabiities does not include future bonuses for with-profits policies that are at the discretion of management, but does include a
value for policyholder optiens Likely to be exercised

‘Realistic’ basis The FSA requires each life assurance company which contains a with profits fund in excess of £500 milfion, inctuding Scottish Widows, 1o carry out
a 'realistic’ valuation of that fund The word ‘realistic’ in this context reflects the terminology used for reporting to the FSA and is an assessment of the financial position
of a with-profits fund calculated under a prescribed methodology

The valuation of with profits assets in a with-profits fund on a realistic basis differs from the valuation on a statutory basis as, 1n respect of non profits bustness wnitlen
in a with-profits fund (a relatively small amount of business in the case of Scottish Widows), it includes the present value of the anticipated future release of the
prudent margins for adverse deviation The realistic valuation uses the market value of asseis without the imit affecting the statutory basis noted above

The realistic valuation of habiliies 1s carned out using a stochastic simulation model which values habilities on a basis consistent with tradable market option
contracts {a 'market-consrsient’ basis) The model takes account of policyholder behaviour on a best-estimate basis and includes an adjustment te reflect future
uncertainties where the exercise of options by policyholders might increase liabilities Further details regarding the stochastic simulation model are given below in the
section entitled ‘Options and guarantees’

Regulatory capital requirements

Each life assurance company must retain sufficient capital to meet the regulatory capital requirements mandated by the FSA, the basis of calcutating the regulatory
capital requirement Is given below Except for Scottish Widows, the regulatory capial requirement is a combination of amounts held in respect of actuanal reserves,
sums at nsk and maintenance expenses (the Long-Term Insurance Caprtal Requirement) and amounts required to cover vanous stress tests The regulatory capital
requirement 1s deducted from the available capital resources to give statutory excess capital’

For Scotish Widows no amount 1s required to cover the rmpact of stress tests on the actuanal reserves However, a further test 1s required in respect of the With Profit
Fund which compares the level of ‘realistic excess capital’ to the ‘staiutory excess capital’ of the With Profit Fund  In circumstances where the ‘realistic excess capital’
positton 1S less than 'statutory excess capital’, the Company 1s required to hold additional capital to cover the shortfall, but only to the extent it exceeds the value,
calculated in a prescribed way, of internal transfers from the With Profit Fund Any additional capital requirement under this test i1s referred to as the With-Profits
Insurance Capital Component The ‘reahistic excess captal 1s calculated as the difference between realistic assets and reahistic iabiities of the With Profit Fund with a
further deduction to cover various stress tests ’
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The determination of realistic habilities of the With Profit Fund in respect of Scottish Widows includes the value of iternal transfers expected to be made from the With
Profit Fund to the Non-Participating Fund of Scottish Widows These internal transfers include charges on policies where the associated costs are borne by the
Non-Participating Fund The With-Profits Insurance Capital Component is reduced by the value, calculated in the stress test scenarno, of these internal transfers, but
only to the extent that credit has not been taken for the value of these charges in denving actuarial reserves for the Non-Panicipating Fund

Capital statement

The following table provides more detail regarding the sources of capital In the life assurance business The figures quoted are based on management's current
expectations pending completion of the annual financial return to the FSA The figures allow for an anticipated transfer of £300 million from the Long Term Fund to
the Shareholder Fund as at 31 Decemnber 2007

Non
With Profit  Participating Total Long  Shareholder
Fund Fund Term Fund Fund Total
£m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2007
Assets aitributable to the shareholder held outside the long term funds - - - 946 946
Assets attributable to the shareholder held within the long-term funds - 2,346 2,346 - 2,346
Total shareholders' funds - 2,346 2,346 946 3,292
Adjustments onto a regulatory basis
Life assurance bustness
Unallocated surplus withm insurance business 569 - 569 - 569
Adjustments to remove differences between IFRS and regulatory valuation of assets and
habilities - {431) (431) (600) {1,031)
Adjustment to include estimated realistic’ habilities payable to the sharehotder (634) - (634} - (634)
Adjustrment to replace ‘realistic’ habities with statutory habilities 3,696 - 3,696 - 3,696
Adjustment to remove the value of future profits recogrised in respect of non-paricipating
contracts wntten in the With Profit Fund (23) - (23) - (23)
Qualfying loan capital - - - 541 541
Available capital resousces 3,608 1,915 5,523 887 6,410

The figures shown above for available capital resources within the insurance business refate to Scothish Widows ple onty The estimatad tetal additicnal resources
relating to the other life assurance subsidianes within the Group are £330 milion

The comparative position as at 31 December 2006 was as follows (again, relating to Scotish Widaws ple enly)

Non
With Profit  Pamcipating Total Long  Sharehoider
Fund Fund Term Fund Fund Totat
Em £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2006
Assets attributable to the sharehoider held outside the long-term funds - - - 1,947 1,947
Assets atlributable 1o the shareholder held within the long-term funds - 2,225 2.225 - 2,225
Total shareholders’ funds - 2,225 2225 1,947 4,172
Adjustments onto a regulatory basis
Life assurance busingss
Unallocated surplus within insurance business 615 - 615 - 615
Adjustments to remove differences between IFRS and regulatory valuation of assets and
habilities - (263) (263) (810) (1,073)
Adjustment to include eshmated realistic’ Labilities payable to the shareholder {680} - (680) - {680)
Adjustment to replace ‘realistic’ iabilities with statutory habilities 3,783 - 3,783 - 3,783
Adjustment to remove the value of future profils recognised in respect of non pariicipating
contracts written n the With Profit Fund (32) - (32) - (32)
Qualilying loan capital - - - 533 533
Available capital resources 3,686 1,962 5,648 1,670 7.318

Formal intra-group capital arrangements

Seottish Widows has a formal arrangement with cne of its subsidiary undertakings, Scottish Widews Urit Funds Limited, whereby the subsidiary comparny can draw
down capital from Scottish Widows to finance new business which 1s reinsured from the parent to its subsidiary  Scottish Widows has also provided subordinated
loans to its subsidiary Scotish Widows Annuities Lirmited and 1is fellow group undertaking Scottish Widows Bank plc

Constraints over avadable capital resources

Scottish Widows was created following the demutualisation of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society i 2000 The terms of the demutualisation are
governed by a Court-approved Scheme of Transfer (the Scheme’) which, inter alia, created a With Profit Fund and a Non-Participating Fund and established
pratected capital support for the with-profits policyhelders in existence at the date of demutualisation Much of that capital support 15 held in the Non-Participating
Fund and, as such, the capital held in that fund 1s subject to the consirants noted below
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Regquirernent to maintain a Support Account The Scheme reguires the maintenance of a ‘Suppart Account” within the Neon-Participating Fund  The quantum of the
Support Account 1S calculated with reference to the value of assets backing current with-profits policies which also existed at the date of demutuahisation and must be
maintained until the value of these assets reaches a mimimum level Assets can only be transierred from the Non-Participating Fund if the value of the remaining
assets 1in the fund exceeds the value of the Support Account Scottish Widows has obtained from the FSA permissron to include the value of the Support Accountin
assessing the realistc value of assets avalable to the With Profit Fund At 31 December 2007, the estimated value of surplus admissible assets in the
Non-Patticipating Fund was £1 915 million {31 December 2006 £1,962 million) and the estimated value of the Support Account was £827 million
(31 December 2006 £974 million)

Further Support Account The Further Suppert Account s an extra tier of capital support for the with-profits policies in existence at the date of demutuahisation The
Scheme requires that assets can only be transferred from the Non-Participating Fund 1f the economic value of the remaining assets in the fund exceeds the aggregate
of the Support Account and Further Support Account Unlike the Support Account test, the economic value used for this test includes both admissible assets and the
present value of future profits of business wniten in the Non-Participating Fund or by any subsidianies of that fund The balance of the Further Support Account is
expected to reduce to nil by the year 2030 At 31 December 2007, the estmated net economuc value of the Non-Partictpating Fund and s subsidianes for the
purposes of this test was £4,028 million {31 December 2006 £3,962 millicn) and the estimated combined value of the Support Account and Further Support
Account was £2,834 million (31 December 2006 £2,873 millon)

Other restrictions in the Non-Participating Fund 1n addition {o the policies which existed at the date of demutualisation, the With Profit Fund inctudes palicies which
have been wniten since that date As a result of statements made to policyholders that investment policy will usually be the same for both types of business, there Is
an implicit requirement to hotd additional regulatory assets in respect of the business written after demutualisation The estimated amount required to provide such
support at 31 December 2007 15 £193 million {31 December 2006 £216 million} Scottish Widows has obtained from the FSA perrmission o include the value of
this support 1n assessing the realistic value of assets avallable to the With Profit Fund There 15 a further test requiring that no amounts can be transferred from the
Non-Participating Fund of Scottish Widows unless there are sufficient assets within the Long Term Fund to meet both policyholders reasonable expectations n light of
liabilities 1n force at a year end and the new business expected to be written over the following year

Movernents in regulatory capital
The movements In Scottish Widows plc's avallable capital resources can be analysed as follows

Non
With Profit  Parhicipating Total Long  Shareholder

Furd Fund Term fund Func Total

£m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2006 3,686 1,962 5,648 1,670 7,318
Changes tn eshmations and in assumptions used to measure Nfe assurance liabitities (104) {40) (144) - (144)
Dridends and capital transfers - (300) (300) (1,560) (1,860)
Changes in regulatory requirements - &9 69 - 69
New business and other factors 26 224 250 777 1,027
As at 31 December 2007 3,608 1,915 5,523 887 5,410

The pnmary reascns for the movement in total available capital resources during the year are as follows

With Profit Fund
Available capital in the With Profit Fund has decreased from £3,686 mitheon at 31 December 2006 to an estirnated £3,608 mullion at 31 Decernber 2007 The key
driver 15 investment market performance, which was broadly neutral over 2007

Non Participating Fund

Available capital in the Non-Participating Fund has decreased from £1,962 million at 31 December 2006 i0 an estimated £1,915 million ai 31 December 2007
This 1s primardy a result of the anticipated transfer from the Non-Participating Fund to the Shareholder Fund at the year end of £300 milion, offset by the return
generated from the business

Shareholder Fund
During 2007, dividends of £1,860 million were paid These were partly financed by the sale of Abbey Life Assurance Company Limited

Financial enformation calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis

The estimated financial position of the With Profit Fund of Scotish Widows at 31 December 2007, calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis, 1s given in the following table, 1n
the form reported to the FSA As a result of the capital support arrangements, 1t 1s considered appropnate {o also disclose the estimated ‘realistic’ financial position of
the Long Term Fund of Scottish Widows as a whole, which consists of both the With Profit Fund and the Nen-Parlicipating Fund
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With Profit Long Term With Profit tong Termn
Fund Fund Fund Fund
£m £m £m £m
Realistic value of assets of fund 16,781 20,929 18,183 22,278
Suppaort arrangement assets 1,020 - 1,190 -
Realistic value of assets available to the fund 17,801 20,929 19,373 22,278
Realistic value of liabilites of fund (16,846) (16,901) (18 248) (18,316}
Working capitat for fund 955 4,028 1,125 3962
Working capital ratio for fund 5 4% 19 2% 58% 17 9%
The financial information calculated on a ‘realistic’ basis reconciles o the Capital statement as follows 31 December 2007 31 Cecember 2006
With Peofit  Long Term  With Profit Long Term
Fund Fund Fund Fund
£m £m £m £m
Avallabte regulatory capital 3,608 5,523 3,686 5,648
Support arrangement assets 1,020 - 1,190 -
Adjustments to replace statutory hiabilities with ‘reabistic’ iabilities (3,696) (3,582) {3,783) (3,614)
Adjustments to include the value of future profits recognised in respect of Non-Participating business written in
the With Profit Fund 23 23 32 32
Recognition of future profits allowable for ‘realistic’ capital purposes - 2,064 - 1,896
955 4,028 1,125 3,962
Analysis of policyholder liabilities in respect of the Group's ife assurance business Scottish
Widows plc
With Profit Fund
{in accordance Other long term Total life
with FRS 27) funds business
£m £m £m
As at 31 December 2007
With Profit Fund liabilities 16,533 - 16,533
Unit-hinked business {excluding that accounted for as investment contracts) - 14,282 14,282
QOther Ife assurance business - 6,714 6,714
Insurance and participating mvestment contract abrhties 16,533 20,996 37,529
Non-participating mnvestment contract habilities - 18,197 18,197
Total palicyholder liabilities 16,533 39,193 55,726
Scottish
Widows plc
with Profit Fund
(in accordance Dther long term Total life
with FRS 27} funds business
£m Em £m
As at 31 December 2006
With Profit Fund habilities 17,984 116 18,100
Unit-inked business {excluding that accounted for as investment contracts) - 12,734 12,734
QOther life assurance business - 10,181 10181
Insurance and participating investment conteact labilities 17,984 23,031 41,015
Non-pariicipating investment contract habilities - 24,370 24,370
Totat pehicyholder labilities 17,984 47,401 65,385

The sate of Abbey Life Assurance Company Limited duning 2007 reduced total pohicyholder liabities by £11,632 nulbion
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Capital sensitivities
Shareholders’ funds
Shareholders' funds outside the long term business fund other than these used to match regutatery requirements, are manly invested i assets that are less sensitive
to market conditions

With Profit Fund

The with-profits reabstic hiabilities and ihe available capital for the With Profit Fund are sensitive to both market conditions and changes to a number of non-economic
assumptions that affect the valuation of the habihties of the fund The available capital resources (and capital requirements) are sensitive to the leve! of the stock
market with the posthon worsening at low stock market levels as a result of the guarantees to policyholders increasing in value However, the exposure to guaranteed
annuity options increases under rising stock market levels An increase in the levef of equity volatilily implied by the market cost of equity put options also Increases
{he market consistent value of the options given to policyholders and worsens the capital position

The most cntical non-economic assumptions are the level of take up of options nherent in the contracts (higher take up rates are more onerous), mortality rates
(lower mortality rates are generally more onerous) and lapses prior to dates at which a guarantee would apply (fower lapse rates are generally more onerous where
guarantees are in the money) The sensitivity of the capital position and capital requirerments of the With Profit Fund 1s partly mitigated by the actions that can be
taken by management

Other long-term funds

Qutside the With Profit Fund, assets backing actuanal reserves in respect of policyholder labilities are invested so that the values of the assets and habilities are
broadly matched The most critical non-economic assumptions are mortality rates in respect of annuity business written {lower montality rates are more onerous)
Rensurance arrangements are in place to reduce the Group's exposure to deteriorating mortality rates 1n respect of life assurance contracts In addition, poor cost
control would gradually depreciate the available capital and lead to an increase in the valuatron of the habilities (through an increased allowance for future cosis)

Assets held in excess of those backing actuanal reserves are invested across a range of investrnent categories including fixed interest securities, equities, properties
and cash The mix ef invesiments 15 determined in line with the policy of Lloyds TSB Group to minimise the working capital (defined as avadable capitzl less
minimum reguired capital) required to ensure all capital requsrements continue to be met under a range of stress tests

Options and guarantees
The Group has sold insurance products that contain options and guarantees, both within the With Profit Fund and in other funds

Options and guarantees withun the With Profit Fund

The most significant options and guarantees provided from within the With Profit Fund are in respect of guaranteed mimimum cash benefits on death, matunty,
retirement or certain policy anrmiversarnies, and guaranteed annuity options on retirement for certain pension policies For those policies written pre-demutualisation
containing petentially valuable options and guarantees, under the terms of the Scheme a separate memarandum account was set up within the With Profit Fund of
Scotlish Widows called the Additional Account which is avallable, inter ala, to meet any additional costs of providing guaranteed benefits in respect of those policies
The Additional Account had a value at 31 December 2007 of £1 7 bilion {2006 £1 8 bilion) The eventual cost of providing benefits an palicies wrtten both pre
and post demutualisation 1s dependent upon a large nurnber of varables, inctuding future interest rates and equity values, demographic tactors, such as morality,
and the proportion of policyholders who seek to exercise their opiions The ultimate cost will therefore not be known for many years

As noted above, under the realistic capital regime of the FSA, the habilities of the With Profit Fund are valued using a market-consistent stochastic simulation model
This mode! 1s used in order to place a value on the options and guarantees which captures both their intnnsic value and therr time value

The most significant economic assumptions included in the model are
+ Risk-free yield The nsk-free yield 1s defined as O 1 per cent higher than spot yields denved from the UX gilt yield curve

- Investment volatifity The calibration of the stochastic simulation model uses implied volatilities of derivatives where possible, or historical observed votatiity where
it 15 not possible to observe mearngful prices For example, as at 31 December 2007, the 10 year equity-implied at-the-money assumption was set at
25 5 percent (31 December 2006 20 per cent) The assumption for property vedatihty was 15 per cent (31 December 2006 15 per cent) The volatility of interest
rates has been calibrated to the implied volatility of swaptions which was broadly 11 per cent {31 December 2006 13 per cent)

The model includes a matrix of the correlations between each of the underlying modelled asset types The comelations used are consisient with long-term historical
returns The most significant non-economic assumptions included in the model are management actions {m respect of mvestment policy and bonus rates),
guaranteed annurty option take-up rates and assumptions regarding persistency (both of which are based on recent actual experience and include an adjustment to
reflect future uncertainties where the exercise of options by policyholders might increase hatlities), and assumptions regarding mortality (which are based on recent
actual experience and industry tables)

Options and guarantees outside the With Profit Fund of Scottish Widows

Certain personal pension pelicyholders, for whom reinstatement to their occupational pension scheme was not an option, have been given a guarantee that therr
pension and cther benefits will correspond in value 10 the benefits of the relevant occupational pension scheme  The key assumplions affecting the ultimate value of
the guarantee are future salary growth, gilt yields at retirement, annuitant mortality at retirerent, marnital status at retirement and future invesiment returns There 1s
currently a provision, calculated on a detersinistic basis, of £65 million {31 December 2006 £98 million) 1n respect of those guarantees I future salary growth
were 0 5 per cent per annum greater than assumed, the Yiabity would increase by some £3 million If yields were 0 5 per cent lower than assumed, the liability
would increase by some £12 million
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During 2006, the Group, through its Asset Finance subsidianes, acquired two businesses engaged In consumer finance for a total consideration of £16 mullien,
settled 1n cash in that year Goodwiil of £4 miliion arose on these acquisiiiens, no significant fair value adjustments were made

51 Cash flaw statements

a Change tn operating assets

Change n loans and advances to banks
Change n loans and advances to customers
Change n trading assets

Change n other operating assets

Change In operating assets

b Change in operating liabilities

Change in deposits from banks

Change in custorner accounts

Change i debt securities in issue
Change n trading liabilities

Change n mvestment contract liabimties
Change 1n other cperating liabilities

Change 1n operating habilities

¢ Non-cash and other items

Depreciation and amorisation
Revaluation of investment property
Allowance for loan losses

Write-off of allowance for loan losses
Impairment cof available-for-sale securnties
Insurance claims

Insurance claims paid

Customer remediafion provision
Customer remeciation paid

Other provision movements

Net charge in respect of defined benefit schemes
Contributions to defined benefit schemes
Other non-cash items

Total non-cash items
Interest expense on subordinated habihities
Profit on disposal of businesses

QOther
Total other items

Non-cash and other items
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The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
8,673 (11,063) 8,831 (3,465)
(18,946} (14,069) (18,989) {15,431)
{4,329) (7,112) (3,352) (2,674)
{511} 50 (38) (131)
(15,113) (32,194) (13,548} (21,601)
The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
2,136 5,222 4,321 6,750
15,905 9,668 20,359 12,728
(4,194) 15,068 (9,241) 1,699
3,895 482 3,978 382
(58) 3,795 - -
923 (71) 26 380
18,607 34,164 19,443 21,939
The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m
630 619 299 295
321 (631) - -
1,721 1,560 1,405 1.268
{1,405) (1,299) (1,171} (1 146)
70 - 70 -
7,522 8,569 - -
{6,697) (7,486} - -
- - - (3)
(54) (93) (48) (76)
2 (19) 5 (16)
175 109 126 73
(452) {556} (348) (432)
789 17% 140 (695)
2,622 948 478 (737)
770 727 704 614
(657) - (407} -
(46) (43) {18) (32)
67 684 279 582
2,689 1,632 757 (155}




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

51 Cash flow statements {continued)

d Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet

Cash and balances with central banks
Less mandatory reserve deposits!

Loans and advances to banks
Less amounts with a matunty of three months or more and balances due from subsidiary undertakings

The Group The Bank

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em
4,330 1898 4,211 1,678
(338) (300) (319) (169)
3,992 1,598 3,892 1,509
34,845 40,638 28,447 86,588
{6,946) {16,798) (8,312) (72 662)
27,895 23,840 20,135 13,926
31,891 25,438 24,027 15,435

'Mandatory reserve deposits are held with tocal central banks in accordance with statutory requirements, these deposits are not available to finance the Group's

day-to-day operations

Included within cash and cash equivalents of the Group at 31 December 2007 1s £7,426 million (2006 £9,054 million) held within the Group's life funds, which is

not immediately available for use in the business

e Anatysis of changes in financing during the year

Share capital (incluging share premium account)
At 1 fanuary and 31 December

Minonty interests

At 1 January

Exchange and other adjustments

Repayment of capital to minonty shareholders
Minonty share of profit atter tax

Dividends to minenty shareholders

At 31 December

Subordinated liabilities

At 1 January

Exchange and other adiustments
1ssue of subordinated liabilities
Repayments of subordinated liabilities
Transfer of C&G business (note 26)

At 31 December

f Acquisition of group undertakings and businesses

Investment in subsicdiary

Net assets acquired

Loans and advances to customers
Other asseis

Goodwill ansing on consolidation

Net cash outflow from acquisitions in the year
Payments to former members of Scotish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society acquired dunng 2000

Met cash outflow from acquisitions

97

The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m Em
4,502 4,502 4,502 4,502
The Group
2007 2006
£m £m
352 435
[§8] (4)
(80) (151)
32 104
{19) (32)
284 352
The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £Em Em
11,506 12,635 10,281 11,382
133 (620) 124 {592}
1,098 - 1,098 -
(300) (509) (300) {509}
- - 700 -
12,437 11,506 11,303 10,281
The Group The Bark
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m Em £m
- - 18 8
- 11 - -
- 1 - -
- 16 18
8 4 - -
8 20 18 8




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Notes to the accounts

51 Cash flow statements {continued)

g Disposal and closure of group undertakings and businesses The Group The Bank
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks a7 - - -
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,999 - - -
Loans and advances to banks 1,150 - - -
Value of in-force business 412 - - -
Liabilines arising from insurance contracts and participaling investment contracis (4,349} - - -
Liabilities anising from nen-participating investment contracts (7,283) - - -
Unaltocated surplus within insurance businesses {15) - - -
Other net assets and abilities (95) - 111 -
856 - 111 -
Profit on sale of businesses 657 - 407 -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (37 - - —
Consideration for 20035 disposal settled in cash - 936 - 936
Net cash inftow from disposals 1,476 936 518 936

9B




Lloyds TSB Bank plc

MNotes to the accounts

52 Future developments

The following pronouncements will be relevant to the Group but were not effective at 31 December 2007 and have not been applied i preparing these financial
statements The full impact of these accounting changes 1s being assessed by the Group, however, the initial view 15 that none of these pronouncements are expected
to cause any matenal adjustments to reported numbers n the financial statements

Proncuncement

Nature of change

Effective date

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

Clanfies the application of IFRS 2 Share-based Paymeni to certain
share-hased payment arrangements involving own equity
instruments and arrangements invelving equity mstruments of

a parent entity

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 March 2007

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirement and their
Interaction

Provides guidance on the availabiity of refunds or reductions
future contnbutions for retirement plans and specifies how a
minimum funding requirement might either affect the availability
of reductions 1n future contributions or give rise to a Lability

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2008

IFRIC 13 Custormer Loyalty Programmes! 2

Addresses accounting by entities who grant customer loyalty
award credits 10 custorners as part of sales transactions and which
can be redeemed i the future for free or discounted goods or
services

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' 2

Rewvises the overall requirements for the presentation of financial
statements, guidance for their structure and mintmum content
requirements The revised standard requires the presentation of
all non-owner changes in equity within a statement of
comprehensive income

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs! 2

Requires interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds to be recognised as an expense excepting that
those which are direcly atinbutable to the acquisition,
canstruction or production of assets that take a substantial penod
of time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale must be
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

IFRS 8 Operating Segmenis?

Replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting and requires reporting of
financial and descriptive information about operating segments
which are based on how financial information 15 reported and
evaluated internally

Annual penods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations' 2

The amendment restricts the defintion of vesting conditions to
include only service conditions and performance conditions and
deals with the accounting consequences of a failure to meet a
conditicn other than a vesting condition including how to deal
with cancellations by the counterparty and circumstances where
neither the entity nor the counterparty 1s In a posttion to choose
whether or not fo meet a vesting condition

Annual perods beginming on or after
1 January 2009

Amendments to JAS 32 Financial Instriiments
Presentation and [AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation® 2

The amendment requires some puttable financial nstruments
{being those which give the holder the night to put the instrument
back to the issuer for cash or another financial asset) and some
financial instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to
deliver to another parly a pro rata share of the net assets of the
entity only on liquidation to be classified as equity

Annual perrods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

IFRS 3 Business Comtrnations! ?

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, however, all payments to purchase a
business are 10 be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date,
some contingent payments are subsequently remeasured at fair
value through income, goodwill may be caleulated based on the
parent’s share of net assets or It may include goodwill related to
the minonty interest, and all transaction costs are expensed

Annual periods beginrung on or after
1 July 2009

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financral
Statements? 2

Requires the effects of all transactions with non-cantrolling
interests to be recorded In equity «f there 1s no change in control,
any rematn:ng intevest i1k an nvestee 1s remeasured to far value in
determming the gain or loss recognised in profit or lass where
control over the investee 1s lost

Annual pericds beginning on or after
1 July 2009

-

L At the date of this report, these pronouncements are awaiing EU endorsement

Z Subject to any EU endorsement, the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply these pronouncements n the 2008 financial statements
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Notes to the accounts

53 Approval of the financial statements and other information

The financial statements were approved by the directors of Uloyds TSB Bank plc on 21 February 2008

Lloyds TSB Bank plc and 1ts subsidianes form a leading UK based financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services
in the UK and in cerfain locations overseas
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